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our antiquaries ing this place of the Britons,
fortified both by art and nature. Horsley thinks it
likely that this engagement was on the baunks of the
river Stour, a little to the mnorth of Durovernum, or
Canterbury, in the way towards Sturry, which is about
fourteen English miles from the Downs ; others, well ac-
quainted with this part of Kent, have conjectured it to
have been on the banks of the rivulet below Barham-
downs, and that the fortification of the Britons was in
the woods behind Kingston, towards Bearstead ; and
the distance as well as the situation of this place, and
the remains of Roman works about it, almost in a
continued line to Deal, add some strength to this con-
JecﬁE, Some have placed this encounter below Swerd-
ling-downs, three miles north-west from Bearstead, and
the intrenchment in the woods above the downs behind

ppington, where many remains of intrenchments,&c.,
iblel' | The next morning, having divided his
armysinto three bodies, Ceesar sent both his horse and
foot in pursuit of'the Britons; soon after which, be-
fore the rear of them had got out of sight, some horse-
men arvived from Q. Atrius, to inform him that the
night before there had happened a dreadful storm,
which had shattered almost all his ships, and cast them
on shore. Upon this intelligence, the Roman general,
countermanding his orders, returned himself in person
to the fleet, and there found that about forty of his
ships were entirely lost, and that the rest of them were
so much damaged as not to be refitted without great
labour. Wherefore, haying chosen some workmen from
among his soldiers,and sent for others from the continent,
he wrote to Labienus, in Gaul, to build him as many ships
as he could with those legions that were left him ; and he
himself determined to have his fleet hauled on shore,
and to enclose it, with his camp, within the same fortifi-
cation, In the execution of this, the soldiers laboured
ten days and nights without intermission ; and at this
day, u the shore about Deal, Sandown, and Walmer,
there is a long range of heaps of earth, where Camden
supposes this ship camp to have been, and which, in
his time, he says, was called by the people, as he was
told, Rome's work ; some have conjectured
that the place of Cmsar's naval eamp was where the
town of Deal now stands. This work having been
completed, Casar returned to the scene of eonflict, and
found on his arrival that the Britons hed assembled in
: bers from all parts. Whilst the Romans
= were on therr march they were briskly attacked by the
¥ British horse and chariots, 'whom' they repulsed with
o , and drove them into the woods. Not
ng after this, the Britons made a sudden sally out of
s woods, and sharply attacked the advanced guard of
Romans, who, not expecting it, were employed in
ying their camp ; upon which, Cesar immediately
‘the two first cohorts of his legions to their
: but the Britons, whilst the soldiers stood
their new mode of fighting, boldly broke
e mi of them,  and returned again
the loss of @ single man. Quintus Laberius
s slain Hfgia action, but some fresh cohorts

the Britons were- af last repulsed. The
he Britons shewed selves on the hills
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Cuwsar had sent out three legions and all the cavalry,
under the command of C. Trebonius,"to forage, they
suddenly rushed on the foragers from all parts, inso-
much as to fall in with the legions and their standerds.
The Romans, however, returning the attack briskly, drove
them .back, and their cavalry did not desist from the
pursuit until they had utterly routed them and slain a
great number, Upon this rout, the British auxiliaries,
which had come from all parts, left them, nor did the
Britons ever after this engage the Romans with their
united forces. Cesar then led his army to the river
Tbam_cs, towards the territories of Cassivelaunus, the
principal leader of the defeated Britons. In the mean
time, Cassivelaunus, to make a diversion, sent his mes-
sengers into Kent, which was then governed by four
petty princes, whom Casar styles Kings, and com-
manded them to raise what forces they could, and sud-
denly attack the camp where the Roman ships were laid
up; which they did, but were repulsed with great slaughter
in a sally made by the Romans, who made prisoner one
of the kings named Cingetorix, and returned without
loss to their trenches. On the submission of Cas-
sivelaunus, which followed this defeat, Cwsar, having
imposed an annual tribute on the vanquished, and re-
ceived the hostages which he demanded, marched back
through Kent to the sea-shore, from which he shortly
after took his last leave of Britain. In the course of
the second invasion and first effectual conquest of
Britain by the Romans, in the reign of Claudius, their
first descent appears to have been on the south-western
coast, but it is plain, from Dion Cassius’s account, that
Plautius, who commanded this expedition, waited for the
promised assistance of the emperor on the southern,
or Kentish, side of the Thames ; and it has been thought
by many, that the place of his encampment was where
those large remains of a Roman camp, or intrenchment,
are still to be seen at Keston down, near Bromley. In
the division of Britain by Constantine, Kent was included
in Britannia Prima ; and, after the Saxon pirates had
begun to infest the south-eastern coast, this was one of
the maritime districts placed under the command of
the officer called Comes Littoris Sazxonici, or Count of the
Saxon shore, under whom there were, within the limits
of this county, according to the Notitia, the commander
of the Tungrian soldiers stationed at Dovor; the com-
mander of the detachment of soldiers of Tournay, at
Limne; the commander of the first cohort of Vetascians,
at Reculver; the commander of the second legion,
called Augusta, at Richborough; and the commander
of the detachment of the Albuci, at Anderida. The Ro-
mans also built several watch-towers, forts, and castles,
on the coast, as well to overawe the Britons, and pre-
serve a safe intercourse with the continent, as to guard
against the assaults of the Saxon pirates. They made
three public, or consular, ways in Kent, the principal
of which led from Dovor to London, forming of
the great military way, afterwards denominated by the
Saxons, Watling-street.

Ebbs-ficet, in the Isle of Thanet, near Richborough, in
this county, is remarkable as having been the place of
landing, in 449, of the Saxon chiefs Hengist and Horsa,
who, with their followers, were retained by the British
sovereign, Guorteyrn, or Vortigern, to serve against the
northern invaders, the Picts and Scots. It was about the
year 455 that Hengist, aiming

‘ut an independent sove-
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‘two sons of
mlmm of the Darent ; the next
at a place Eagle's-ford, now Aylesford, which is

mmaubleﬁorthe death of Horsa, on the side of the
of ‘on that of the Britons ; and
fought at Stonar, from which last defeat
fled to their ships ; and it is asserted that
and his followers mdmﬂnhm from Britain
until the death of Guortemir, which ed not long
after. The great battle which, according to the Saxon
chroniclers, completed the establishment of gt in
Kent, was fought at Crayford in 457 : the Britons, being
defeated in this with great slaughter, abandoned Kent,
and fled in terror toLondm.f Eight years afterwards, the
‘Britons lthcked , but were utterly routed ;
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and in 473 mempud another battle with him, but
with such a calamitous issue, that they are declared to
MveMkdmthe/Buwasfromﬁre. All the battles

, particularised by the Saxon chroniclers, were
‘ ﬁ!?t Kent ; one of the last of them having occurred
| ‘st Wippeds-Fleot, or Wipped-fleet, in the Isle of Thanet.
i st was succeeded in the sovereignty of Kent by
his son Esca, who reigned twenty-four years. No sub-
sequent event of importance is recorded of this small
. kingdom until the reign of Ethelbert, the fourth suc-
,ceumofﬂengmwhowoededinsﬁo and held the
! upwards of half a century : this latter mon-
ted at Wimbledon in Surrey, by Ceawlin,
i Kcingomeex, whose territories he had invaded, in
| the first battle which occurred among the sovereigns
. of the Anglo-Saxon octarchy. Ethelbert also became
. afterwards remarkable as the first of the Anglo-Saxon
kings converted to Christianity by the Roman mis-
sionaries, who, in 596, landed in the Isle of Thanet,

Mmmmﬂehrtheﬂmdmbcka&onof'
conquerors of Britain. Kent now became a

S.mmgm ahdiumetmpoli-,cmbury Jac-

over the other ti

they laid waste all the eastern mw
fire and sword. In the reign of Alfred; one ¢
the Danish fleet, under the pimucll chief

to take that city by surprise; lmt il
they closely besieged it, until it was
rival of Alfred with his army, on wh
fled hastily to their ships, leaving their
them, In 893, entering the mouth of t}
or Rother, and sailing up as high as Aj
strongly intrenched themselves there,
division entering the Thames, lmdsd g
Sittingbourne, and built the castle, ﬂwﬂlﬂ f wl A
now called the Castle-ruff, after which m o
ravaged the adjoining country: In 908,4‘ reign of
Edward the Klder, ababﬂemfmmﬂn
Kentish men and the called

or Holme-wood, in Sussex, . latter

ships on the Kentish coast,
Danish descents. In 980, in

Ethelred I,
and, in 992, mm



conferred upon them by former sovereigns,
by which they had distinguished themselves in

During the time that the English and the Nor-

* man armies were encamped in sight of each other, prior
to that memorable en t, some fresh vessels from
Normandy having crossed the strait, in order to join the

- fleet stationed off Hastings, their commanders

d, by mistake, several miles further to the north-

, in the neighbourhood of Romney, when the in-
of the ne assembled to oppose
them, and a conflict in which the Normans were
overpowered. William was apprised of their defeat
_~when in the midst of his triumph, and, to prevent a
" similar disaster befalling the rest of the recruits which
~ he expected from the continent, he resolved, without
loss of time, to secure the possession of the south-

n - Accordingly, he marched along the
~his way, and reve
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487

by surprise, on the lst of A
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Thomas & Becket, from his long exile, and still. more
so for his murder at ury; mor is the year
1179 less remarkable for the voluntary penance w

Henry I1. underwent at his tomb. The additional cele-

brity which the ecclesiastical metropolis of England
now derived from the elevation of Becket to the dignity

of a saint and martyr extended itsclf to the whole

‘county, so that « St. as of Kent" became a popu-

lar designation for the most renowned of the English

saints, and the principal roads to Canterbury, more es-

pecially that from London, were thronged with pilgrims

from all parts of England, and even from the continent,

to pay their devotions and make their offerings at his

shrine. In 1215, Rochester castle was h by the

barons against King John, who took it after a two-

months' siege, and had all the common soldiers of the

garrison hanged. In the following year, Louis the

Danphin landed his army at Stonar, from a fleet of six

hundred and eighty vessels, and advanced to Rochester,

which he took, and then proceeded to London; Dovor

castle being at the same time successfully defended

against him by Hubert de Burgh, Earl of Kent. In

1381, the insurrection under Wat Tyler commenced at

Dartford, and the i ts encamped on Blackheath,
whence they proceeded to London. In 1450, also, the
rebels under . Jack Cade encamped upon Blackheath,
from which place, on the approach of Henry VI, with
fifteen thousand men, they retired to Sevenoaks, where
they defeated and slew Sir Humphrey Stafford and his
brother William, who commanded a detachment of the
royal army, after which Cade re-encampéd on Black-

heath, and from that place entered London : on the
same heath, in the February following, a great num-

ber of his partisans craved pardon of the king upon

their knees. In 1459, four thousand French troops,

under Marshal de Breze, landed on the coast, and burn-

ed the town of Sandwich. In 1471, Thomas Neville, the

bastard Fauconbridge, encamped his army of .seven~

teen thousand men upon Blackheath, whence he pro-

ceeded to his unsuccessful attack upon London. In,
1497, the Cornish insurgents, under Lord Audley and
others encamped on Blackheath, where they were sur-

prised by the Earl of Oxford, two thousand being kill-

ed, and their leaders made prisoners. In January 1554

the insurrection under Sir Thomas Wyat, to oppose the

intended marriage of Queen Mary with Philip 1L, King
of Spain, commenced at Maidstone. On the breaking
out of the civil war, in 1642, ten or twelve parliamen-

tarians contrived to themselves of Dovor castle
; and in 16485 on
the formation of the Kentish Association,
the royalists, under Sir John Mayney and Sir William
Brockman, were defeated by General Fairfax, at Maid-
stone. The year 1677 is memorable in the Kentish an-
nals for the daring attack made by a part of the Dutch
fieet, w i yter, on the shipping n -




Emperor Charles V. ntDavor,bomGomnn.Mayl&h,
1520, on a visit to Henry VIIL ; that of Charles II. at
the same place, May 26th, 1660, on his being recalled
to the British throne; theenhnkﬂmdlouis XVIIIL
at the same port, in April 1814, at the time of the res-
toration of his family to the of Frunce;
and the landing, on June 6th of the same year, also at
Dovor, of Alexander 1., Emperor of Russia, and Frede-
ﬂeWiﬂmeH..thomeumtto his late
George IV,, whﬂePnncechm on the oc-

the southern, the latter of the
mw#mm The diocesc of Canterbury
an archdeaconry, conteining the eleven deaneries
W‘q Canterbury, Charing, Dovor, Elham, Limne,
Ospringe, Sandwich, Sittingbourne, Sutton, and West-
bere, in which are two hundred and eighty-two parishes.
The diocese of Rochester contains the three deaneries
of Dartford, Malling, and Rochester, which form the
archdeaconry of Rochester, and the deanery of Shoreham,
which is a peculiar belonging to the Archbishop of
Canterbury : the whole diocese contains one hundred
and thirty-two parishes, making the total number of
parishes in the county four hundred and fourteen, of
which, one hundred and sixty-nine are rectories, ome
hundred and sixty-two vicarages, and the remainder
gy O . 3
ses government the w. county is div
into five great districts, called lathes, namely, those of
&Aw Aylesford, Scray, Shepway, and Sutton
‘at. Hone. d’l‘l;e;whthe olh’Sc.Ang\mme mwu‘:‘;h:
sborough, Bleangate, Bridge
tham, Danih. Downhamford, Eastry,

Ly

at Maidstone, at which place are the county gaol and
house of correction : there are one hundred and sixty-
eight acting magistrates. By long usage this countyis
divided into two great distriets of nearly equal extent,
commonly called East Kent and West Kent'; the former,

comprising the lathes of St. Augustine and Shepway, and
the upper division of the lathe of Scray ; the latter, the
lathes of Sutton at Hone and Aylelfmﬂ. and the lower
division of the lathe of Scray; and it is usual for the
Justices of the peace for the county to confine the exer-
cise of their authority, except upon extraordinary occa-
sions, to the division in which they respectively reside.
The quarter sessions for the county are also held four
times in the year in each of these divisions, that is, twice
mgmaﬂy.mdtmcebyuﬂgomw,ufoﬂown-thym
held originally, for East Kent, at Canterbury, on the
Tuesday after Epiphany and on the Tuesday after the
feast of St. Thomas 2 Becket ; and by adjournment; for
West Kent, at Maidstone, on the 'ﬂmndq#w*
ewhofthuedam:theymdmkeﬁ . s
West Kent, at Maidstone, on the Tuesday !

and the Tuesday after Michaclmas; -mrbmw
ment, for East Kent, at Whmv

tﬂueuhd 1
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mmrwum ‘county, ‘which are more eleven miles long, and eight miles across, in the broadest
exposed. - The air of the Isle of Sheppy v«ym part, and contains seven parishes, including the borough

end the district is much subject to noxious vapours
- which rise from the vast tracts of marshes adjdnlmg,
rendering it + from this cause the country
| there is not very lous, and, in the marshes more

in taking h’:«:ﬂ‘mwm ovinchlly e

care 0 are provine
w.&wa&memaybuddofnumneyaﬂmh
The effect of the climate on the agriculture of Kent
will be seen from a statement of the respective periods
of the ecommencement of the wheat harvest in different
parts of the county : in the Isles of ‘and Thanet,
which are the most forward the county, it
usually commences in the last week of July; between
Canterbury and Dovor, six or seven days later; and
Wltﬂhym«twelwdlytonthe cold hills which
wmmmdthemty,uwelluinthe

:!!hc-n-bce ‘of the county is divided by two nearly
parallel chains of hills, cdbdtheUppert\dtheLower,
ﬂn Chalk and the Gravel hills, whic!

middle of it lromwelttom;emdingfmmthe

tdghbouhaodhof Folkutone and Hytheonthe eum-n,

northern side of the county, are composed chiefly of
chalk and flints ; the southern of iron and rag-
stone ; and below these last-mentioned hills lies the
Mdkm“mmﬁnmd nearly level tract, oc-
cupying the whole southern side of the county,
e ' tothutoftbewuhymctnt
Mctmity the county, of which

ellent vpﬁua fine timber. It has already been
bserved that the county is commonly divided into the
two - ‘districts of East Kent and West Kent.
East " includes two tracts of land, one very dry
and. open, the other much sheltered by woods and
mw;ﬂnmmhm&edtyofm

udthhuﬂbuvorndl’)al; the enclosed
from Dover, by Elham and Ash-
“in breadth from the Isle of
v\Mmﬂu‘ o!'Euth

=

of Queen and the naval station of Sheerness,
The southern side of the island, where there are two
streams running into the Swale, and forming the islets
of Elmley and Harty, is for the most part low and
mrarshy : the land rises gradually towards the centre of
the isle, on its south-eastern and western sides ; but on
the north is a range of cliffs about six miles in length,
which gradually decline in height at each extremity,
the more elevated parts continuing for about two-thirds
of their whole extent. The highest of them, which are
in the neighbourhood of Minster, are not less than
ninety feet perpendicularly above the level of the shore :
they consist of clay, and being washed at their base
by the tides, which beat against them with uncom-
mon violence when driven by north-east winds,
they are continually wasting and falling down upon the
beach at the highest parts, occasioning a great loss of
land, as sometimes nearly an acre has sunk down in
one mass. These cliffs belong to the three manors of
Minster, Shurland, and Warden, the owners of which
let them out to the proprietors of copperas works, who
employ the neighbouring poor to collect the pyrites, or
stones, from the shore.
About four-fifths of this island consist of
land of two sorts; viz., marsh land, which includes a
large tract of rich fattening land ; and upland
a great part of which isverypoor and is used for
breeding sheep. Most of the arable land is very pro-
ductive of wheat and beans, especially towards the north-
ern side, in the mshuof Minster and East Church.
The enclosures the hills are small, and are sur-
rounded by thick hedge-rows; and as the eountry is
finely varied with hill and dale, and the
very pleasing and extensive, in fine weather the Isle of
Sheppy is remarkably pleasant. Good fresh water is
very scarce in most parts of it: the roads ott
are very good, owing to the abundance of materials,
and the limited travelling on them. The Isle of Grain,
situated between the mouth of the Medway and the
mouth of the Thames, is no an island ; the chan-
nel which separated it from the main-land, mdcummn-
nicated with the two rivers, being now filled up: the
tract still called the Isle of Grain iaaboutthmemnh
mdahnlflon and two and a half wide, low
est Kent, comprehending the Weald, a

g!ut of the rag-stone shelf, between thWeddad

M with all the district '
bdm«the towns of Westerham, Deptford, Rodem,
and Maidstone, and their vicinities, forms a m
of country, having soils and features of

with many varied and beautiful prospects.

The stone shelf of land is ohkﬂydehhd;bun
much of its Mmdlhﬁsg, the hills w
ferent directions, but
so that the little rills d’ the nln are collected

- larger rivulets, vhlchmwyuhu;hm
range ; those rising
Q—u:lvy '

eastward of Lenbam  di



m

j1 it
«m.mwwm.mmw - mm m

mammmmmm g m,,mm
m. Wm wwm mmmmmwm mm W_
W memme m

mwm

mmmmﬂ mmmm T



uit and hops are produced on this soil. Thewgz'ﬁt
wrt of Romney-Marsh is a fine soft loam with
re of sea-sand, and the herbage it produ ;
f the first ty for fattening. The inferior parts of
 marsh, being those which are used in breeding, are
such as have a less portion of sea-sand, and are a stiff
; and such as have too much of sand and gravel,

h latter lie near the sea-shore : the sub-soil is fre-
quently seen in alternate layers of clay and sand, and
metimes beach and sand. The clay of the western part
of Kent is of different sorts ; one is cold, much mixed
with flints, from eight to fourteen inches deep, and ex-
tremely tenacious ; it is found on the top of the chalk-
hills, having in some places a yellow clay between it
and the chalk; another is cold, wet, and stiff, with a
small mixture of rag-stone, and is found chiefly in the
' low grounds of the western part of the county. An
‘ stiff moist clay, mixed with stones and flints
of different sorts, and found about Seal and Wrotham, is
provincially called coomb. Pinnock, too, is a provincial
name for a red sticky clay, mixed with small stones, the
substratum of which is the rag-stone rock. The clay,
which is by far the most predominant kind of soil in
 the Weald, is there either stiff and exceedingly heavy,
‘a wet sort which ploughs somewhat lighter: the
chiefly found on eminences, or their declivities,

, ' eight inches deep, and rests on a
n of stif yellow clay, which has in some
“substratum of excellent marl ; the other lies
situations, and is seven or eight inches deep,

he sub-soil being in some places a yellow clay, and
others a soft sand-stone rock. Gravelly soils are
found about Dartford and Blackheath ; they are

from five to eight inches deep, with a sub-soil of roc
ravel mmfi"m soils, called gravel,
lower part of this district, which are a mixture of
f Kentish rag-stone, with sand and
‘West Kent are mostly black,
commons and heaths: in the
‘sandy land, which is much ﬁ
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" - foin, lucerne, and burnet, are also cul
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per acre, Potatoes, cabbages, tares, clover, tréfoil, ‘sain-
vated, but less ge-
nerally than the crops above-mentioned. The produce -
of canary-seed is from three to five quarte ‘acre,

- and it is sold to seedsmen in London, who export it to
~ all parts of Europe. Radish-seed is much cultivated

on the best loamy soils of the Isle of Thunet and East
Kent, for the supply of the London seedsmen, who re-
tail it to all parts of the kingdom; the produce is from
eight to twenty-four bushels per acre. For the London
seedsmen are also grown spinach-seed, in the Tsle of Tha-
net and East Kent, the produce of which is from two to
five quarters per acre ; kidney beans, in the Tsle of Thanet '
and the vicinity of Sandwich, the produce being from ten
to twenty bushels per acre ; and cresses and white mus-
tard-seed, which produce from eight to twenty bushels
per acre. Some flax is cultivated, and produces per acre
from eight to twelve bushels of seed, and from ome
to two packs of flax of two hundred and forty pounds
each, the gl\:iity of which # somewhat similar to that
imported Holland, but inferior. Woad for dye-
ing is much cultivated in the western part of the county,
on poor and stiff, and in some instances on chalky, soils.
The quantity of land in natural meadow in the uplands
of East Kent is comparatively small, and the greater
part of the hay used in that district is produced in the
marshes. The Weald abounds in natural land,
which produces a vast quantity of hay of excellent qual-
ity. parts of the county have scattered parcels
of meadow land, some of which are of good quality ;
but in general the meadows of Kent are much inferior
to those of many other counties : the downland sheep-
walks on the chalky hills of East Kent can hardly

called pasture. “The grass land of the marshes, which
are situated” along the borders of the rivers, or of the
sea, is of very considerable extent: Romney-Marsh
contains forty-four thousand acres ; the marshes on
the borders of the Stour comprise twenty-seven thou-
sand ; and those on the Medway, the Thames, and the
Swale, about eleven thousand five hundred collectively.
The whole of these tracts is appropriated to the fatten-
ing of cattle and sheep, or to the b of sheep :
?;e of ing in the marsh lands of the Isle
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whence,
igh the road called the Hope, and joins the waters
o-whole of this.course it is

of the largest burden. The Medway is formed
by the confluence of four streams, two of which rise in

one in Surrey, and the other in Kent: that
‘ -enters this ;::.nty:a little above
bridge, and flowing to hurst joins an-

other of the principal branches, and then continues its
Tunbridge to Yalding, where it forms a junc-
considerable stream'from the other

minor streams, it passes by Maidstone and
the towns of Stroud, Rochester, and Chat-
which, having formed numerous creeks and
it falls into the German ocean at the mouth of
Thames, between the Isle of Grain and the naval
This river was made navigable
barges as high as Tunbridge, about the middle
last century, under the provisions of an act
in the year 1740 : up to Chatham it is navigable
of the largest burden.  The Medway is well
in the higher part of its course with the usual
fish, and lower down with smelts, soals, flounders,
thornbacks, &e¢.  Baut its principal fishery is that
3, which is also ecarried on in the various creeks
are formed towards its mouth, and is under the
sdiction of the corporation of Rochester, the mayor
citizens holding a yearly court, called the Admiralty
cqurt, for its regulation. There are six smaller rivers ;
the Greater Stour, the Lesser Stour, the Rother, the
Darent, the Cray, and the Ravensbourne. The Greater
Stour rises from two principal heads in the eastern part
of the county,and flowing to Ashford, there takes a north-
‘easterly course to Canterbury,
~ comes navigable for coasting vessels, and having made
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- boundary between this county and
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at Gravel-hill, in the parish of Rotherfield, in the
county of Sussex, mdﬂowingm-twd.becqﬁ'::he
WM*

: Sussex, |
hurst, and having skirted the south side of the lsle of

- Oxney, quits Kent, and empties its waters into Rye

harbour. The Darent, which pursues its entire course
through this county, rises on the borders of Surrey,
near Westerham, and flows in a north-easterly direction
to Riverhead ; then taking a norther ly course, it passes
through a consi le extent of country to Dartford,
vigable, and assumes the name of
Dartford creek, falling into the Thames between two
and three miles further down, at Long Reach. The Cray
rises at Newell, in the parish of Orpington, and flowing
through the district called the Crays and through Cray-
ford marshes, it falls into Dartford creek, half way
:etween Dxlzt.ford and the Thames. The Ravenshourne
ses on ton common, and running through the
parishes of Hayes, Bromley, Lee, and Lewisham, on
the north-western border ,of Kent, it falls into the
Thames at Deptford, where it receives the name of Dept-
ford creek, and is navigable for small craft for the
distance of about a mile from its mouth, In different
parts of the county are aumerous springs, the water of
which is chalybeate, but those of Tunbridge Wells are
the most celebrated. At Sydenham, in the parish of
Lewisham, are some springs of medicinal purgative
water, resembling those of Epsom, which, from their
proximity to Pulwich, have received the name of Dul-
'ich w‘m. L} H :
Owing to the situation of this county,
between the English channel and the long @®stuary of
the Thames, it has little connexion, except through the
medium of that great river, with the grand system of
canal navigation which branches through the midland
districts of England., The only work of this nature
that can be regarded as belonging exclusively to Kent,
is the cut from the Thames at Gravesend to the Med-
way at Rochester, which saves, for barges, a circuitous
navigation by the mouths of those two rivers,
The canal extending from the Thames at ford, to
Croydon in Surrey, runs through a simall Eort.mn of the
western border of the county; and the Grand Surrey
canal touches its north-western em The Grand
Military canal, constructed as a work during

and quits this county for Sussex, near Fairfield. The
road from Ig.ﬁontoDovor mf“x:::m
ine of the ancient Watling-street, over
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southern boundary being formed by the Goodwin Sands:
its width is about six miles, its length shout eight,
and its depth varies from eight to twelve fathoms. This
is the common rendezvous of the East India and other
fleets, both on their outward and homeward bound
voyages ; and in certain states of the wind nearly four
hundred sail have anchored there at one time. The sitn-
ation of the Goodwin Sands (supposed to have derived
their name from Goodwin, the celebrated lo-Saxon
carl of Kent,) forms the principal of this much-
frequented road, serving as a ~water during the
prevalence of southerly winds. These sands extend in
length about ten miles, the north sand head being
nearly opposite to Ramsgate, and the south sand head
to Kingsdown: at low water they are dry in many
places, and partics frequently Jand on them. Several
years ago, in consequence of the numerous accidents to
shipping, the corporation of the Trinity-house formed
the design of erecting a light-house on them; but
after the sand had been penctrated by boring to a great
depth, the scheme was given up as impracticable, as
no solid foundation could be obtained. A floating
light, however, has heen placed on the eastern side

the north sand head, and] has proved of impor-
tant service, The county abounds with rich, extensive,
and interesting prospects ; the most striking of which
are those from the heights of Greenwich and Woolwich,
Dovor castle and clifts, Gad's hill near Rochester, Ma-
ram's Court, Wrotham and River hills, the high
grounds in the parish of Minster, Wye down, and the
hills of Boughton, Boxley, Gravesend, Hampton, Hol-
wood, Oldbury, and Shottington.

Kent having been the portion of Britain from which,
both in the Roman #_l.n the Saxon conquest, the Bri-
tons were first expelled, contains few remains of anti-
quity purely British. Brass cclts and other weapons
have been dug up in places supposcd to have been the
scenes of conflicts between the Britons and their in-
vaders ; and a very few cromlechs are still to be found
within the limits of the county; the most remarkable
of which, for its magnitude and good preservation, is
that commonly called Kit's Coty House, which, from its
name and situation, some antiquaries bhave conjectured
to have been & ’gponument over the grave of the British
prince, Certigern, slain in oune of the hattles with Hen-
gist. The Roman stations here were Anderida, supposed
to have been at Newenden ; Dubris, Dovor ; Durobrive,
Rochester ; Durolevum, Judde Hill, Newington, or Sit-
tingbourne ; Durovernum, Canterbury; Lemania, Lymne;
Noviomagus, Keston, or Crayford; Regulbium, Reculver;
Rutupium, Richborough; and Vagriace, Northfieet, ar
Southfleet. The principal remaine of Roman buildings
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tice for their antiquity or curiosity, wiz.,, St. Mary's
Dovor, and thore of Maidstone, Minster, Patrixbourne,
Reculver, Romney, and Sandwich. In this county way
made the first settlement in England of the four fol-
lowing monastic orders, viz,, of Augustine canons at
Canterbury, lin 605; of Grey friars, or Franciscans,
at the same place, in 1224 ; of Trinitarian friars at
Mottenden, iu the same year ; and of White friars, or
Carmelites, at Aylesford, in 1240. The religions houses
in Kent before the Reformation were, of the Benedic-
tine order, two abbeys, three priories, and five nunneries;
of the Cluniac, one privry ; of the Cistercian, one abbey;
of Secular canons, five colleges ; of canons Regular, four
abbeys and five priorics; of Dominicans, one priory
and one nunnery; of Franciscans, two priories; of
Trinitarians, one priory ; of Carmelites, three priories:
the number of Alien priorics was four : there were two
commanderies of the Knights of St. John of Jerusalem,
and fifteen hospitals, besides several hermitages, chan-
trics, and free chapels. The principal remains of mo-
nastic buildings are thosc of St. Augustine's abbey,
Canterbury, and the abbeys of Boxley, Bradsole, or St.
Radegund's, and West Malling. Of ancient castles, the
most interesting specimens arc at Canterbury, Chitham,
Rochester, and Dovor ; besides which, there are similar
remains at Allington, Cooling, Hever, Leeds, Leybourne,
Limne, Saltwood, Stutfall, Sutton-Valence, and Tun-
bridge. The great hall of the ancient royal palace at
Eltham is, perhaps, the noblest specimen remaining in
the county of the domestic architecture of the middle
ages. Besides the magnificent buildings of the naval
hospital at Greenwich, with its fine park, anciently and
g0 long a favourite residence of the English sovereigns,
this pleasant and fertile county abounds with elegant
mansions, fine parks, and thriving plantations. Among
the most distinguished of the former may be noticed
Knowle park, anciently a stately residence of the Arch-
bishope of Canterbury, and now that of the Earl of
Plymouth; Penshurst, the ancicnt seat of the Sidney
family; Whaldershare , that of the Earl of Guild-
ford ; and Lee priory, that of Sir S, E. Brydges, Baronet.
Charlton house, the secat of Sir T. M. Wilson, Bart.; and
Summer Hill, that of —— Alexander, Esq., are very
perfect specimens of the domestic architecture of the
reigns of Elizabeth and James I,

A peculiar custom respecting the descent of real
property having always prevailed in this coudity, has
produced a marked distinction between Kent and al-
most evety other county in England, with regard to
the tion of Jand and the nmbn’guﬁe;hnll{d?;
the latt: numerous in it, 8o the Kent-

t Canterbury, Dov d Richborough d nu-’ mdym.;mmm of ‘that ‘important clas
are a 2 or, an ; and nu- “snd most \ i Thet vl
merous other remains, such as , utensils, &c., “of 'British subjects. The name ?,&Hnd. by which
have béen dug up in various parts of the connty, on or thfi’ custom isdpmmny knowh, 1§ merely a modern
near the sites of the several stations. ' provunciation of thé Saxon compound Gafel-kind, Gafel

Owing to number of parishes into which a rent, or Ecknpwied in movey & in
the county ided, the churches are numerous; but, kind, Gafel-kind lxnd, tho

I.‘_nd pdd,ﬂ'!, hl w -. Aa

the™ cathedrals of Canterbury
m its"eeclesiastical bulldings sre in genersl
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trary ¢an be proved; such being regarded and desigoa
“ the common law of Kent," The descent of gavelkind
! in the right line, is to all the sons equally, “but
the harth for fire shall remain to the youngest sonne ;"
if there be one son only, then wholly to such only son,
as at common law. In default of a son the descent is,
as at common law, to all the daughters; if there be
but one daughter, to such daughter alone, The partible
quality in descent amongst males is not limited
to the right or lineal line, but extends likewise
throughout the collateral line, So also the right of
‘ representation’ prevails both lineally and collaterally,
as in common law inheritances. This customary descent
ig not confined to an estate in fee-simple; it extends
also to an estate tail in gavelkind land. The most
important of the customary privileges annexed to all
lands of this nature within the county of Kent are the
following :~1I. That the husband is tenant by the cour-
tesy, of only a moiety of the wife's land of inheritance,
whether he has issue by her or not, and this estate con-
tinues during the period of his widowhood only ; where-
as, by the common law, to make a tenancy by the cour-
tesy there must have been issue born alive of the wife du-
ring the existence of the marriage, and the husband is
tenant of the whole of such lands during his life abso-
lutely.—II. That the wife has dower of a moiety of such
lands of inheritance, whereof the hushand was seized du-
ring espousals, but if she commit fornication, orafterwards
marry, her dower ia forfeited ; whereas, by the common
law she is endowed of ome-third only, to continue for
her life absolutely, 1IIL That the heir should continue
in wardship until fifteen years old, and at that age
he has power to alienate his lands ; whercas, by the
common law, the wardship in socage continues ounly
until the infant attains fourtcen years, and he is inca-
pable of alienating until twenty-one. IV. Ina writ
of right touching gavelkind land, the Grand Assize is
not chosen by four knights, but by four tenants in ga-
velkind, who do not associate to themselves twelve
knights, but twelve tenants in gavelkind. Statutes have
at times been made for disgavelling particular lands in
Kent ; but these statutes, althongh strongly drawn, de-
claring that the lands should thenceforth be to all in-
ten&s as lands at common law, and that they should des-
cend as such lands do, yet it has been adjudged that
they took away the partibility in descent only, and
not the other qualities and customs appertaining to

custom is peculiar to the Weald, within the limits
“which the proof of woodlands having ever paid tithe
lies .on the parson to entitle him to take tithe of it,

contrary to the general custom in other places, where
Proof of the exemption lies the owner; nor has
the Jord . waste within the Weald, the timber ‘growing
thereen helonging to the tenant : the custom which ex-
clades ghe lord ‘from the waste is called land-peerage.
wﬁwﬁfxmtwubmbythem
rinos” Bdward, fourth son of 111, brother of
hix. Majesty, and father of the Princess Victaria
of pir presumptive to the British crown,.
GURCH, a perish i the hundeed of
VEBT y of Hegazrorp, 13 miles (5. W. by 8.)
ofitaining 311 inhabitants. The

e ) dhe and diogese d"&
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ford, rated in the king's books at £10. 12. 34., and in
the putronage of the[grown The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. A school here has an endowment of £8
per annum. A rail-road runs through the parish,

KENTFORD, a parish partly in the hundred of
LAckroRp, but chiefly in that of Rissrinee, county of
Sqryor.x. 44 miles (N. E. by E,) from Newmarket, con-
taining 109 inbabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, with the vicarage of Gazeley, in the archdea-
conry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £7. 3. 4., and in the patronage of the
Master and Fellows of Trinity Hall, Cambridge. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary.

KENTISBERE, a parish in the hundred of Hay-
RIDGE, county of Devow, 34 miles (E. by N.) from
Cullompton, containing, with the parish of Blackborough,
1143 inhabitants, The living is & rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Excter, rated in the king's
books at £27. 18. 114., and in the patronuge of the
Wyndham family. The church, dedicated to St, Mary,
has a finec wooden screen and rood-loft.

,KENTISBURY, a parish in the hundred of Braun-
TON, county of Devon, 8 miles (E. by 8.) from llfra-
combe, containing 307 inhabitants. The Jiving is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £12. 10. 74.
Mr. and Mrs. Sweet were patrons in 1776. There is a
place of worship for Baptists. Mary Jones, in 1783, gave
a small rent-charge for the instruction of children,

KENTISH-TOWN, a chapelry in the parish of
St.Pancras, Holborn division of the hundred of Os-
SULSTONE, county of MippLeskx, 3 miles (N.) from
London, The population is returned with the parish.
This is a pleasant and populous village bevween London
and Highgate : it consists of several handsome detached
houses, with gardens and lawnps, and a line of build-
ings along the road, which is not regularly paved, but
lighted with gas. To the south of the village passes
the Paddington canal, on the banks of which are coal
wharfs : there is a public brewery, and the adjoining
fields are chiefly occupied by cow-keepers. The chapel
is a neat modern building. There are places of worship
for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists. A National
school for three hundred children of both sexes, be-
longing to this place and Camden Town, is supported
by subscription.

KENTMERE, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of KenpaL which is in Kknpar ward; county of Weer-
MORLAND, 9 miles (N. N. W.) from Kendal, containing
212 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £ 600 royal
bounty, and jin the patronage of the Land-owners,
There are quarries of blue slate and limestone in this
township. The river Kent, which rises a little to the
northward, forms a lake here one mile in
Bernard Gilpin, an eminent divine, wag born at this
place in 1617,

. KENTON, a parish in the hundred of Exminsrer,
county of Devon, 83 miles (8, 8, E.) from Exeter, con-
taining 1891 inhabitants. The living isa , in the
archdesconry and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's
books st £34. 13. 4., and in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Salisbury, The. chwrch, dedicated to
All Saints, is a handsome structure in the later style of
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English architecture, and has a rich wooden screen,
on which iz inscribed the Creed, in Latin. There is a
chapel of ease at Star-croee, in this parish, The river
Ex is navigable for large ships along the eastern boun-
dary of the parish. Kenton was once sn ancient bo-
rough, and had a weekly market and an annual fair.
Courts leet and baron are held annuslly by the lord
of the manor. A curious custom prevails here regarding
tenancy, by which the heirs of a tenant, retaining their
occupancy for three descents in succession, establish
their claim to the inheritance.

KENTON, a township comprising Eest and West
Kenton, in that part of the parish of GosrorTa which
is in the western division of CAsTLE ward, county of
NoORTHUMBERLAND, 3§ miles (N. W. by N.) from New-
castle upon Tyne, contai 1204 inhabitants.

KENTON, a parish in the hundred of Loks, county
of Surrorx, 24 miles (N.N.E.) from Debenham, con-
taining 252 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £8, and in the patronage of
Lord Henniker, The church is dedicated to All Saints.

JKENWYN, a parish in the western division of the
hundred of Powpgr, county of CoRNwALL, 4 a mile (N,
w.) from Truro, containing, with a portion of the town
of Truro, which is in this parish, 6221 inhabitants. The
living is a vicarage, united to that of St.Kea, in the arch-
deaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter, rated in
the king's books at £16. The church, dedicated to St.
Cuby, has lately received an addition of one hundred
sittings, of which sixty are free, the Incorporated Society
for the enlargement of churches and chapels having
granted £50 towards defraying the expense. This pa-
rish compriees a considerable part of the environs of the
town of Truro,

KENYON, a township in the parish of Wixwick,
hundred of Wesr DrrpY, county palatine of Lancas-
TER, 1 mile (B, N.E.) from Newton in Mackerfield, con-
taining 396 inhabitants,

KEPWICK, a township in the parish of Over
Siuton, wepentuke of BirororTa, North riding of the
county of York, 74 miles (N.N. E.) from Thirsk, con-
taining 170 inhabitants.

RDISTON, a parish in the hundred of Eynsrorp,
county of NorroLk, 14 mile (N.W. by N.) from Reep-
ham, containing 160 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, with that of Reepham, not rated in the
king's books, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and dio-
cese of Norwich. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

KERESLEY, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
St. MiceazL which is in the county of the city of
CovENTRY, S miles (N. N, W.) from Coventry, containing

386 inhabitants,
EERMINCHAM, a ip in the parish of Swer

TENHAM, hundred of NorTHWICH, county palatine dof -

Cagerzr, 54 miles (N. W.) from Congleton, containing
176 inhabitants.

KERSALL, = hamlet in that part of the of
Kxzesary which is in the northern’ division of the wa-
pentake of TauRGARTON, countyof NovTinGEAM, Gmiles
(8. 2.) from Ollerton, containing ‘63 mhebitants. This
place is in the honpur of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster,
and within the- of‘a‘court of plean heldat
mﬂ’;’”’ hird Tussday, for the retovery of debts
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KERSEY, a parish in the hundred of Cosrorp,
county of Surrorx, 1§ mile (N.W. by W.) from Had-
leigh, containing 621 inhabitants. The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and
diocese of Norwich, and in the patronage of the Provost
and Fellows of King's College, Cambridge. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. In 1580, Robert Nightingale
bequeathed 40s. per annum for the instruction of poor
children, also a tenement, since rebuilt by the parish,
for the residence of three poor familics. Here was a
priory of canons of the order of St. Augustine, dedicated
to St. Mary and St. Anthony, but the periods of its foun-
dation and dissolution are unknown.

KERSWELL (ABBOT'S), a parish in the hundred
of HayToR, county of Devon, 13 mile (8.) from New-
ton-Bushel, containing 437 inhabitants. The livingis a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £11. 1. 8., and in
the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. A Cluniac priory was founded here subor-
dinate to the priory of Montacute in Somersetshire.

KERSWELL (KING'S), a parish in the hundred of
Havror, county of Devon, 24 miles (8. E. by 8.) frum
Newton-Bushel, containing 679 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, with the vicarage of St. Mary
Church, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter
of Exeter. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There
is a place of worship for Independents, end another
for Wesleyan Methodists. A school-house, built by the
Rev. A. Hick, is supported by voluntary contributions.

KESGRAVE, a parish in the hundred of Carrronp,
county of SurroLk, 3§ miles (E. by N.) from Ipswich,
containing 102 inhabitants. The living ix a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, endowed with £800 royal bounty, and £400
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of Sir J. G.
Shaw, Bart.

KESSINGLAND, a parish in the hundred of Mvuz-
rorp and LOTHINGLAND, county of SurroLk, 5} miles
(R.8.W.) from Lowestoft, containing 579 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £10, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Norwich. The church is dedicated to St. Edmund.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
This parish is bounded by the North sea on the east,
where there is & si station.

KESTON, a parish in the hundred of Ruxixy,
lathe of Surron at Honk, county of KeNT, 5 miles
(8. by E.) from Bromley, containing 952 inhabitants.

The living is & rectory, in the exempt deanery
of Shorcham, which is under the pe jurisdiction
and of the Archbishop of ,rated in
the king's books at £6. 10. Holwoeod hill, the residence
of the late Rt. Hon. William Pitt, an eminence
in this parish, and commands % del prospect of the

surroundin : here are traces of a 3
g ooy, Sl o e of o i
Castra ctﬁoad’th'm; and Roman |

different periody. Here 1o a fine cold spring, <

KESWICK, s mmrket town in thet prrt of the pek
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vish of Crosrawarre which ié in ALLEmrpaLe ward
below Darwent, county of CumsErLanD, 27 miles
:{8.8.W.) from Carlisle, and 291 (N.W. by N.) from Lon-
don, contalning 1901 inhabitants. This place is more
‘celebrated for the picturesque beauty of its lake, and
‘the magnificent scenery by which it is surrounded,
than for historical interest. Prior to the time of Ed-
ward I. it was the property of an ancient family, one of
whose descendnnts in the female line, in the reign of
James 1I., was created Earl of Derwentwater. James,
the third earl, having taken part in the rehellion of
1715, was, in the early part of the following year, be-
headed on Tower hill, and his large estates being forfeited
to the crown, were settled upon the commissioners of
Greenwich hospital, to whom the manor now belongs.
The town is romantically situated in a deep valley, on the
banks of the lake Derwentwater, embosomed in hills of
various elevations,and sheltered by the towering Skiddaw,
which crowns the lofty range of mountains that bounds
the northern extremity of the vale. The houses, though
chiefly of stone and generally well built, are ruther neat
than handsome in their appearance. A ncat market-house,
crowned with a turret, was erected, in 1814, by the com-
missioners of Greenwich hospital, for the transaction
of the public business; and there are some good inns
and respectable lodging-houses for the accommodation
of the numerous parties that make this town the
principel station in their tour of the Lakes. There are
two museums, both well supplicd with specimens of the
most curious and valuable minerals and fossils with
which this part of the country abounds. An annual
regatta takes place on the last Thursday and Friday in
August, the sports chiefly consisting of rowing, horse-
racing, and wrestling.
The lake Derwentwater, which is within less than
a mile of the town, and separated from it by rising
ground, is nearly threc miles and a half in length, and
one mile and a half in breadth, of an irregularly ellip-
tical form, and equally remarkable for the perfect tran-
quillity and brilliant transparency of its waters, which
reflect with additional lustre the beautiful and sublime
scenery that adorns its banks. On the bosom of the
lake nre some picturesque islands, of the richest ver-
dure and most luxuriant foliage. Lord's island, of
five acres in extent, was formerly the site of a noble
mansion belonging to the Earls of Derwentwater,
ithe foundations of which, now the only remains,
may, with difficulty, be distinguished in the woods
by which they are overspread. Vicar's island, con-
taining six acres, anciently belonged to the abbey of
Fountains, at the.dissolution of which it was given, by
Heary VII,, to John Williamson, Esq,, and was for
some time inhabited by a company of Dutch miners:
ft js now elegantly laid out in plantations and pleasure
grounds, in the centre of which is & handsome villa, the
residaiicn of General Peachy. Herbert's island,  com-
g four heres, was so called from its having been
mgny ‘years the site of a hermitage occupied by
thal ‘@it of ‘whose cell there are still some faint
yemuing, thowgh almost concealed in the recesses of a
Yorty ‘days remission of penance to
it the hermitage on the suniversary
out twenty years since, the late Sir
"built ‘a small grotto, or’ fishing-
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cottage, on this beautiful island, which is almost in the

centre of the lake. There is also an island, called the

Floating island, which occasionally rises from the bottom,

but constantly adhering by its sides to the earth beneath,

it never chaopes its position: it is covered with reeds

and rushes interspersed with a variety of aquatic plants,

and forms by its sterility a striking contrast to the

others, The smooth surface of the lake is occasionally

gixsturbcd by a visible agitation of the water, when there

18 not a breath of wind in any part, and when the at-

mosphere is perfectly calm : this phenomenon is called

the “ Bottom Wind,” but the cause of it has not been

satisfactorily ascertained. The lake, through which the

river Derwent. has its course, also receives the waters

which in heavy ruins issue in torrents from the fells of
Borrowdale, by which it is bounded on the south : these

falls present a spectacle of awful grandeur, the torrent
tumbling over huge abrupt masses of rugged cliffs,
separated by a tremendous chasm; and near the
south-east extremity of the lake are the falls of Low-

dore, en immense amphitheatre of precipices, from

which the waters, rushing with impetuosity, and fre-
quently interrupted in their descent by projecting rocks,
form a stupendous cataract, the roar of which, when
the violence is aggravated in rainy seasons, may be
heard for many miles. At the extremities of the fall
are Gowder crag, five hundred feet in height, of rude and
terrific aspect, and Shepherd's crag, in the fissures of
which are almost every variety of forest trces, plants,
and flowers, growing with wild luxuriance. Within
this concave range of rugged clifls is a powerful echo,
of which the numerous reverberations are repeated with
great force and distinctness of articulation; a cannon
discharged in this situation produces, on its explosion,
an effect equal to that of a park of artillery, the suc-
cessive reverberations continuing with diminished force
until they gradually dic away. The northern extremity
of the lake is characterised by features of majestic gran-
deur and romantic beauty, the more prominent of which
are the Skiddaw and Saddleback mountains; the for-
mer, three thousand and twenty-two feet above the level
of the sea, of a dark-coloured slate interspersed with
verdure, in several parts affording pesturage for shecp,
and terminating with a double apex almost constantly
enveloped in mist; the latter, undulating with graceful
curve to the height of two thousand seven hundred and
eighty-nine feet, of similar hue with Skiddaw, and
having its wporthern declivity covered with herbage,
and overspread with various mountain plants. In the
distance, the Carrock Fell, two thousand two hundred
and ninety feet in height, is seen among the interesting
group of objects which add so much beauty and mag-
nificence to the scenery for which Keswick and its
vicinity are so deservedly celebrated.

The manufacture of woollen goods is carried on to
some extent, consisting chiefly of kerseys, swansdowns,
toilnets, blunkets, &c.: there are also a carpet: manu-
factory, and a manufactory for. black-lead pencils, the
material for which is obtained in the celebrated mine
at Borrowdale, in this neighbourhood. .The mountains
abound ip mmineral wealth: a mine of lead is now in
successful operation a little below the lake; and upon
Greta river, which passes by the:/town, are corn-mills,
and & | for the manufacture ‘of spades, stythes,
‘and edge tools, The market, held on Saturday, is very
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considerable for corn, which is pitched ; and, in ad.
dition to the varieties of fish which the lake produces
in ‘abundance, it is supplied with wmtton of superior
flavour, and with provisions of every description. The
old shambles, which stood at the morthern end of the
town-hall, were pulled down in 1815, when new ones
were erected. The fairs are on the Saturdays before
Whitsuntide and Martinmas, for servants; and
on the Saturdey next after October 29th, for cheese
and sheep: on the first Thursday in May, and every
other Thursday for six weeks following, there are small
fairs for horses and cattle, and a large cattle market js
held on the 11th of October, The commissioners of
the hospital hold a copyhold court, and a court baron
in May and October, for the recovery of debts under
40s. The parish church stands about three quarters of
a mile north-westward from the town, There are places
of worship for Ind ents and Wesleyan Methodists
in the town, and adjoining it is a building formerly used
as & place of worship by the Society of Friends, but nowa
school of industry for girls. About a mile to the south,
on an eminence, the summit of which forms a level
plain of considerable extent, is a supposed Druidieal
temple. Sir Jobn Banks, Lord Chiet Justice in the
reign of Charles 1., was born here, in 1589 ; during his
absence from homo, Corfe Castle, where he then resided,
was defended against the parlinmentariens by the in-
trepidity of Lady Banks and her daughters, who, assisted
only by their domestics, kept possession of it until
relieved by the royal forces. The workhouse for the
parish was founded by Sir John Banks, who in 1644 be-
queathed £200 for building a manufactory, end lands
now producing £200 per annum, for employing the
poor. Robert Southey, L.L.D., the poet-laureat, resides
at Greta hall, near Keswick. William Green, an emi-

nent landscepe painter, who published, in two volumes,
a description of the Lakes in Cumberland, Lancashire,
and Westmorland, was for sixteen years a resident at
this place.

KESWICK, a parish in the hundred of HoMpLE-
¥ARD, county of NorroLk, S miles (8. 8. W.) from Nor-
wich, containing 104 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, with that of Intwood, in the archdeaconry of Nor-
folk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books
et £5. J. Musket, Esq. was patron in 1789. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary.

KESWICK (EAST), a township in that part of the
parish of Harewoon which is in the lower division of
the wapentake of Sxvrack, West riding of the county
of York, 4 miles (S, W.) from Wetherby, containing
206 inhahitants. Here isa place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists.

KETSBY, a parish in the hundred of Hiez, parts
of LinpeRy, coun ty of I.neour, Bimﬂu (N.N. W)
from Spilsby, containi the parish of South
Ormsby, 261 inhabitants, -Thc!ivhgisumy,with
that.of South Ormsby, united in 1774 to.the vicarage
of Calceby snd the rectory of Driby,in the :urchdea-

conry snd dincese of . Linookn. The chanch, !‘illeh'w
dodicteett to St. Mmrgaret, is in Taing.

KETTERING, » mavket town .and I the
hmdr?: of ;’lr!mu-, county of' NTdm 1l
roiles (N, E. by X.) from Northampton, and 75 (¥. %.)
from Londan, on' thnm road from Londan %0 Lesds,
contsining - 3688 The Saxox wamg of

408

KET

this town was Cyfringham, the emmhgy of which is
uncertain., At the Norman survey the menor and
church belonged to the abbey of Burgh, or Peterborough,
and contimued in the possession of that house until
the dissolution. The town, which is but indifferently
built, is situated on the declivlty of a hill, at the foot of
which flows a small stream, that joins the Ice brook,
a branch of the river Nen. The market-place is & epa-
cious ares, surrounded by good private houses and
ble shops. A reading-society, or book-club, has
been establiched for half & century; snd another has
recently been formed, for the middling and lower classes
of the inhabitants, The manufacture of shoes has been
carried on for many years, affording employment to a con-
giderable number of persons: wool stapling and combing,
and the spinning of worsted yarn, are extensively pur-
sued; the weaving of silk shag for hats has been
recently introduced, and & few persons are employed
in the weaving of ribands and Persians: there are also
two brush manufactories. The market iz on Friday;
and fairs arc held on the Thursday before Easter, Friday
before Whit-Sunday, Thursday before Old Michselmas-
day, aud the Thursday before the festival of St. Thomas.
Courts leet and baron are held annually for the appoint-
ment of constables and other officers; and the petty ses-
sions for Kettering division are holden usually once a fort-
night. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Northampton, and diocvese of Peterborough,
rated in the king's books at £34. 18. 4., endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £200 rnyal bounty, and
in the patronage of Lord Sondes. The church, which is
dedicated to St. Peter, is a handsome edifice in the later
style of English architecture, with a fine tower at the
west end, having double buttresses, and octagonal tur-
rets at thc a.ngles, and surmounted by an octagonal
crocketed spire : round the base of the spire, and con-
nected with the angular turrets, is an embattled para-
pet, enclosing & walk which commands an extensive and
beautiful prospect. There are places of worship for
Baptists, the Society of Friends, Independents, and
Wesleyan Methodists. A free grammar school for
poor children of this parish is endowed with land
producing about £ 120 per annum, the benefaction of a
person unknown. There is likewise a small charity
school for girls; ‘snd a National school is
by voluntary contributions. An hospital for six poor
widows wes founded by Mr. Sawyer, in 1688, angd
sl tly endowed by Martha Beker and others.
Mrs. Rachael Sawyer £100, directing the
interest to be applied in spprentic children ;
and there are several other bequests for charitahle pur-
; In 1726, several coins were discovered here of
m Marcus Aurelius, Constanting, and other Roman
empm m&mw,mmedﬂquﬂem

Britain ; wltha.b:w“ the
8¢, Michael an it, sudother ant
Dr.Jola Gill, anmind mdbthlidcdwhr

was bora here in 1697,
mm“’ ﬂlh in the m of
Humrmwmn 3} mﬁ(l.w
M 176 ihabitete:’

fom ‘?“‘H‘F‘.” Wi e b
hnbm ,&Mhmm«m
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KETTLEBASTON, & parish ia the hundred of Cos-
#ORD, connty of SuproLK, 24 miles (N. W. by W.). from
i contsining 190 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books st
£13. 6. 8. The Rev, Thomas Fiske was patron in 1801.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. The children of a
Sunday school in this parish are partially clothed by
means of a small rent-

KETTLEBURGH, & parish in the hundred of Lozs,
county of SurroLk, 24 miles (S. W. by §.) from Fram-
lingham, containing 360 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £16, and in the
patronage of the Earl of Gosford. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew, The river Deben runs through this

igh,
me.E'l’I‘LEBY, & hamlet in the parish of Wrawsy,
southern divigion of the wapentake of Yarsomoucs,
parts of Linpsey, county of LincoLn, 23 miles (E. by
N.) from Glandford-Bridge. The population is returne
with the parish. :

KETTLESHULME, a township in the parish of
Prestoury, hundred of MaccLesrigLp, county pali-
tine of Coester, 6§ miles (N.E.) from Macclesfield,
containing 354 inhabitants. The Wesleyan Methodists
have & place of worship here, There is a small endow-
ment for the instruction of children.

KETTLESTON, a parish in the hundred of Garrow,
county of NorroLk, 34 miles (E. N. E.) from Fakenham,
containing 230 inhabitants. The living is a dischargel
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £ 10, and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to
All Saints,

KETTLETHORPE, a parish in the wapentake of
WeLL, parts of Linpsky, county of LincoLn, 94 miles
(W.N. W.) from Lincoln, containing, with the hamlets of
Fenton and Laughton, 399 inhabitunts. The living is
8 rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stow, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £28. Sir W. A,
Ingilby, Bart. was patron in 1806. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Peter and St. Paul,

KETTLEWELL, a parish in the castern division
of the wapentake of Staincuirre and Ewcross, West
riding of the county of Yorx, 16 miles (N.E.) from
Settle, containing, with the township of Starbotton, 663
inhabitants, 'The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of York, rated in the king's
‘heoks at £5, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty. R. Tennant, Esq. was patron
in 1786. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, has lately
‘received an addition of one hundred and fourteen sittings,
-«af which seventy-une are free, the Incorporated Society
4o the enlargement of churches and chapels having
wvemted £160 towards defraying the expense. A school
a8 buils by Solomon Swale, and endowed with property
for ite vepair; thmohildmmint;rncudbémof

a rent-charge of 80, per sunum, the donor of which is
wnkpown, . ..

. - KETDON, 'hmup' the perish' of Lu 2
hmram;dm %:}:, mntgh of &Tﬁ
R i e e

KETTON, o parish dn Easx bundred, county of
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RuTLaND, 4 miles (S.W. by W.) from Stamford, con-
taining 797 inhubitents. The living is a dis
Vicarage, with the curacy of Tixover, rated in the king's
books at £8, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the peculiar jurisdiction
and patronage of the Prebendary of Ketton in the Ca-
thedral Church of Lincoln. The clurch, dedicated to
St. Mary, is principally in the early style of English
architecture, but at the west end is an intermixture of
Norman; the date of the south porch is 1232. Here
is & place of worship for Independents. In 1791, Sophia
Eliz. Edwards gave £ 1000 three per cents. for the support
of a school of industry.

KEVERNE (ST.), a parish in the hundred of Ker-
R1ER, county of Cornwary, 94 miles (8. by W.) from
Falmouth, containing 2505 inhabitants, The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £18. 11. 54,
The Rev, James Pascoe wus patron in 1817. There is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A school
was founded and endowed, in 1698, by Sampson Sandys,
for teaching and apprenticing poor children, which has
received subsequent augmentations @ the master receives
a stipend of £15 per annum; and there are gix reading-
schools in the parish, with small salaries for the teachers.
In this parish also arc three fishing coves, named Co-
verack, Porthalla, and Porthonstock, at the first of
which there is a good pier for small vessels, A fair
for cattle is held on (the first Tuesday after Twelfth-day.
The English channel bounds the parish on the east and
south: therc is a sigual station at the extreme southern
point, called Blackhead. Here was formerly a college
of Seculur eavouns, dedicated to St. Achelran, und sub-
sequently a cell of Cistercian monks, subordinate to
Beaulicu abbey in Hampshire,

KEVERSTONE, a joint township with Raby, in the
parish of Staixnror, south-western division of Dan-
LiNnGgTON ward, county palatine of Durnam, 7 miles
(N. E. by L.) from Barnard-Castle, containing 203 inhau-
bitants.

KEW, a parish in the gecond divigion of the hun-
dred of Kinceroxn, county of Suriey, 64 miles (W.
by 8.) from London, containing 683 inhabitants, The vil-
Inge is pleasantly situated ou the southern bank of the
Thames, over which a handsome stoune bridge of seven
arches, replacing a former structure of wood, was crected
in 1789, connecting it with Brentford. George II1,
who resided for a considerable length of time in u
mapsion since called the Nursery, in which most of
the royal family were brought up, and im which his
consort Queen Charlotte died, greatly improved and
extended the gardens, which he united to those of
Richmond, and began to«rect a royal palace in the an-
cient style of English architecture, which, after remain-
ing for eeveral years in an unfinished state, was taken
down in 1828, The royal gardens, which are supposed
w cuntain one of the most extensive and complete col
lections of exotic plants in Europe, are tastefully laid
out, and embellished with temples of the various or-
ders of Grecian architecture, 2 Turkish mosque, and a

Chinese of considerable elevation, from the
summit of which a most extensive pro is obtained
of the scenery on the hanks of the ' , and of the

surrounding country. . The Dukes of Cumberland and
Cambridge have residences on the l;'llth gide of the
352
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green, and.in the environs are several handsome villas.
Kew, formerly a chapelry to Kingston, was constitated
a separate parish by act of parliament in 1770. The
living is a vicarage, with the perpetual curacy-of Peters-
ham, in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and diocese of Win-
chester, endowed with £600 private benefaction, and
£600 rnynl bounty, and in the patronage of the Provost
and Fellows of King's College, Cambridge. The church,
dedicated to St.Anne, was built by subscription among
the inhabitants, in 1714, on a site given by Queen Anne,
as a chapel of ease to the vicarage of Kingston, and
made parochial in 1770 : it was enlarged by George IIL.,
who built the side aisles and the portico; and his late
Majesty, George IV., erected the organ gallery and pre-
sented to the parish theorga.n on which his royal father
bad been accustomed to play. The free school was
founded, in 1721, by Dorothy, Lady Capel, who endowed
it with one-twelfth part of an estate at Faversham, at
present producing about £450 per annum, which sum
i divided by her trustees in the church at Kew among
twelve parishes, of which Kew is one: the sum arising
to each is £37. 10., which, augmented by annual subscrip-
tions, is appmpnated tu the instruction of nincteen boys,
of whom two are apprenticed yearly : the school-house
was erected in 1824, to which his late Majesty munifi-
cently contributed, and granted it the appellation of
““ The King's Free School.”

KLEW (S8T.), a parish in the hundred of Triae,
comnty of CORNWALL, 4} miles (N. E. by N.) from Wade
Bridge, containing 1218 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £19, 11. 04.,
T. Pitt, Esq. was patron in 1777. The church, dedicated
to St. Kew, has considerable remains of painted glass,
There is a small sum for the instruction of children. The
river Camel, on ghe south of this parish, is navigable to
Padstow and the Bristol channel.

KEWSTOKE, a parish in the hundred of WinTER-
STOKE, county of SoMerseT, 9§ miles (N. W.) from Ax-
bridge, containing 420 inhabitants. The living is a
di vic , in the archdeaconry of Wells, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king’s books at
£9. 12. 6., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St.Paul, is in the later style of
English architecture, with Norman portions. A priory
of Augustine canons was founded here about 1210, by
William de Courtenay, and dissolved in 1534, when its
revenue was valued at £110. 18, 4¢.: the remains of
the monastic buildings, now principally converted into
a farm. house, are the chapel, refectory, and barn.

KEXBOROUGH, a townsbhip in the parish of Dag-
Ton, wapeatake of Staincross, West riding of the
county of York, 34 miles (N. W. by W.) from Barneslqy,
containing 440 inhabitants, Jobhn Sylvester, Esg.
erected a school, and endowed it with & rent-charge of
£5 per annum, for which eight children are instracted.

Y, & township in the parish.of Urron, wa-
pm.tnke of Wxry, parts of Lanpazy, county of Lax-
cowLN, 5} miles (8.E.) from Gmmbmugh. oummmg
171 inhahitants.

KEXBY, atolmlhxpln that M of the -
Catrox. which is in the wapentake of Ouzz and Dn-
i gy

rom York, contaiming 14§ inhebitants. .
mm:muw thm#
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RoraLey which is in the eastern division of the hun-
dred of Goscorz, county of LxicesTer, 54 miles (E. by
N.) from Leicester, con 210 - inhabitanta; This
chapelry is within the peculiar jurisdiction of the Lord
of the Manor of Rothley.. -

KEYHAVEN, a tyth:ng in that part of the pur}ah
of MiLvorD which i8 in the hundred of CurreToMuRcH,
New Forest (West) division of the county of Sovrs-
AMPTON, 2% miles (8. 8. W.) from Lymington. The
population is returned with the parish.

KEYINGHAM, e parish in the southern division of
the wapentake of HoubrnrnEss, East riding of the county
of York, 5 miles (8, E. by E.) from Hedon, containing
639 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books "at £1%2, endowed with £600
royal bounty, and £1200 parliementary grant, and in
the patronage of the Archbishop of York. The church
is dedicated to St. Nicholas. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Mecthodists. In 1802, Edward Ombler,
Esq. bequeathed £200, directing the interest to be ap-
propriated to the education of children ; and in 1807,
Edward Marriott bequeathed the residue of his estate,
amounting to £255 four per cents, for a similar purpose.

KEYMER, a parish comprising North and South
Keymer, in the hundred of BurrinesiLy, rape of Lewss,
county of Sussex, 2} miles (E.8. E.) from Ilnrstp:erra-
point, containing 679 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, annexed to the rectory of Clayton, in
the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester.
The church is in the early style of English architecture.

KEYNE (ST.), & parish in the hundred of WesT,
county of CorNwaLL, 24 miles (8.) from Leskeard,
containing 153 inbabitants, The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeuconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £5. 18. 64., and
in the patronage of Lieut. Cory, R.N. The church is
dedicated to St. Kayne, who lived in the fifth century,
and is said to have been the daughter of Braganus,
Prince of Brecknockshire. Near the church is 8t.
Kayne's well, long celebrated in legendary tules for its
peculiar virtues : the roof of the enclosure supports, in
e singular manner, five trees, two of oak, two of ash,
and one of elm, planted more than half a century ago.
The Looe navigation passes on the eastern side of this
parish,

KEYNSHAM, & parish (formerly a market town)
in the hundred of Keynsman, county of SOMRRSET, 74
miles (W.N.W.) from Bath, containing 1761 inhabit-
ants. The living is 8 daschargad , in the arch-
desconry of Bath, and diocese of . Bath and Wels,
rated in the king's books at £11..38:7.; endowed with
£200 roysl bounty, and in the. of the Duke
of Buckingham, The church {s e spacious edifice in
the later style &qui!hmw- The town is
situsted wpon_the river Awon, wiich is navigable hasce
to Bsth, sud aeross uhmwaphm;mm
cesterghire : on this river wre dome mills
a brass and -copper et . 5
held fwmw;mamm for the.ses
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widows, who receive £ 4 each per annum. An abbey of
Black -canbns was founded, by William, Earl of Glou-
eester, about 1170, and dedicated to the Virgin Mary,
8t. Peter, and St. Paul : its: revenue, at the dissolution,
was valued at £450. 3. 6. In this parish iz a mineral
spring of reputed efficacy in ophthalmia.

KEYSOE, a parish in the hundred of StropnEN,
county of BepPorD, 4§ miles (8.5.W.) from Kimbolton,
containing 649 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of
"Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8, endowed with
£300 private bepefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Trinity
College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. There is a place of worship for Baptists.
KEYSTON, = parish in the hundred of Lergrron-
sronE, county of HunTiNGDON, 3 miles (8.E. by E.)
from Thrapston, containing 196 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks at £29. 5.
Earl Fitzwilliam was patron in 1807. The church is
dedicated to St. John the Baptist,

KEYTHORPE, & liberty in that part of the parish
of Tuveny which is in the hundred of GARTREE, county
of LurcksTer, 9 miles (N. by E.) from Market-Harbo-
rough, containing 26 inhabitants,

KEYWORTH, a parish in the northern division of
the wapentake of RusBCLIPFE, county of NoTTIiNGHAM,
64 miles (8.5.E.) from Nottingham, containing 454 in-
habitants, The living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £7. 5., and in the patronage of H. Keyworth,
Esq. The church, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, has
a curious tower, with one smaller erected upon it. There
are places of worship for Independents. This parish
is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and
within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at Tut-
ury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s.

KIBBLESTONE, a liberty in the parish of STonE,
southern division of the hundred of PirgHILL, county
of STAFFORD, containing 1089 inhabitants, This was
amciently a large park, and there are still the vestiges of
some large fish-ponds, one of which supplies a stream
that falls into the Trent at Walton bridge, tarning in
its courte several mills for grinding flints used at the
potteries. At Meaford, within this liberty, is an old
mansion, long possessed by the Jervis family, in which
the gallant admiral, Earl St. Vincent, was born, and
whieh is now occupied by his nephew, Viscount St.
Vincent, Baron Meaford. There is a petrifying spring
isming out of the rocks near Catwalton. _

 KIBBLESWORTH, a township in that part of the
pamish of CazsTe® le SPREET which is in the middle
division, of Craestar ward, county palatine of Dunuam,
5 miles (8.) from Gateshead, containing 237 inhabitants.

KIBWORTH-BEAUCHAMP, a parish in the hun-
dred .of  Gamrarz, county of LEicestsm, 54 miles
(%, W.) fram. Market-Harborough, comprising the cha-
pelpy . .of Kibwowth.Harcourt, and the township of
Smeeton-Wesserby, and containing 1372 inhabitants.
The lizing is a.qeetory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
. dincese. . of Lianoln, wated in the king's books at
£39.45,; susd in. the patronage of the Warden and Fel-
lows of Mevtan Gollegn; Oxford. The church, dedicated
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to St. Wilfrid, is a spacious edifice, with a tower sup-
porting a spire nearly one hundred and sixty feet high.
There are places ‘of worship for Independents and Wes-
leyan Methodists. A free grammar school was founded,
in 1709, by Sir Nathaniel Edwards; the school-house
was rebuilt in 1775. The Union cenal passes through
the parish ; and at Smecton-Westerby there is a small
chalybeate spring. Dr. John Aikin, an ingenious phy-
gician and public writer, (brother of Mrs. Barbauld and
of Lucy Aikin, likewise celebrated muthoress of several
valuahle works,) was born here in 1747, and died at
Stoke-Newington in 1822. )

KIBWORTH-HARCOURT, a chapelry in the pa-
rish of KieworTH-BrAUCHAMP, hundred of GARTREE,
county of Leicester, 5§ miles (N.W. by N.) from Mar-
ket - Harhorongh, containing 396 inhabitants. The
chapel has been demolished. In this chapelry are the
remains of an ancient encampment, consisting of a
large mount encompassed by a noat.

KIDBROOKE, a liberty (anciently a parich) in the
hundred of Bracknearsa, lathe of Surrox at Honeg,
county of KenT, € miles (8.8.W.) from Woolwich, con-
taining 78 inhabitants, Cecilia, Countess of Hereford,
in the 5th of Henry VI, gave this place, to the prior
and convent of St. Mary Overy, in Southwark, who ob-
tained from the Bishop of Rochester a grant of impro-
priation. In old records, the church, which has long
heen demolished, is described as a rectory, but a few
years since the civil authorities of Charlton endeavoured
to shew that Kidbrooke was only a hamlet belonging to
that parish : it now chooses its own officers, and main-
tains its own poor. A free chapel has lately been
erected by Dr. Greenlaw, who is the officiating minister.
Kidbrooke gives the title of baron to the family of
Hervey, Marquises of Bristol.

KIDDAL, a joint township with Potterton, in the
perish of Barwick in ELmETT, lower division of the
wapentake of Skymack, West riding of the county of
Yomrk, 74 miles (N.E. by E.) from Leeds, containing 124
inhabitants.

KIDDERMINSTER, &
perish in the lower division
of the hundred of Havr-
gHIRE, county of Worces-
TER, comprising the incor-
porated market town of Kid-
derminster, having separate
jurisdiction, the chapelry of
Lower Mitton, and the ham-
let of Wribbenhall, and con-
taining 15,296 inhabitants,
of which number, 10,709
are in the town of Kidderminster, 14 miles (N.) from
Worcester, and 126 (N. W.by N.) from London. Its
ancient name was Chiderminster, Kid, or Chid, signitying,
in ancient British, the brow of a hill, Duwr, water,
and Minster,a church; an etymology highly character-
istic of its sitnation. At the time of the Conquest
it was a royal manor, and continued #o until the
reign of Henry II., when it passed into private hands,
and among ite possessors was Waller the poet. The
town is situated on the eastern bank of the river
Stour, about three miles from its confluence with the
Severn: it is of an i ar form, oontains several good
and well-built houses, but the greater part consists of
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emall dwellings inhabited by the workmen employed in
the different factories. Thc cntrances to the town are
ious; in those from Worcester, Bridgenorth, and
Bewdley, ‘Where improvements have been made by cut-
ting away the rock to lower the road, houses have
been excavated in the sides of the rock. The town is
well paved, and lighted with gas, and the inhabitants
are emply supplied with water, In the reign of
Henry VIII. Kidderminster was noted for the manu-
facture of broad cloths, to-which, at different periods, suc-
ceeded lingey-woolseys, friézes, and tammies and flower-
ed stuffs, About the year 1735 the manufacture of car-
pets was introduced, which has continued to flourish
with progressive improvement, and now constitutes the
staple trade of the town. On its introduction the
Scotch carpets were the principal articles made, but the
Wilton and Brussels carpets (the former begun by the
grandfather of the present Mr. Broom, in 1745,) have
been within the last few years brought to a high degree
of perfection: the elegance and variety of the patterns,
the brilliancy and permanency of the colours, arising, as
it is & , from the peculiar property of the water
of the Stour in fixing the dyes, and the great improve-
ment in their, texture, have given to the carpets of Kid-
derminster a decided superiority over those of every
other place. In 1772, the number of carpet-looms was
shout two hundred and fifty; at present there are
nearly onc thousand six hundred. A considerable
quantity of carpets is constantly being exported to al-
most every part of the kingdom. From a rcturn to
parliament it appears that, of the whole quauntity of
wool produced in the kingdom, one twenty-eighth part
is consumed here in the weaving of carpets. The trade
in bombazines is also carried on, but not to the same
extent as formerly: in 1772, here were onc thousand
seven hundred silk and worsted looms ; at present there
are not more than one-fifth of that number. In the
town and neighbourhood ere five spinning:mills; but
s great quantity of the yarn is obtained from Halifax,
and other towns in Yorkshire. On the banks of the
Stour are several dye-houses, in connexion with the
various manufactories. The Staffordshire and Worces-
tershire canal passes through the.town to Stourport,
where it joing the river Severn, by which a medium
of conveyance by water is afforded to sll parts of the
kingdom, and a supply of coal and other useful com-
modities ig obtained. The market, days are Thursday,
chiefly for corn, and Saturday for provisions : the fairs
are, the last Monday in January, the Monday before
Easter; Ascension-day, June 20th, September 4th, and
the last Monday in November. The market- phce{hu
bmgmtlyeﬂargedbythemomhon,at an eXpense
of £10,000, and is in eeparate divisions.for
-the varivus kinds of goods expoted for sale, s
Kidderminster was a -borough by preacription, and
sent members to parliament in the 28rd of Edward 1.,
stnce which time it bas made no retwrn. ¥t received a
charter of incorporation in the twelfth year of the reign
of Charles 1., Mmechmntmmfamm
pm'bed:&ugust 81st, 1897, by which
of the town is vested in a
high bailiff, a low bailiff; twelve uldsrmm (m

thehghbdllﬂ)tmtj«ﬁum with & town ek, -
soustebles, 8. . The high- bail admtad - noaslly
by the aldermen; from among their-own bedy: « ik sies
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guler custom has prevailed at the elsction of: this
chief magistrate, when the people assemble in the prin.
cipal streets to throw cabbage stalks at each other : - the
bell at the town-hall gives the signal for the commence.
ment of the municipal affray, which, from its duration
and the mode of procedure, is called the *“ lawless hour.”
When it is over, the bailiff elect and the other members
of the corporation, in their robes, parade the streets,
preceded by flags, drums, and trumpets, inviting the
principal families in the neighbourhood to meet and
throw applee at them : but this custom has of late been
falling into disuse, The high bailiff, the late bailiff, the
recorder, and the three semior aldermen, are justices of
the peace, and hold quarterly courts of session for the
borough, on the Friday in the week in which the general
quarter sessions for the county are held, for the trial of
all offenders not charged capitally, A court of requests
is also held every fortnight, by commissioners appointed
under an act passed in the 12th of (eorge 1II., for the
recovery of debts under 40s., the jurisdiction of which
exfends over the whole parish. The town-hall is a neat
building of brick; the lower part is appropriated as
shops, and the upper part to the holding of the courts
and the transaction of the public business of the cor-
poration : it also contmins a spacious assembly-room, .
and under the building is a small prison for the con-
finement of malefactors prior to their committal to the
county gaol.

The living is a vicarage with the curacy of Mitton, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated-in the
king's books at £30. 15. 74., and in the patronage of
Lord Foley. The church, dedicated to St. Mury, is a
spacious and venerable structure, partly in the decorated,
and partly in the later, style of English architecture, with
a handsome square embattled tower, strengthened with
-buttresses, and crowned with pinnacles : the walls of
the nave and sisles are finished with panelled battle-
ments, and the whole exterior of the building, which
occupies the summit of a hill overlooking the river, has
an imposing grandear of appearance; the chancel,
which is in the decorated style, contains several ancient
monuments and recumbent figures ; the nave is scpa-
rated from the esisles by a beautiful series of pointed
arches and clustered columns, and lighted by a fine
range of clerestory windows enriched with t tra-
cery, A new church, dedicated to 8t. Geo! con-
taining two thousand and three sittings, of which one
thousand two hundred and eighty-nine ave free, was
built by grant from the parli "pommissioners,
in 1824, at an expense of £16,131. 4.8., to which was
added £2000 raised by the inhabitawts : it is a hand-
some structure in the: style of English architecture,
with a lofty end richly-ornamented tower, and, stending

on an eminénce, forms a feature - in' ‘the
view of the town : the is embellished with «
representation of the .drom the Cross; weven-in
mpetowo!k wﬁwmaemmﬂ*
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which is a donative, in. the gift of Lord Foley. There
ave places of worship for Baptists, Indcpendents, Wes-
leyan Methodists, and Unitarians.

‘The free grammar school is of uncertaln origin: it
was made & royal foundation by charter of Charles 1., and
has an endowment in lands and tenewents, from the
produce of which the head master reccives a salary of
£260, and the second master one of £130 per annum :
they are chogen by trustees appointed under the charter,
and have cach e house rent-free, and the privilege of
taking private pupils: this school is entitled to the
fifth of six scholarships founded in Worcester College,
Oxford, by Sir Thomas Cookes, from which the can-
didates for his fellowships in that college are cho-
sen. An ancient chapel adjoining St. Mary's church
has been for many years appropriated to the use of the
school. A free school was also founded, in 1795, by
Mr. Nicholas Pearsall, who endowed it with a sum of
money for providing a salary for the master, by whom
twenty-five boys, chiefly dissenters, receive the rudiments
of a classical and commercial education. A National
school for boys was erected in 1817 ; and there is one for
girls, originally founded as a small charity school in
1730 : in the former two hundred and thirty boys, and
in the latter one hundred and nincty girls, are taught
reading, writing, and arithmetic, and about twenty in
each arc clothed. St. George's National school was
bailt, in 1827, by subscription, aided by a grant from
the National Society, for the instruction of two hundred
and fifty children of each sex; and there are various
other institutions of a similar kind, supported by sub-
scription, some of which have small endowinents. An
infant school has heen recently established, in which arc
ome hundred and fifty children, but no building has yet
been erected for the purpose. The dispeusary was esta-
blished in 1824, and the huilding erccted on a site near
the old church, given for that purpose by William Lea,
Esq., of Stone: the institution is under the direction of
a president, vice-president, and a committee of governors,
by whom a resident surgeon is appointed, with a salary of
£100 per annum : it receives also the gratuitous attend-
amce of the members of the medical profession in the viei-
nity. There are six almshouses founded, in 1629, by Sir
Edward Blount, for six aged men and their wives, who
receive £8 per annum each. H, Higgins, Esq., in 1684,
bequeathed four m for the samme-purpose, to
which a fifth has been added, for aged persons nominated
by the corporation: the inmates live rent-free, but have
nn-pecuniary allowance. Two houses were also given in
trust to the corporation for the same use, by Sir Ralph
Clare, . B. There are various charitable donations and
mbml for distribution among the poor. On Wassall
abeut half a mile from the hank of the Severn,

;
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on being ejected from his ministry, he established an
Independent congregation, consisting of a number of
his pm:lahinners who, having adhered to his ministry
When ejected from his living, are supposed to have formed
the first separate church of that denomination.

KI]J_DINGT(JN, n parish comprising the hamlet of
Over Kiddington in the hundred of CmaprineTON,
and that of Nether Kiddington in the huudred of
'_Wuo‘!_'rnn, county of Oxvorp, and containing 252
inhabitants. Nether Kiddington is 8% miles (E.8.E.),
and Over Kiddington 84 (S.E. by E.), from Neat Enstone,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Oxford, rated in the king's booksat £7. 9. 44,
and in the patronage of Lord Viscount Dillon. The
church, dedicated to St. Nicholas, and situated in Ne-
ther Kiddington, is snpposed to have been built abont
the year 1400 ; but the chancel is evidently of earlier
date, having probably belonged to the original edifice.
In 1466, the emoluments of the ancient rectory of As-
terley being considered inadequate for the support of
an incumbent, they were formally incorporated with
those of this rectory, and thenceforth both parishes
hecame npited under the name of Kiddington. There
is a farn-house still called Asterley, which claims the
privilege of being extra-parochial; and in a large
field, termed Chapelbreke, are the supposed sites of the
ancient church, mansion-house, and village of Asterley ;
foundations, mouldings of lancet windows, and other
fragments of old masonry, having from time to time
been discovered on the spot. A branch of the river
Isis runs through the parish. In the gardens of a pri-
vate mansion in this village is an ancient stone font,
found in the chapel of Edward the Counfessor at Islip,
where was a royul palace, stated, by tradition, to have
been that in which the monarch was baptized, in 1010,
The ancient road Akeman-street runs through the pa-
rish. In Hill wood are visible traces of a Roman en-
campment ; and at other places in the neighbourhood
are vestiges of earth-works.

KIDLAND, an extra-parochial liberty, in the western
division of CoaureTpALE ward, county of NorTRUM-
BERLAND, 12 miles (N.W. by W.( from Rothbury, con-
taining 62 inhabitants,

KIDLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Woor-
ToN, county of Oxromrp, 4 miles (E,8.E.) from Wood-
stock, comprising the townships of Gosford, and Wa-
ter-Eaton, and the hamlet of Thrup, and containing
1153 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage not in
charge, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford,
and annexed to the Headship of Exeter College, Ox-
fogd. The church is dedicated to St.Mary. There is
a small endowment, the bequest of Roger Almont, for
teaching two children,

KIGBEAR, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
OaxEaMproN which is in the hundred of Brack Tor-
RINGTON, county of Devon, 3% miles (W, by N.) from

n, con 116 inhabitants.

KILBOURNE, & township in the parish of Hoxs-
axY, hundred of MorLEsTON and LiTcHURCEH, county
of Derpy, 6% miles (N.N.E.) from Derby, containing
498 inhabitants.

KILBURN, a hamlet In the - of Sr. Jomnw,
Hamesrsap, Holborn division of the hundred of Os-
svieronz, county of MippizsEx, S miles (W.N.W))
from Londen. The¢ population is retwned with the
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parish, The village, which is situated on the ancient
Watling-street, on the road to Edgware, contains some
good houses occupied by genteel families, the short dis-
tance from the metropolis rendering it a desirable place
of residence. There is a medicioal spring, called Kil-
hurn wells, the water of which possesses aperient pro-
perties. Near the close of the reign of Henry I, a
Benedictine nunnery, dedicated to the Blessed Virgin
Mary and St. John the Baptist, was founded here on
the site of an ancient hermitage, the revenue of which,
at the dissolution, was estimated at £121, 16.

KILBURN, a parish partly in the wapentake of
BirorortH, North riding, and partly within the liberty
of Ripon, West riding, of the county of York, com-
prising the township of Hood with Osgoodby-Grange,
and Kilburn, and containing 530 inhabitants, of which
number, 500 are in the township of Kilburn, 7 miles
(N. by w.) from Easingwould. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and dio-
cese of York, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
£200 royal bounty, and £1000 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Archbishop of York. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a trifling sum, the gift
of Ann Berry, in 1768, for the education of one girl.

KILBY, a parish in the hundred of GuraLAXTON,
county of LricesTer, 64 miles (8.8.E.) from Leicester,
contuining 409 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeacoury of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, endowed with £500 private benefaction,
£ 1000 royal bounty, and £ 600 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of Sir H. Halford, Bart. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene.

KILDALE, a parish in the western division of the
liberty of LANGBAURGH, North riding of the county of
Yomrk, 5% miles (E. by N.) from Stokesley, containing
209 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory,
in the archdcaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £10. 3. 4. R. Bell Livesay,
Esq. was patron in 1811, The church, dedicated to
St. Cuthbert, is = very encient structure, said to have
been founded at an carly period of the Saxon octar-
chy: near it is the site of an old castle. About 1312,
the friars of the order of the Holy Cross began to erect
an oratory here, but the work having been interdicted
by Archbishop Grenfield, it was abandoned.

KILDWICK, a parish in the eastern division of the
wapentake of Sraincrirrg and Ewcross, West riding
of the county of York, comprising the chapelry of
Silsden, and the townships of Bradley's Both, Cowling,
Farnhill with Cononley, Glusburn, Kildwick, Steeton
with Eesburn, Stirton with Thorlby, and Sutton, gnd
containing 8605 inhabitants, of which number, 175 are

in the township of Kildwick, 4 miles (8.8.E.) from .

Skipton, The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean of York, rated in the
king's books at £10. 8. 14., endowed with £200 pﬂvate
benefaction, and £200 royeal bounty, and in the
age of the Dean and Canons of ChnstChuch,Wm‘d.
The church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is pfrmoipﬂlyia
the later style of English architectore.

KILGWRRWG, a parish in the upper division of the

/i the

hundred of Rascranp, countyof Mexmours, 5}. m&
{I.S.E‘)'from Usk, containing 113 inhabitants.
living perpetual cumacy,: prchdesconry’ and
diocese of | Llandaff, endowed with €800 royal Bounty,
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and £200 parliamentary grant, sod in the trtmxge of
the Rev. Mr, Birkin. Gl
KILHAM, a township in the parish of Kirx-Nxw-
ToN, western divigion of GLENDALE ward, county of
NortHUMBERLAND, 74 miles (W.N.W.) from Waoler,
containing 246 inhabitants,
KILHAM, a parish partly within the liberty of
St. PETER of Yoax, and partly in the wapentake of
Dickering, East riding of the county of Yorx, 54
miles (N. N. E.) from Great Driffield, containing 971 in-
habitunts. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Dean of
York, rated in the king's hooks at £6. 13. 4. The
church, dedicated to All Saints, is a stately edifice.
There are places of worship for Baptists and Wesleyan
Methodists. The town, pleazantly situated on a decli-
vity of the Wolds, now consists of one irregular street,
extending from cast to west nearly one mile and a quar.
ter, hut was once a much larger place, vestiges of founda-
tions having been often discovered. 1t had anciently a
market, which, from the vicinity and greater convenience
of that at Great Driffield, had long been declining, and
is now entirely discontinued, Fairs for cattle are held
on Aagust 21st and November 12th ; the latter is also
a statute fair. A free school was founded, in the 9th
of Charles 1., by John, Lord D' Arcy, who endowed it
with a rent-charge of £30, for which sum, and trifling
quarterages paid by the pupils, from cighty to ons
hundred children are instructed. A branch of the river
Hull has its source in the parish; and at Hempit Hole
a remarkable intermittent spring, called the Gipsey,
issues with such violence from the earth as to form en
arch sufficiently elevated for a man on horseback to
pass beneath it. Near the Rudston road is a fine mi-
ueral spring, possessing medicinal properties.
KILKHAMPTON, a parish in the hundred of
STrATTON, county of C()RNWA.L]’, 34 miles (N. by E.)
from Stratton, containing 1024 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeacoury of Cornwall, and dio-
cese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £26. 3. 114.
Lord Carteret was patron in 1810, The church, de-
dicated to St. James, is remarkable for the sin
richness of its architecture, particularly the south door-
way, which is 8 beautiful specimen of the Norman-style,
exhibiting shafts and bands of zig-zag mouldings, with
the beak-headed ornaments; some other portions of the
fabric are of much later date : it contains an enriched
pulpit, a yery ancient font, and several handsontie Thonu-
ments, the most striking of which is one o the memory
of the renowned warrior Sir Beville Greaville, Earl of
Torbill, and Lord of Thorigny ead Gremville, in France
sndNurmmd descepded in a direct, Hime from Robert,
second son of Ralloc?rnt Duke of Normandy, and stain
in the parliamentary war, at {heé battle of Lansdown,
July 5th, 1643. One of his ancestars, Who came over with
the Cmqueror is said to have fettaded the church. This
bad anciently a mazket, "!'ha'emfa:lr- on Holy
ursday, the third Thuisday following, an ualw
eath ﬁ’:;ﬁhtmd' sa¢ eonsiderable cattle fairs, Bt

hinfholmndre& *{m
lir,ﬁmﬂu (N E.) fr *ﬂhﬂ:
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archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry. The church, dedicated to St. Giles, is partly
in the Norman style. At the Norman survey this place
was called Chinewoldemaresc, and the manor was for-
merly held by the tenure of providing a horse of the
value of five shillings, with a sack and a spur, for
the king's army in Wales. Robert Turie, in 1720, be-
queathed & rent-charge of £7. 10.; which sum, with
the produce of sundry other gifts, amounting together
of ahout £22, is paid for the instruction of twenty-five
children. The Chesterfield canal, and a railway com-
municating with the coal mines in the vicinity, pass
throngh the parish.

KILLCOT, a joint tything with Boulsdon, in the
parish of NewgnT, bundred of BortLok, county of
GLOUCESTER, containing 408 inhabitants.

KILLERBY, a township in the parish of Heiening-
TON, though entirely surrounded by that of Gainford,
south-eastern division of DARLINGTON ward, county
palatine of Duraam, 7 miles (N. W. by W.) from Dar-
lington, containing 107 inhabitants,

KILLERBY, a township in that part of the parish
of CatrErick which is in the eastern division of the
wapentake of Hang, North riding of the county of
Yonrk, 2 miles (S. E. by E.) from Catterick, containing
48 inhabitants.

KILLINGHALL, a township in that part of the
parish of Rirrey which is in the lower division of the
wapentake of Craro, West riding of the county of
Yonrk, 1 mile (8. by E.) from Ripley, containing 519 in-
habitants, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists.

KILLINGHOLME, a parish comprising North and
South Killingholme, in the eastern division of the wa-
pentake of YArsorouGH, parts of Linpsey, county of
LincoLN, 12 miles (N. W. by W.) from Great Grimsby,
containing 438 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, with that of Harbrough, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£7.18. 4. Lord Yarborough was patron in 1792.
The church is dedicated to St. Denis. There are places
of worship for Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists.

KILLINGTON, a chapelry in the parish of Kirknpy-
LonspaLe, LonspaLk ward, connty of WESTMORLAND,
7% miles (N.) from Kirkby-Lonsdale, containing 335
inhabitants. The living is & perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Richmond, and Ecesc of Chester, en-
dowed with £400 private benefaction, and £600 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Kirkby-
Lonsdale, The chapel was re-pewed in 1824. A school
is. endowed with £7 per annum, for which, and trifling
q , sixteen children receive instruction: the
school-room was built by subscription. Killington hall,
now g farm-house, is an ancient tower-building, long
the residence of the Pickerings.

KILLINGWORTH, a township in the parish of

NG Brnton, eastern division of CasTLk ward, county
of NorrayMmaerLaND, 5§ miles (N, E. by N.) from New-
castle m% The population is returned with
the parish, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. Coal is obtained here. On Killingworth
moor the Newcastle races were held till 1790, when it
" KILLPECR, o o in tb division of

’ K, & in the upper division
thevhmchl';d of Womm county of Herzrorp, 63

oL, 11,
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mil!:!‘ (8. W.) from Hereford, containing 265 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Hereford, roted in the king's hooks at
£4. 11 8, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Gloucester, The church, dedicated to &t. Day id, has
some fine portions in the Norman style of architecture,
It was given by Tlhigh Fitzwilliam (whose family as-
sumed the name of Kilped), con of the Conqueror, to
the abbey of St, Peter, Gloncester, in 1134, und became
a cell_uf Bluck monks subordinate thercta till its sup-
pression.  The ancient castle of the Kilpees fell early
to ruin, since, in the time of Edward 1. a part only of
the walls was remaining.

KILMERSDON, a parish in the hundred of Kin-
MERSDON, county of Somerser, 6 miles (N. W. by W.)
from Frome, comprising the hunlets of Charlton, Coleford,
Kilmersdon, Kilmersdon-Common, Luckington, and Ly-
peat, and containing 1991 inhabitants, The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, with the perpetual curacies of Ashwick
and Coleford unnexed, in the archdeacoury of Wells,
and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the kin 's books
at £6. 18, 64., and in the patronuge of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, is extremely
light and clegant, and kas a lofty tower. A new chureh
is in progress of erection at Coleford. There are two
places of worship for Methodists and one for Presby-
teriang.  The Rev, Thomas Shute, in 1719, gave a rent-
charge of £20 towards the support of a school for
forty children, to which Mrs. Mary Freeman, in 1760,
bequeathed £)00, to be placed at interest for repairs
and for the purchase of books,

KILMESTON, a parish in the hundred of FawwLey,
Fawley division of the county of Sourmameron, 44
miles (8.) from New Alresford, containing 212 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy, wiih the rectory
of Cheriton, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the incumbent,
Eight poor children are instructed for a trifling sum
left by Dame Mary Sadler. Kilmeston is within the
jurisdiction of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester
every Thursday, for the recovery of debts to any
amount.

KILMINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Ax-
MINsTER, county of Drvon, 1% mile (W.by8.) from
Axminster, containing 484 inhabitants, The living is a
perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Axmiuster,
in the archdeacoury and diocese of Exeter.  The church
is dedicated to St. Giles. The river Axe runs through
the parish. There isa fair for cattle on the first Wednes-
day in September. Kilmington has the privilege of
sending two boys to Axminster free school.

KILMINGTON, a parish in, and forming a detached
portion of, the hundred of Nonrron-Ferris, county
of Someiskr, 63 miles (E. by N.) from Bruton, con-
taining 556 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king's books at £21. 9, 4, The
Farl of Ilchester was patron in 1811, The church is
dedicated to St. Mary: in it lie the remains of Mr.
Hartgill and his son, both murdered, in the reign of
Queen Mary, by Lord Stourton and four others, who
were convicted and executed ; his lordship at Salisbury,
in a silken halter, and his accomplices near the spot
where the foul deed was perpetrated. About two miles
gouth-west from the church is a small oval intrench-
ment, called Jack's Castle, supposed to ha.v§ becn the

3
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site of a Danish camp or fortress ; and at the south-
western  extremity of the parish, near Stourhead, is a
triangular brick tower, one hundred and fifty-five feet
high, erected, in 1772, by Henry Hoare, Egq,, with an
inscription commemorative of Alfred the Great and his
victories over the Danes.

KILNSAY, a hamlet in the parish of BurnsaLy,
castern division of the wapentake of STaiNcLIFFE and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 11 miles
(E.N.E.) from Settle. The population is returncd with
the chapelry of Coniston.

KILNSEA, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of Houprnness, Enst riding of the county
of Yonrx, 84 miles (8. E. by E.) from Patrington, con-
taining, with Spurm, 196 ivhabitants. The living is a
discharged viearage, in the archdeaconry of the East
riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £6. 8. 6., endowed with £600 royal bounty. L.
Thompson, Esq. was patron in 1813. The church, de-
dicuted to St, Helen, has been suffered to fall to ruin,
heing sitwated o near the brink of the ¢liff, upon which
the sea ig continually encroaching, that it must ulti-
mately have been swept away; a part of the cemetery
having already disappeared.

KILNWICK, u parish in the Brinton-Beacon divi-
sion of the wapentuke of Harruiir, East riding of the
county of York, comprising the chapelry of Beswick,
and the townships of Bracken, Kilnwick, and a portion
of Lockington, and containing 576 inhabitants, of which
number, 230 are in the township of Kilnwick, 7 miles
(5.8.W.) from Great Driflield. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and
diocese of York. Charles Grimston, Esq. was patron
in 1817. The church is dedicated to All Saints,

KILNWICK-PERCY, a parish in the Wilton-Bea-
con division of the wapentake of HarrmiLr, East
riding of the county of York, 2 miles (E.N.E.) from
Pocklington, containing 43 inhabitants, The living is
& discharged vicarage, in the peculiar juriediction and
patronage of the Dean of York, rated in the king's
books at £4. 16. 3., and endowed with £600 royal
bounty. The church is dedicated to St. Helen.

KILPIN, a township in the parish of Howpex,
wapentake of Howprnsairs, East riding of the county
of York, 2 miles (8. E. by B.) from Howden, containing
318 inhabitants.

KILSBY, a parish in the hundred of FawsLrey,
county of NorTHAMPTON, 5% miles (N. by W.) from
Daventry, containing 690 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, annexed to the Precentorship in the Cathedral
Church of Lincoln, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books

at £14, and endowed with £200 royal bounty: there"

is also a discharged vicarage, rated in the king’s books
at £7, and iu the of the Precentor. The
church is dedicated to St. Faith. There iz a place of
worship for Independents. The Oxford canal passes
through the parish, and the anclent Watling-street
marks its western boundary, A bequest from Abrahem
Cowley, Esq,, in land £18 a year, is. given
to the poor in money and a small portion of it
being applied also to the instruction of children.
KILTON, a parish in the hundred of WiLiiron
and Frexmawnens, county of Somemser, ‘10§ miles
(N.'W, by W.) from Bridg-water, conthinig 149 inha-
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bitants. The living is a discharged vicsrage, in the
archdeaconry of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and
‘Wells, rated in the king's books at £7, 6. 10, and in
the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to St. Nicholas.

KILTON, a township in the parish of BrotroNn,
castern division of the liberty of Lancsavrca, North
riding of the county of York, 63 miles (N.E. by E.)
from Guilsbrough, containing 100 inhabitants, There
was formerly a castle, which, with the lordship, be-
longed to the ancient family of Thwengs.

KILVE, a parish in the hundred of WiLLiTon and
FreemANNERS, county of SoMERSET, 114 miles (N. W,
by W.) from Bridg-water, containing 263 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, united with the vicarage of
Stringston, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and dio-
cese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£9.16.8, The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

KILVERSTONE, a parish in the hundred of Surop-
aaM, county of Norronk, 1§ mile (E.N.E.) from
Thetford, containing 31 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeacoury of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7. 14. 9.,
and in the patronage of the Crown,

KILVINGTON, u parish in the southern division
of the wapentake of Newark, county of NoTTiNcuAM.
7 miles (8.) from Newark, contaiuing, with a portion of
the hamlet of Alverton, 24 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Notting-
ham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £6. 12. 1., and in the patronage of the Rector of
Staunton in Vale, The church is dedicated to St. Mary,

KILVINGTON (NORTH), u township in the parish
of TrornTON l¢ STREET, wapentake of ALLERTON-
sHIRE, North riding of the county of York, 24 miles
(N.) from Thirsls, containing 68 inhabitants, There is
a chapel for Roman Catholics,

KILVINGTON (SOUTH), a parish in the wapentake
of Birprorrm, North riding of the county of Yorx,
compriging the townships of South Kilvington, Thorn-
brough, and Upsal, and containing 405 inhabitants, of
which number, 260 are in the township of South Kil-
vington, 1§ mile (N.) from Thirsk. 7The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of
York, rated in the king's books at £17. 10. 10,, and in
the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Sidney
Sussex College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated
to St. Wilfrid.

KILWORTH (NORTH), a parish in the hundred of
GurrLAXTON, county of Lrickstae, 5 miles (E. byS.)
from Lutterworth, containing 891 inhsbitants. The
living is @ rectory, in the archdemconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in thé king's books at
£15.0. 5. The Rev.T. ve was patron in 1811.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew. The Grand
;{i:ion canal passes through :.henorth-mhernputof

KILWORTH (SOUTH), s parish in the hundred of
GuraLAXTOX, county of LEICESTER, 5 miles (E.8.E.)
from Lutterwarth, containing 450 inbabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of ‘Leicester
and diocese of Linchln, rated in the king's books at
£10. 8. 11§, ,.h&:he patronage of the Crown. The
church is d St. Nicholas. Theré is & place of
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KIMBERLEY, a parish in the hundred of ForEROE,
county of NorroLk, S{ miles (N.W.) from Wymond-
ham, containing 145 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, with the rectory of Barnham-Broom,
in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Nor-
wich, rated in the king's books at £6. 12. 3., endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty.
Lord Wodehouse was patron in 1820. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter. There js a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists. In the time of Henry IIL. there
was a chapel in the church-yard, the ruins of which are
still visible. Kimberley hall formerly belonged to the
family of Fastolf, but in the reign of Henry IV. it came
into the possession of Sir John Wodehouse, who took it
down and erected a noble mansion upon its site.  Sub-
scquently he was appointed gentleman of the privy
chamber to Henry V., attended that monarch into
France, and conducted himself in the field with so much
bravery, that the king granted an augmentation to his
arms, with leave to bear the motto “AcincouvrTt.”
Here the family resided till 1659, when they removed to
the present seat, in which are preserved the fragments of
a large old sword and a poniard, used by their ancestor
at the battle of Agincourt; also a costly pair of neck-
laces of coral and gold, the gift of Catherine, Queen of
Henry V.

KIMBERLEY, a hamlet (formerly a chapelry) in
the parish of GrEAsLy, southern division of the wa-
pentake of Broxrtow, county of Norringuam. The
population is returned with the parish. The chapel
has been demolished,

KIMBERWORTH, a township in that part of the
parish of RoTHErHAM which isin the northern division
of the wapentake of StrarronrTn and TickaiLL, West
riding of the county of York, 14 mile (W.) from Ro-
therham, containing 3797 inhabitants. There arc places
of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.
A school has been erected partly by subscription and
partly by the produce of the old school-room ; the an-
nual income, arising from sundry donations, is about
£8, for which sum eight poor children are instructed.

KIMBLE (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
AYLESBURY, county of Buckineram, 31 miles (W. 8.
w.) from Wendover, containing 360 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, consolidated, in 1799,
with the rectory of Great Hampden, in the archdeacon-
ry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £6. 10, 5., endowed with £400 private
benefaction, and £400 royal hounty, and in the patron-
age of the Earl of Buckinghamshire. The church is
dedicated to St. Nicholag, A school for boys is sup-
ported by voluntary contributions. Kimble. according
to old records, was anciently called Kunebel, from Cu-
nobelin, or Cymbeline, the British king, whose sons
here gallantly opposed the Romans, but were defeated
and oné of them slain, There are still the remains of
several igtrenchments on the supposed field of battle ;
and on a circular mound in the neighbourhood are ves-
tiges of a fortification, termed Belinus' Castle, where it
is paid Cunobelin resided.

" KIMBLE (LITTLE), a parish in the bundred of
AYLESRURY, county of BuckiNeHAM, 3 miles (W. by 8.)
from Wendover, tontaining 165 inhabitants. The “liv-
ing is a rmuy, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham,
end diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
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£6.2.11. The Rev. S. T. Chapman was patron in
1810. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

KIMBLEWORTH, formerly a parish, in the west-
ern division of CuesTer ward, county palatine of
Durnawm, 3 miles (N. by W.) from Durham, containing
32 inhabitantz. The living, a rectory rated in the
king's books at £3. 6. 8., and endowed with £200
royal bounty, was united, in 1593, to the perpetual cu-
racy of Witton-Gilbert, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Dean and Chupter of Durham. The church has long
since fallen to deeay, and the place is now considered
an extra-parochial Tiberty,

KIMBOLTON, = parish in the hundred of WovLrny,
county of HrrevoRrp, 3 miles (N.E. by E.) from Leo-
minster, containing *634 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diovese of
Hereford, endowed with £200 private benefaction, £400
royal bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Hercford, The church
is dedicated to St. James.

KIMBOLTON, a market town and parish in the
hundred of LerguronstoNE, county of 11uNTINGDON,
101 miles (W. by S.) from Huntingdon, and 63 (N.N.W.)
from London, containing 156¢ inhabitants, The town
is pleasantly situated on the verge of the county,
amidst sloping hills and woodlands diversified with
fertile valleys. There are a few lace-makers, but the
general employment of the inhabitants is in agriculture.
The market is on Friday; and fairs are held on the Fri-
day in Easter week, for sheep and pedlary, and on the
11th of December, for cattle and hogs. A constable is
appointed at the courts lect and baron held under the
Duke of Manchester, who is lord of the munor. The
living i8 a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king’s books at £5,
and in the patronage of the Duke of Manchester, The
church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is surmounted by a
lofty spire. There are places of worship for Baptists,
Independents, Moravians, and Wesleyan Methodists. A
grammar school is endowed for a master and an usher;
and there is an almshouse for four poor widows, Kim-
bolton castle, the mapnificent residence of the Duke of
Manchester, an ancient stone edifice, situated in & spa-
cious park, was the residence of Catherine of Arragen,
first wife of Henry VIIL, subsequently to her divoree,
where she also died. In this parish are the remains
of Stanely priory, a convent of canons of the order of
St. Augustine, founded by William Mandeville, Ear] of
Essex, about 1180, and dedicated to the Blessed Virgin
Mary, the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was
valued at £62. 12. 3. Kimbolton gives the inferior
title of baron to the Duke of Manchester: it was the
birth-place of Lord Kimbolton, afterwards Earl of Man
chester, a parlinmentary general in the civil war,

KIMCOTE, a parish in the hundred of GuTHLAX
TON, county of LRICESTER, 34 miles (E.N.E.) from Lut
terworth, containing, with the hamlet of Cotes de Val
505 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch
deaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated i
the king's books at £20. 16. 3. Lord Willoughby d
Broke wag patron in 1811, The church is dedicated t
All Saints.

KIMMERIDGE, a parich in the hundred of Ha-
siLor, Blandford (South) division of the county of
Dorser, 44 miles (8.W. by W.) from Corfe-Castle, con-
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taining 90 inhabitants. The living is a donative, in the
patronage of the Clavell family, ‘The parish is bounded
on the south by Botteridge pool, or Kimmeridge bay,
the entrance to which, hetween two high cliffs, is de-
fended by a battery of two pieces of cannon. Here was
formerly a picr, one hundred feet long, sixty broad,
und fifty high, constracted, by Sir William Clavell, for
the convenience of vessels which resorted to his alum,
salt, and glass works, in the vicinity., 1t was, however,
demolished hy a great storm in 1745, and in 1748 the
ruins of buildings and heaps of ashes were all that re-
mained, On the shore are copperas stones in abun-
dance ; and in the cliffs of this and the neighbouring
parishes is found a sort of coal, of a bituminous na-
ture, which burns with a strong light, and emits a sul-
phureous smell; it is naturally a hard substance, but,
on exposure to the air, gplits into picces like slate, and
is sold to the poor at a moderate price.

KIMPTON, a parish in the hundred of Ilrream~
and Pirton, county of HerTrorn, 44 miles (N, W.
hy W.) from Welwyn, containing 866 inhabitunts. The
living is a vicarage, in the arclideaconry of Huntingdon,
and diocese -of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£12, and in the patronage of Lord Dacre.  The church,
dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, ix situated on an
acclivity rising from the north of the village: it has a
square western tower, embattled, and surmounted by a
short spire, and contains a fine screen of oak, with
almogt perfect remains of the ancient rood-loft.

KIMPTON, a parish in the hundred of Axpover,
Andover division of the county of SourEAMPTON,
% miles (8.8, E.) from Ludgershall, containing 366 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£25, 12. 1. George Foyle, Esq. was patron in 1785,

KINDER, a hamlet in the parish of Gurossor,
hundred of Hreu Peak, county of DErBy, 44 miles
(N.) fromn Chapel en le Frith, containing 129 inhabitants,

KINDERTON, a joint township with Hulme, in
that part of the parish of MippLEwicH which is in
the hundred of NortawicH, county palatine of Cues-
TER, 14 mile (E.8.E.) from Middlewich, containing 469
inhabitants. The early and powerful Barons of Kinder-
ton had possessions here at the time of the Conquest
and until about the end of the sixteenth century, they ax-
ercised the right of inflicting capital punishment for
crimes committed within the barony.

KINFARE, or KINVER, a parish in the southern
division of the hundred of Seispox, county of Star-
¥ORD, 4 miles (W. 8. W.) from Stourbridge, containing
1735 inhabitants., The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, endowed with £600 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of certain Trustees. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter, The Staffordshire and Wor-
veatershire and the Stourbridge canals form a junction
here. There it a free grammar school, of ancient and
abscure foundation, in support of which, William Vyn-
#ent, in the 34th of Elizabeth, bequeathed certain land,
which, with subsequent gifts, produces £112, 12. 11,
a year to the master, for the instruction of an unlimited
number of children. Within the parish is an ancient
fortification, formini a parallelogram three hundred
yarde long by two bundred broad, deeply intrenched
on two sides, aud on the other two defended by a hill.
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In the neighbourhood is a tumulus, also a large block of
stone, called Battlestone, six feet high, and about twelve
in girth.

KINGCOMBE, & tything, consisting of Nether and
Over Kingcombe, in that part of the parish of ToLLER-
Porcoruwm which is in the hundred of BeaminsTER-
Forum and Repuoxg, Bridport division of the county
of Dorser, 6 miles (E. by 8.) from Beaminster, con-
taining 159 inhabitants.

KINGERBY, = parish in the northern division of
the wapentakeof WavLencrorr, parts of LiNpsEy,county
of LixcoLn, 5 miles (N. W.) from Market-Raisen, con-
taining #4 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeuconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £5. "The University of Cambridge presented in
1811, The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

KINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of CuapLinG-
ToN, county of Oxrorp, 44 miles (W.8 W.,) from
Chipping-Norton, containing 464 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ox-
ford, rated in the king's books at £17. 11. 8, and in the
patronage of the Rev. J. C. Lockwood. The church is
dedicated to St. Andrew. The river Evenlode bounds
the parish on the west, and separates it from Gloucester-
shire.

KINGMOOR, an extra-parochial liberty, in EskpALE
ward, county of CempErLAND, 2 miles (N.W. by N.)
from Carlisle, containing 162 inhabitants. It belongs
to the corporation of Carlisle, the freemen of which
city hold their guild races here annually on Ascension-
day. There is a small donation in support of a
school. '

KINGSBRIDGE, a mar-
ket town and parish, in the
hundred of StaNsOROUGH,
county of Devon, 34 miles
(s.8.W.) from Exeter, and
207 (W.8.W.) from London, e
containing 1430 inhabitants, \kg -
Thie place is pleasantly situ- 'y
ated at the head of the bay,
or haven, of Salcombe, on BN
the summit and declivity of Al
a hill, surrounded by others Corporate Seal.
of greater elevation; and consists chiefly of a lon
strect, in which are some good houses. The town, whi
is partially paved but not lighted, is bounded on the
east by a brook, which separates it from the town of
Dodbrook. A mechanics’ institute has been established.
Races are held in the neighbourhood, generslly once
& year, but at no fixed period. The woollen manu-
facture was formerly carried on here very extensively,
but it is now inconsiderable : the pel branches of
trade at present are in malt and lesther, especially the
former, a considerable quantity of mait and grain being
annually sent from this . Various articles of
commerce are brought cosstwise, chiefly in vessels of
from fifty to sixty tons' burden, though the
navigable for ships of .a-larger, size: about
these vesgels belong to and Salcombe.
market is on Saturday j-end there is.a fair on
of July, unless that -dey falls later in the week -
Thureday, when the fair is postponed to the y
Tuesday, sud continued for three successive-
the sale of woollem cloth, toys, &c, The town is:
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the jurisdiction of the county magistrates, but a port-
reeve, or chief officer, is appointed annually at Michael-
mas, at which period a court lect is held by the lord
of the manor.

The living is a discharged vicarage, with that of
Churchstow, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese
of Exeter, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church, originally founded about 1330, was con-
siderably enlarged and improved in 1827, when it re-
ceived an addition of two hundred and eighty-six sittings,
of which, one hundred and sixty-five are free, the Incor-
porated Society for the enlargement of churches and
chapels having granted £160 towards defraying the
expense. There are places of worship for Baptists, the
Socicty of Friends, Independents, and Wesleyan Me-
thodists. A free grammar school was founded pur-
suant to the will of Thomas Crispin, who, in 1689, be-
queathed to trustees an estate for its endowment,
and also made provision for teaching pratuitously. in
addition to the classics, reading, writing, und arith-
metic: the number of boye in the grammar school
is restricted to fifteen, and if so many are not to bhe
found in the town, the trustees may complete the num-
ber from uny other place. Williamn Duncombe, in 1691,
gave by will property now producing about £350 per
annum, for the support of four exhibitioners from
this school to Oxford or Cambridge ; for apprenticing
boys educated in the school; and for the salary of a
lecturer at the parish church: by order of the court of
Chancery, in 1819, the stipends of the exhibitioners were
extended from £10 to £50 per annum. Almshouses
for four poor persons were founded by Robert Myd-
wynter, in the reign of Elizabeth ; and a considerable
income for the repair of the church, &c., arising from
the rents of the town-lands, is vested in trustees.

KINGSBURY, a parish in the hundred of Gonre,
county of MippLEsEX, 74 miles (W.N.W.) from London,
containing 360 inhabitants, The living is a perpetunal
curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Dean and Chapter of St. Paul's, London. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, is principally in the later style
of Engligh architecture,

KINGSBURY, a parish in the Tamworth division
of the hundred of HemrinGgrorp, county of Wanwick,
54 miles (N. by E.) from Coleshill, containing 1345 in-
habitants, The living is a vicarage, in the archdeacon-
ry of Coventry, and diocese of Lichficld and Coventry,
rated in the king's books at £8. 10., endowed with
£200 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church, dedicated to St. Peter and St.
Paul, has lately received an addition of one hundred
and fifty sittings, of which one hundred are free, the
Incorporated Soriety for the eunlargement of churches
&ﬂ chapels hsving granted £100 towards defraying

ex .

KINGSBURY-EPISCOPI, a parish forming one
of the four unconnected portions which constitute the
eastern division of the hundred of KiNGsBURY, county of
SomERsET, 4] miles (8. by E.) from Langport, comprising
sbe tythinge of Barrow, Kingsbury-Episcopi, East Lam-
brook, West Lambrook with Lake, and Stembridge, and
contaiaing 1470 inhabitents. The living is & vicarage, in
the archdeaconyy of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king’s books at £17. 18. 14, and in
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the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Chancellor
of the Cathedral Church of Wells, The church, dedicated
to St. Martin, is a stately structure, with an elegant west-
ern tower one hundred and twenty feet high, ornamented
with cleven statues of kings, and crowned with twenty
open-worked pinnacles, The parish anciently belonged
to the Bishop of Wells, whence the adjunct to its name.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

KING'S-CAPLE, = parish in the upper division of
the hundred of WorMELOW, county of Hergroro, 5%
miles (N. W, by N.) from Ross, containing 271 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy with the vicarage
of Sellack, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford.
The church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist.

KINGSCLERE, a parish comprising the market
town of Kingsclere and the chapelry of Sidmonton, in
the hundred of KingscLene, and the chapelry of Ec-
chinswell in the hundred of Evincar, Kingsclere divi-
sion of the county of Sovruamrron, and containing
2851 inhabitants, of which nnumber, 2296 are in the town
of Kingsclere, 9 miles (N. E.by K.) from Whitchurch, 21
(N.) from Winchester, and 55 (W. by 8.) from London,
This place, as the name implies, was anciently a scat
of the West Saxon kings; and at Freemantle park, a
short distance to the south of the town, was a man-
sion said to have been a royal residence in the reigns of
John and Elizabeth. The town is situated on the edge
of the downs, near the northern extremity of the county;
the streets are neither lighted nor paved; the inha-
bitants are well supplied with water. The trade is
principally in malt, for meking which the fine barley
produced in the vicinity is peculiarly adapted. A small
spring vear the town turns four flour-mills within a
mile and a half from its source. The market is on
Tuesday ; und fairs are held on the first Tuesday after
Easter, and the first Tucsday after October 10th,
principally for sheep. Kingselere is within the juris-
diction of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every
Thursday, for the recovery of debts to any amount
and petty scssions for the division of Kingsclere are
held here and at Overton alternately. The living is a vi-
carage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
rated in the king's books at £17. 19. 7., and in the
patronage of Lord Bolton, The church, dedicated to
St. Mary, is a large stuccoed building, with a low tower.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, and
at Ecchinswell one for Independents. A free grammar
school, supposed to have been of ancient foundation, was
endowed by Sir James Lancaster, in 1618, with £20 per
annum : the school-room was rebuilt in 1820, when the
institution was converted into a National school open to
all applicants. A bequest from Robert Higham, in 1729,
is appropriated towards the clothing, maintenance, edu-
cation, and apprenticing, of four boys. A quantity of
clothes is annually distributed among the poor, by means
of various benefactions. Here is a slightly chalybeate
spring ; end on the adjacent hills are the remains of two
Roman encampments, near which the fragments of two
or three human skeletons, and several Roman copper
coins, were recently discovered.

KINGSCOTE, a perish in the upper division of
the hundred of BERKELEY, county of GLOUCESTER,
43} miles (N. W. by W.) from Tetbury, containing 266
inhabitants, The living iz & perpetual curacy, annexed
to the rectory of Beverstone, in the archdeaconry and
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diocese of Gloucester, and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church, dedicated to St. Joln the Baptist,
is a small edifice with a low embattled tower. A branch
of the river Frome rises here. There are quarrics of
stone full of petrifactions called Clay-rags, which take
a polish, and resemble the Derbyshire marble. At a
supposed Roman station, called Chestles, in this parish,
have been found coins, tesselated pavements, and a
curiously-enamelled fibula.

KINGSDON, a parish in the hundred of SomrrTON,
county of Somrerser, 24 miles (8. E. by E.) from
Somerton, conteining 536 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £27. 3. 11.
John Tucker, Esq. was patron in 1827. The church is
dedicated to All Saints. There is a place of worship for
Independents. The old Roman Fosse-way forms the
south-castern houndary of the parish.

KINGSDOWN, a parish partly in the hundred of
CopsHEATH, but chiefly in that of AxTon, DarTFORD,
and WiLMINGTON, lathe of Surron at Hong, county of
KeNT, 23 miles (N. W. by N.) from Wrotham, contain-
ing 438 inhabitants. The living 1s a rectory, with that
of Maplescombe, in the archdeacoury and diocese of
Rochester, rated in the king's books at £9. 1. 8., and
in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Roches-
ter. The church, dedicated to St. Edmund, is a small
building romantically situated in the bosom of a wood
of about one hundred acres in extent. Kingsdown was
anciently a chapelry in the parish of Sutton at Hone,
and appropriated to the priory of St. Andrew in Ro-
chester. Woodland, or Week, now only a hamlet to
Kingsdown, was formerly a distinct parish,

KINGSDOWN, a parish in the hundred of MivToN,
lathe of Scray, county of Kenrt, 34 miles (8.) from
Sittingbourne, containing 75 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry und diocese
of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £5.9. 2.,
and in the patronage of — Lushington, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Catherine,

KINGSEY, a parish in the hundred of AsrENDON,
county of BuckiNgHAM, 3 miles (E. by N.) from Thame,
containing 204 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lin-
coln, rated in the king’s books at £8. 10. 5., and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Rochester, The
church is dedicated to St. Nicholas,

KINGSFORD, a hamlet in that part of the parish
of WorveErLEY which is in the lower division of the
bundred of Harvsmirg, county of WORCESTER, 4%
miles (N. by W.) from Kidderminster. The population
is returned with the parish.

KINGSHOLME, & hamlet adjacent to the city of
Gloucester, partly in those portions of the parishes of
St. CarrERINE and St. MaRY de LopE, GLOUCESTER,
which are in the middle division of the hundred of Dup-
sToNE and Kine's-BarToN, county of GLOUCESTER.
The population is returned with the respective parishes,

KINGSLAND, a parish in the hundred of StrEeT-
*ORD, county of HErEvrorDp, 44 miles (N. W.by W.)
from Leominster, containing 989 inhabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £31.3. 64,, and
in the patronage of the Rev. W, Evans. The
dedicated to St. Michael, is 8 massive edifice, built in the
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reign of Edward I., by Edward Lord Mortimer, whose
relict obtained a grant for a market and a fair, the for-
mer of which has been long discontinued, but the latter
is still held on October 10th, for horses, cattle, hops,
cheese, &c. A free school has been endowed with £15
per annum, by Thomas Woodhouse. Kingsland formerly
comprised part of the dower of Catherine, Queen of
Charles II.: and tradition relates that near the glebe-
house ig the site of an ancient castle, the burial-place
of King Merwald. In West Field there is a pedestal,
erected by the neighbouring gentry, commemorative of
the celebrated battle of Mortimer's Cross, fought in
1461, in which the Earl of Pembroke was defeated by
the Duke of York, afterwards Edward I'V., with the loss
of about four thousand men: the earl escaped, but his
father, Sir Owen Tudor, was taken prisoner and imme-
diately beheaded.

KINGSLAND, a chapelry partly in the parish of
IstingroN, Finshury division, and partly in that of
Hackney, Tower division, of the hundred of Ossur-
STONE, county of MippLesex, 1 mile (N, E.) from Lon-
don,  The population is returned with the parishes.
This pluce consists principally of several ranges of
buildings, extending a considerable distance along the
road from London to Tottenham and Edmonton,
Here are hrick-fields, and some part of the ground is
occupied by nurserymen and market-gardeners. Pre-
viously to the middle of the fifteenth century there was
at Kingsland an hospital, or house for lepers, which, after
the Reformation, became annexed to St. Bartholomew's
hospital, and was used as a kind of out-ward to that in-
stitution ; but, in 1761, the patients were removed from
Kingsland, and the site of the establishment there was
let on & building lease, though the chapel, on the pe-
tition of the inhabitants, was suffered to stand, as a
proprietary chapel in the patronage of the Governors
of the hospital : it is a small edifice in the early style
of English architecture. Iere are places of worship for
Independents.

KINGSLEY, a township in the parish of Frops-
naM, second division of the hundred of Evpissury,
county palatine of CHESTER, 3% miles (8.E.) from Frods-
ham, containing 924 inhabitants. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A school is endowed
with four acres and a half of land.

KINGSLEY, a parish in the hundred of ALTON,
Alton (North) division of the county of SouTHAMPTON,
4% miles (E.8.E.) from Alton, containing 873 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Winchester, and in the patronage
of the Vicar of Alton. The church is dedicated to St.
Nicholas, G

KINGSLEY, a parish comprising the
of Whiston in the northern, but chiefly in the south-
ern, division of the hundred of TormMonsLow, county
of StarroRD, 2§ miles (N. by &) from Cheadle, and
containing 1320 inhsbitsnts, The living is a ree-
tory, in the archdeaconry.of Stafford, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry, mated in the king's books st
£186. 15., and in the of the Duke.of Devon-
shive. The church, dedicated to St. Werbusgh, has
lately veosived. e sddition of 2::1 hundred and lﬂ&
tings, of whick, pne hundred and ninety-two .a%e
the Incozpovaded Society for the enlargement of churches
aad chapéls having granted &£ 100 towards defraying the
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expense. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. The river Churnet and the Uttoxeter canal
run parallel to each other through the parish. Here
are geveral coal mines, and a furnace for smelting cop-
per-ore, A free school was founded, in 1703, by John
Stubbs, who endowed it with houses and land now pro-
ducing about £60 per annum, for which one hundred
and twenty children are instructed on the National sys-
tem. Kingsley is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of
Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of
pleas held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the re-
covery of debts under 40s.

KINGSMARSH, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
higher division of the hundred of Broxrow, county
palatine of CaESTER, 54 miles (N.W.) from Malpas,
containing 46 inhabitants,

KINGSNORTH, & parish in the hundred of Caarr
and LonGsrIDGE, hathe of Scray, county of Kent, 2§
miles (8.) from Ashford, containing 372 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £11. 9. 91.
W. S. Coast, Exq. was patron in 1798, The church is
dedicated to St. Michael.

KINGS-NORTON, county of WorcesTER. — Sec
NORTON (KINGS).

KINGSTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Seer-
HoE, county of NorTHAMPTON, 2 miles (N, by W.) from
Northampton, containing 1226 inhabitants. The living
is & perpetual curacy, annexed to the rectory of St. Pe-
ter's, Northampton, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough. The church, dedicated to
St. John the Baptist, is partly Norman, and partly in
the later style of English architecture. There is a place
of worship for Baptists. This was anciently a royal
demesne, having been governed by a bailiff, and had a
common seal, the impress of which was a crowned head
between two fleur de lis, with the motto Sigitlum Com-
mune Kingsthorpe. Among other privileges formerly
possessed by the inhabitants was exemption from toll.
At present a certain number of frecholders, under the
payment of a fixed annual rent to the grantee, hold the
wmanor in trust for the town: the trustees transuct all
manorial business in a small huilding called the town-
house, erccted by Lady Pritchard. Within this lord-
ship are extensive quarries of fine white freestone. Eliza-
beth Cooke and Margaret Fremeaux, in 1753, assigned
to trustees an estate for the support of a free school,
the annual rental of which, amounting to £20, is ap-
plied towards the instruction of fifteen boys and fifteen
girls.

KINGSTON, a parish in the hundred of LoNesTow,
county of Campripee, 3} miles (E.S.k.) from Caxton,
containing 278 inhabitants. The living is = rectory,
In the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated in the
king's books at £11. 15, 5., and in the patronage of
the Provost and Fellows of King's College, Cambridge.
The chareh is dedicated to All Saints and St. Andrew.
Here were anciently a market and two fairs. A charity
achool was founded, in 1702, by Mr. Francis Todd,
who endowed it with a rent-charge of about £13.

" KINGBTON, aparish in the hundred of Exming-
ﬁ“. ‘county of Devon, 8§ miles (s.v'ilr'.he by 8.) from
‘Meoabary, containing 525 inhabitants. living is &
P¥petusl curacy, mnnexed to the vicarage of Erming-
"t ' the archdesconry of Totness, and diocese of
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Exeter. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
t]llﬁdIB‘ER. The parish is bounded on the west by the
river Erme, and on the south by the English chanmel.

KINGSTON, or KINSON, a chapelry in the parish
of Canrorn-MagnNa, hundred of CoGpeawn, Shaston
(East) division of the county of Dorset, 13 mile (s.)
from Corfe-Castie, containing 619 inhabitants, It
is within the peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean of Sa-
rum. The chapel is dedicated to St. Andrew, The
navigable river Stour runs on the northern side of this
chapelry,

KINGSTON, a parish in the hundred of TavyToN
and Taunton-DeanN, county of SomMERrser, comprising
the tythings of the Eastern division and the Western
divigion, und the hamlet of Hestercombe, 33 miles (N.)
from Taunton, and containing 954 inhabitants. The
living is u vicarage, with the curacy of Cothelston an-
nexed, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and diocese of
Bath and Welly, rated in the king's books at £18. 17. 11,
endowed with £400 private henefuction, £600 royal
bounty, and £700 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Dean and Chapter of Bristol, The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, is a fine structure in the later
English style, with a western tower ornamented with
sculpture, and crowned with pinnacles. There is a place
of worship for Independents,  Copper mines were for-
merly worked in the parish, but they have been discon-
tinued. There are sundry bequests for the instruction
of the poor, amounting to £16 per annum, which, with
voluntary contributions, is applied in supporting a Sun-
day school,

KINGSTON, u parish in the hundred of TiNTIN-
HULL, though locally in the southern division of the
hundred of Petherton, county of Somerser, 14 mile
(S.2.) from llminster, containing, with the hamlet of
Allowenshay, 264 inhabitants, The living is a rectory,
in the archdcaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king's books at £5. 19. 2. W.
Harbin, Esq. wae patroun in 1817, The church is dedi-
cated to All Saints, At Allowenshay, a place of great
antiquity, now a hamlet in this parish, there was for-
merly a church or chapel. Here was born Henry
Jeunes, a learned divine and theological writer in the
seventeenth century.

KINGSTON, a parish in the liberty of West Mz-
DINA, Isle of Wight division of the county of Sovrs-
AmrroN, 64 miles (S.8.W.) from Newport, containing 68
inhabitants. The living is & rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 6. 8., and in the patronage of G. Ward,
Esq.

qu'NGSTON, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of TorMonNsLOW, county of STAFFORD, 34
miles (S.W. by 8.) from Uttoxeter, containing 355 in-
habitants, The living is a curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
£400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of ——
Sneyd, Easq.

KINGSTON, a parish in the hundred of Poring,
rape of ARUNDEL, county of Sussex, 4} miles (E. by
8.) from Little Hampton, containing 43 inhabitants.
The living is & vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lewes,
and .diocese of Chichester., The church is demo-
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KINGSTONupon HULL,
a sea-port, borough, and
county of itself, locally in the
East riding of the county of
York, comprising, within the

%%+ and in the county of the town,

M the parishes of Kirk-Ella,
North Ferriby, Hessle, and
the extra-parochial district
of Garrison-Side, and con-

Arms,
taining 31,425 inhabitants, of which number, 28,591 are
in the borough of Hull, 39 miles (S.E.) from York, and

170 (N.) from London. This town has arisen since the
Norman Conquest; for, at the time of the general survey,
the principal place in the neighbourhood was Myton, of
which there are now no remains. Edward I, on his
return from the battle of Dunbar, where he had clcfeu.bud
the Scottish king, John.Balliol, and deprived him of
his crown, vigited Baynard castle, the seat of the lords
of Wake, in this vicinity : while staying there, being
engaged one day in the amusements of the chase, he
was led to the hamlet of Myton and Wyke. the pre-
sent site of the town of Hull, and contemplating the
advantages of its situation, determined on the found-
ation of a fortified town and commercial port. Ile
consequently negociated an exchange with the abhot of
Meaux in Holderness, to whom the property belonged,
for lands productive of a higher revenue. He then is-
sued a proclamation inviting settlers, to whom he of-
fered advantages sufficient to induce scveral to accept
his proposals. He next built a manor-house, and ina
little time had the satisfaction of seeing the town
erected, which he dignified with the appellation of
King's Town, now Kingston, distinguished, by its situ-
ation on the river Hull, from Kingston upon Thames,
and other places of the same name. In the twenty-
seventh year of his reign the harbour was completed,
and in the same year he granted a royal charter con-
stituting the place a free borough. From this period
its increase and prosperity have been remarkable. A
ferry was soon after cstablished over the Humber, and,
in 1316, vessels began to sail at fixed periods between
Hull a.nd Barton, for the conveyance of passengers, cat-
tle, and articles of traffic, which intercourse has con-
tinued to the present day. Ten years afterwards the
town was fortified ; and so rapid was its improvement,
that in the reign of Edward III. it supplied sixteen sail
of ghips and four hundred and sixty-six men towards
an armament for the invasion of France; when the
city of London furnished only twenty-five ships and six
hundred and sixty-two men. From the earliest period
of ita history, thie town had suffered through the want
of a proper supply of fresh water, which the inhabitants
were compelled to bring from a considerable distance s
and, in 1376, the people of Hessle, Anlaby, Cottingham,
and other neighbouring places, conspired .to withhold
from them this necessary of life. After a long and vio-
lent contest, an appeal was made to the pope, who issued
his mandate, July 20th, 1401fs, to pte;ent all furthz_
interruption of the 1 water. In the rei
Rlch;:rd 1L, when t;:?p Sgota were mnui‘:;m
into England, and threatening the country between the
Twieed and the Humber, thanfgrﬁﬁcatiom of Hull md.u
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went considerable repairs, and a strong castle, for the
security of the town and harbour, was erected on the
castern side of the river. During the contests between
the houses of York and Lancaster, this town continued
faithful to the latter, whose couse they resolutely main-
tained in the battles of Wakefield and Towton. Such
indeed was their loyalty, that when the public treasury
of the borough was exhausted by the expenses of the
war, the corporation took down a stately market-cross,
erected at a great expense about thirty years hefore, to
raise money by the sale of the materials for the sup-
port of the royal cause. At different periods in the fif-
teenth and sixteenth centuries this place suffered greatly,
in common with many others, from pestilential diseases,
which swept away vast numbers of the inhabitants, and
materially checked the increase of population; yet it
continued to prosper and extend its commerce. On the
suppression of the monasteries, a strong spirit of dis-
content manifested itself at Hull; and at the time of the
insurrection called the Pilgrimage of Grace, in 1537,
while one division took Pontefract, and another entered
York, & third took Hull by surprise, and reinstated the
monks and friars who had heen ejected from their con-
vents. The triumph of the insurgents, however, was
but tramsient, for the main body of them, under Aske,
having been dispersed in the neighbourhood of Doncas-
ter, the magistrates of Hull seized Hallam, the ring-
leader of the insurrection there, and many of his asso-
ciates, who, being soon after tried by a special commis-
sion, were convicted of rebellion and executed. Not
Joug after this a fresh insurrection broke out in Hull,

in consequence of the alterations made by Henry VIIL
in the established religion.  On this occasion the town
was besieged by the insurgents, and taken by stratagem,
but the successful party, with Sir Robert Constable at
their head, after keeping possession of the castle ’érmg
thirty days, were compelled to surrender it into the
hands of the mayor; when numbers of the rebels were
tried for high treason under a special commission, and,
being convicted, were hanged and quartered; among
whom was their leader, Sir Robert Constable, whose
hody was exposed on Beverley gate. In the year 1541,

Henry VIIL visited Hull, where he was most hospltnhly
received by the body corporate, who presented him with
a purse of £100: after taking an accurate survey of the
town, the king gave directions for building a castle-and
two strong block-houses, with other fortifications, for. the
security of the place, He also gave orders for cutting
a new ditch, from Newland to Hull, and that the manor-
house, formerly called Suffolk's palace, should be repaired
and improved. In 1527, and again in 15649, the town
suffered greatly from inundation: the Humber overs
flowed its banks, and overspread all the.low lands, deing
immense damage both to town snd gountry. But the

commerce of the place contiuued . to flourish, and the
and.jmportmce. :

merchants increased in wealth
On the accession ¢
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ade 'a ‘depdt 'for arms and military stores;
pth of March he inspected the fortifications,
e hg revefved the homage of the inhabitants, pro-
ééfled to Beverley, and thence to York. At the com-
mencement of the parliamentary war during this reign,
each party became anxious to obtain possession of the
towh, it being at that time not only a place of consider-
able h by nature, but surrounded with walls and
strongly fortified by art, and its importance still further
augmented by the Immense magazine of arms, ammuni-
tion, and military stores which had been collected there.
The king, who was then at York, relying upon the as-
prances of loyalty and attachment which he had re-
ceived from the mayor, aldermen, and burgesses, on
his vislt to the town, sent the Earl of Northumberland
with a party of the royalists to take possession of it,
bat the mayor refused to receive the king's general,
and, after a short consultation, admitted Sir John
Hotham, who had been sent down to take upon him-
gelf the office of governor for the parliament. The am-
munition and stores, which at that time exceeded the
quantity in the Tower of London, became an object of
great solicitude, and the two houses of parliament ad-
dressed a petition to the king at York, requesting that
they might be removed to London, to which request
his Majesty percmptorily refused to accede. On the 23rd
of April, 1642, the king, with his son, Prince Charles, at-
tended by many gentlemen of the county, advanced from
York to Hull, and when within a few miles of the town
despatched an officer to inform the governor, Sir John
Hotham, that he would dine with him that day; to
which the governor replied, that he could not, without
betraying the trust reposed in him by the parliament,
open the gates to the king's retinue, and requested to be
w from receiving the honour of his Majesty's visit.
Thé "Sing having arrived at Beverley gate, demand-
ed admission for himself and twenty of his retinue,
which the governor, with renewed protestations of loy-
alty, persisted in refusing. He then retired with his
party to Beverley, where he passed the night, and on
the following morning sent a herald to the governor to
demand entrance into the town, threatening to proclaim
him as a traitor in case of his refusal, and promising
ittdemnity for the past in the event of his compliance ;
bug the herald returned without success,and the king
] to York, whence he despatched a message to
% two houses of parliament, complaining of the insult
#ilfered to his aunthority, and demanding punishment
‘af the governor for his disobedience to the royal com-
wads, The parliament, however, so far from attending
of the king, paseed a vote of thanks to
n' Hotham, for the resolution with which he had
d ‘the post committed to his charge. The
g having sssembled a force of three thousand infan-
Aoy Wil sight hundred cavalry, and procured & supply
f. arms ‘and ammunition from Holland by the sale of
g, and thwe ‘the assiduity of the
olved - upon the ition of the town by
b dvaneed with this force to besiege it m form;
URiFher: in erder to prevent the near approach
e Spwt thie “banks of the Homber and
4 waiving the sluices, laid the country
Wty fior w comsiderable distance under
sove effectually to provide for the

i dowa the Charter-house hos-

=
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pital, and several buildings in Myton-lane, nnd epected
batteries with the materials, and planted cannon en the
walls. But notwithstanding these precautions, the
king's troops erected scveral batteries in the vicinity,
and brought their cannon to bear upon the town, which
for some time sustained a vigorous attack, and was as
resolutely defended. The garrison, inflamed with des-
peration at a report industriously circulated by the par-
liamentarians, that the king would give no quarter,
if he took the town, sallied out to the number of five
hundred, with a determination to compel the royalists
to raise the siege, and made a furious attack on the
besiegers, headed by Sir John Meldrum, & Scotch
officer, whom the parliument had sent down to the as-
sistance of the governor, obliging them to retreat with
considerable loss to Beverley, where, after holding u
council of war, the siege was sbandoned, and the royal
forces retired to York. It uppears that in this siege,
the king relied for success less upon the efficiency
of his own troops than upon the treachery of Sir John
Hotham, with whom he had previously entered into a
private treaty for surrendering the town; but the
plot being prematurely discovered by the mayor, was
frustrated hefore it could take effect, and the governor
and his son, Captain Hotham, being arrested, were sent
prisoners to London, where, after trial in the guildhall,
they Were convicted of treason, and executed upon
Tower Hill. After the seizure of the governor, the
custody of the town was entrusted to the mayor and
cleven commissioners, appointed by the parliament, who
retained it till the arrival of Lord Fairfax, who was af-
terwards appointed governor. The Marquis of Newcas-
tle having subscquently made himself master of Gains-
borough end Lincoln for the king, and driven Sir
Thomas Fairfax from Beverley, with considerable loss,
appeared hefore Hull with all his forces, and having cut
off all supplies of provisions from the adjoining parts of
Yorkshire, and diverted the supply of fresh water, suc-
ceeded, under a heavy fire from the walls, in crecting a
battery called the King's fort, within half a mile of the
town, mounted with heavy ordnance, and provided
with a furnace for heating balls, which being fired red
hot into the town, threw the inhabitants into the greatest
consternation. The prudent precautions of the governor,
however, counteracted their cfficacy, and having again
inundated the country surrounding the town, he com-
pelled the assailants to abandon the greater part of their
works, and the Marquis of Newcastle soon after raised
the siege, and having destroyed the bridges and broken
up the roads in the line of his retreat, to prevent pursuit,
retired with his forces to York, and Lord Fairfax order-
ed the day on which he retreated to be observed as a
day of public thanksgiving. From this time Hull re-
mained in a state of tranqguillity till 1645, when the Li-
turgy of the church of England being abolished, the
soldiers quartered in the town entered the churches,
collected the prayer-books, and committed them to a
fire kindled for the purpose, amidst the acclamations of
the spectators. After the decapitation of Charles L, the
Protector visited Hull, and was received by the corpora-
tion with a congratulatory address, "

The town is zituated at the confluence of ‘thie rivers
Hull and Humber: the streets in .older part ave
narrow and incommodious ; but in other parts of
town they are spacions and m-—-mg‘}uhrly formed.
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The houses in general are built of -brick: the streets
gre well paved with excellent durable stone, hmught from
Iceland as ballast in the ships employed in the whale
fishery, and lighted with gas by two compamies; one
for oil-gas, established in 1821 ; the other for coal-gas,
in 1826 : the inhabitants arc well supplied with water
from copions springs which rise ncar Kirk-Ella, about
four miles from the town, conveyed by = sluice called
Spring Dyke, to the confines of the town, and supplied
to the houses by means of pipes. The whole town
consists of three unequal divisions: that which was
first built is completely insulated by the docks, which
have been constructed on the site of the ancient
military worke: on the north side of the old dock
is the parieh of Sculcoates, in which are several
handsome streets that have risen up within the last
forty years: and of still more recent date is that part
which lies westward from the Humber dock, occupy-
ing the supposed site of the ancient hamlet of Myton,
which name it still retains : the Garrison side is extra-
parochial, and is connected with the principal part of
the town by a bridge of four arches, with u druw-
bridge in the centre over the river Hull. In 1443,
the town was divided into six wards, which number
was increased to eight, in 1824, The exchauge ie &
neat building, with a portico in front; the area is
divided by two Doric pillars, which help to support
the ceiling; above i a news-room. A subscription
library was established in 17756, and the present build-
ing in Parliament-street, having a spacious reading-
room, was erected in 1800: it contains about twenty
thousaud volumes ; and there are about five hundred
subscribers, who pay £1. 5. each annually, The Ly-
ceum library was instituted in 1807 ; and the members,
in 1530, completed the erection of a handsome hall in
Charlotte-street : the number of subscribers, at 12s. 6d.
each, is ahbout two hundred. The Theological library
contains many scarce volumes of great value; a build-
ing on the south side of Trinity church, formerly used
as a chapel, was appropriated to its use in 1669. The
Literary and Philogsophical Socicty, established in 1822,
has a museurn attached, comprising a good collection
of specimens in natural history and the arts. The
public rooms, of which the first stone was laid on
the day on which his present Majesty King William IV,
avas proclaimed, form a handsome edifice of brick, orna-
mented with quoins and cornices of stone; the west,
which is the principal front, has an elegant portico of
the Grecian Ionic order, and the south front, in all
other respects, is of corresponding character. The
hosement story will contain a regular arrangement of
baths, fitted up with every accommodation, and the va-
rious offices connected with the institution : the princi-
-pal floor contains a spacious and splendid public room,
‘ninety-one feet and 2 half in length, forty-one feet
wide, and forty $eet ini height, to be elegantly fitted up
for assemblies, concerts, and public meetings ; the ves-
Atibule leading to this room is forty-one feet long and
sixteen feet snd :a half wide, attached to which l;e;:
_wloak-room, twenty-three feet and elgltm

“widey, Bnthzmneﬂoormal:anxﬁimmedl roem,

ning-
forty-tight feet long and twenty-four feet wide; an ele- -

drawihg-room, forty feet long ‘and twenty-four feet
‘and’ a'committdesdoom;. dixteen feot long snd-ten
pwide, af} of which have cormmunication with ishe
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large room. The attic floor contait a lepturezoom,
forty-five feet long and forty-one feet in width;.adjol
ing which are an apartment for the lecturer anda raom
for apparatus, and a museum, one hundudandtmby
one feet long and twenty-faur fect wide, which is lighted
from the roof, and will contain valuable specimens of
antiquity and natural history, of which the soociety,
gince its formation, have accumulated a pumerous and
highly interesting collection. The geological depart-
ment comprises an extensive assortment of the various
specimens of rock and fossil remains of the Yorkshire
coast, the bones of various animals formerly common
to this part of the country, but now peculiar to the tro-
pical climates, lately disrovered at Cliff, near Cave, by
the honorary curator, Mr. Dikes, and a large collection
of bones from the celebrated cavern at Kirkdale: the
zoological department contains numerous fine spegi-
mens of birds and fish, and various other curiosities
which the confined state of the room in which they ave
for the present deposited excludes from public inspection,’
Therc is also a mechanics’ institute, formed June 1st, 1825,
which possesses a good library. The botanical garden
was opened in June 1812 ; it is in the environs of the
town, and comprises ahout five acres of land, suitably
laid out in compartments for alpine, aquatic, and other
plants : the proprietors, in number two hundred and
sceventy, are holders of four hundred and seventy-nine
transferable shares, of the value of five guineas each,
subject to an annual subscription of s guinea and o bhalf.
There arc also a few subscribers who are not share-
holders, The entrance lodges, of which one is appropri-
ated to the use of a botanical library, and the other as
a residence for the curator, were erected in 1513, when
the centre and the east wing of the green-house wepe
also built, and in 1825 completed by the addition of the
west wing ; the property of the institution iz veated in
Rixteen trustees, and the garden, established principally
through the exertions of J. C. Parker, Esq. has become
4 valuable and interesting ubject of attention. The
Hull Medical and Chirurgical Society, to which a mu-
seum is attached in the infirmary, was imstituted in
1821. Wallis's museum, in Myton-gate, coutains many
natural and artificial curiosities, coliected by the pro-
prietor during the last sixty years, There is alsdta
Florists' and Horticultural Socicty of recent establish-
ment. The theatre royal, situated in Humber-stheet,
is & neat and well-arranged building, erected .in “§809.
There is also an olympic circus, in Humberstreet;
and assembly-rooms have been fitted up and - recently
opened in North-street. The public baths aze situated.on
the bank of the Humber, the water of which, by an im.
proved method of fltration, is raised without F.
and visitors enjoy the benefit arising from the
it in every possible way

- Hull has long heen fmad:armu&eandd:m
for which- its situation.is: y favourable ; - the
port is situsted on the wetthérn ahore of the mwbs-'
ary of the Humber, axnd-an she left bank of theipiee
Hull : its jurisdicwuﬁmﬂﬂ ﬁ':m ;i:h n;m E -
nver to Bridlington hughour on the n 2L,
1mm ltcamesc*. oD

‘teade iwith Nowway, Sweden, Hollend;
sbargh; Feange, . Spaia, and America, - to kbl

porta amnaiac govdagand
Mm{h’d‘k. Nottingham, Devby,
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sv;miihy which it hes great facility.of intercourse,
g7of the Aire, Calder, Ouse, Trent, and other
‘#ivérs which fall into the Humber, and the nume-
rous panals' communicating with them ; in consequence
of which it possesses greater advantages for inland
teaffic than eny other port in the kingdom : the manu-
fartnred goods and produce brought into this port from
the West riding of the county of York alone arc esti-
mated at five millions sterling per annum. It carries on
alsc a very extensive coasting trade in corn, wool, ma-
nufactured goods, and other articles of merchandise.
The whale fishery originated at this place in 1589, when
the merchants fitted out two vessels for Greenland ;
this branch of commerce was attended with progressive
increase, and scon formed a considerable part of the
stgple trade : at present no ships are sent from this
port to Greenland, the whole being fitted out for Davies’
straits : -one thousand three hundred and eighteen ships
have been fitted out from Hull since the year 1800,
sveraging nearly forty-four annuelly ; of this number
forty-seven have been lost, nine of them during the past
year (1830); the quantity of oil produced from the
Blubber exceeds that of all other ports in the kingdom,
pne hundred and thirty-three thousand one hundred and
fifty-seven tons having been bronght in during the above
period, exclusively of the year 1830.

The harbour was con- -
structed in the reign of
Richard IL., but the princi-
pal source of the commercial
prosperity of the town arises
from the capacious docks
with which the port is now
provided. In 1774, a sub-
scription was opened for
making a wet dock on the
north side of the town, now
cailed the Old dock, and an
act of parliament was ob-
tained for carrying the project into execution, by which
act the sharcholders were incorporasted under the name
of “The Dock Company of Kingston upon Hull,” and
received from the crown a grant of the military works
of the town, and a vote from parliament of £ 15,000,
towards defraying the expense of the undertaking. The
first stone was laid October 19th, 1775, and the whole
sipdertaking completed in four years. The length of this
Gisek is #ix hundred yards, its width eighty-five yards,
&bd depth twenty-three feet, and it occupies forty-eight
theusand one hundred and fifteen square yards of ex-
syated land, Originally the number of shares was one

d end twenty, but the trade of the port re-
g:farther accominodation, two other acts of par-
were obtained, one in 1802, and the other in
by: witich the company were empowered to in-
ethe nuniber to one hidndred and eighty : the mo-
MY wrising from the sixty additional shares amounted

#83,300, which sum was appropriated towards mak-
‘mew-dotk. - The first stone of this dock was
i the 13th of April, 1807, and having been com-
t an expnse of £220,000, it was opened on the
of June; 1809 : it is called the Humber dock, and
pEsiicates with the river from which it”takes its
4idodic & \Weellent construction, large enough

“ffty-grady'ship it is three hundred yards in
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length, one hundred and fourteen-yards wide, and ghirty
feet deep, and occupies thirty-five thousand four hus-
dred and ninety-eight square yards. A dredping ma-
chine, worked by a steam-engine of six-horse power, is
used to cleanse this dock from the mud which accumu-
lates : this machine raises fifty tons of mud in an hour,
which is transferred to barges, and conveyed to a situ-
ation in the Humber where it can be washed away by
the current. The Old dock is cleansed by a stmilar
machine worked by two_horses. These two docks are
(-._apahle of holding six hundred sail of vessels. A Junc-
tion dock, uniting the two former, has lately heen com-
pleted, by which means vessels are enabled to pass
round the town : it accupies thirty thonsand three hun-
dred and sixty-two square yards of land, and is capable
of containing sixty sail of ships, leaving suflicient room
for others to pass. Besides these wet docks, there are
two basins, the Old dock hasin, and the Humber dock
hagin, the former oceupying an area of one thousand
eight hundred and seventy-six square yards, and the
latter thirteen thousand three hundred and ninety-three,
the total area of water of the several docks and basins
is twenty-six acres and threc roods, for the convenicence
of repairing vessels. In the year ending October 30th,
1830, one thousand one hundred and eighty-six vesscls
entered inwards from foreign parts, and one thousand
and thirty-seven cleared outwards. The tonnage upon
which dock duties were puid for the same period was
three hundred and thirteen thousand eight hundred and
fifteen, including coasters. The number of ships em-
ployed in the coasting trade in 1829 was one thousand
four hundred and seventy-seven, entered inwards, and
one thousand six hundred and seventy-uine, cleared
outwards. The numher of vessels belonging to the port
in 1829 was five hundred and seventy-nine, averaging a
burden of one hundred and twenty-seven {ons; and
eleven ships were built in the dock-yards at this port in
the same year. The docks, to which are two cutrances,
one from the river Hlumber on the south, and the other
from the river Hull, or the harbour, On the east, are amply
provided with extensive guays, and spacious and comino-
dious warehouses, and, under the judicions regulations of
the Dock Company, are carefully guarded from accident
by fire ; an engine, with lighters for floating it to any part
of the docks, is constantly in readiness in case of need,
and firemen, constables, and watchmen, are constantly
on duty day and night. The greatest caution is also
used to prevent any depredation from being committed
on the very valuable cargoes which are transhipped at
this port by. the company, who keep & sufficient number
of known and responsible labourers for loading and
unloading the vessels. To fucilitate the passing and re-
passing of vesscls from the several docks, signals are
used by the dock-master, under the authority of the
Trinity House, by which body also, to obviate any irre-
gularity, or partiality, in discharging the ships, the
master and ell his assistants are appointed, No fees or
gratuities are allowed to the officers or servants em-
ployed in the docks, and heavy penalties are inflicted
for partiality or neglect in the diecharge of their duties.
Of the ancient fortifications there remain vnly two of
the forts erected by Henry VIII, by which, and by se-
veral batteries on the east side of the river, the town
and harbour are defended. The citadel -commands the
entrance of the Hull roads and the-Humber, The ma-
! 3U2
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gozine is capable of containing twenty-thousand stand
of arms, and ordmance stores for twelve or fiftcen sail
of the line, defended by a regular garrison under the
command of a governor, who is generally a nobleman of
high military rank. The custom-house is a large and
bandsome edifice, in Whitefriar-gate, originally built by
the Corporation of the Trinity House, for the purposeof an
inn, with a room for public entertuinments, fifty-two feet
long by twenty-four feet wide, and twenty-two high, which
is now the long room for the transaction of the general
official business. The pilot oflice, situated opposite the
ferry-boat dock, consists of a modern lofty brick build-
ing : the pilots attended the observatory by turns, from
six in the morning till nine in the evening, from the ver-
nal to the autumnul equinox, and the remainder of the
year from nine in the morning till six in the evening:
it is nnder the direction of commissioners appointed by
the Humber Pilot act. A life-hoat was established at
Spurn in 1810, and the crew resident there are maiutain-
ed and regulated by the Wardens of the Trinity House.
The excise office is situated in a street called The Land
of Green Ginger., The principsl articles of manutacture
are turpentine and tar, white lead, soap, tobacco and
souff, sails, sail-cloth, ropes, and chain-cables; and
there are several mills worked by steam and by wind,
for the extraction of 0il from linseed and rape seed, and
the preparation of the residuum of the former for feeding
cattle. There is an extensive sugar-refinery, which has
been conducted by the Thornton family for one hundred
and thirty years, and affords employment to about
eighty persons, A large portion of the produce is ex-
ported to Germany, Prussia, amd the Mediterrunean,
There are also some large brewerics.  The market days
are Tuesday and Friday; the former for corn, which is
sold in the corn exchanpe: there is also a customary
market for provigions, on Saturday: in the market-
place, which has been recently improved, is a fine
equestrian statue of William [11,

The town was incorpora-
ted by charter of Edward L
in which the inhabitants are
styled “ free burgesses,”
and the chief magistrate the
warden. Richard II. con-
firmed and extended the
charter of Edward 1., and
vested the government in
a mayor and four bailiffs ;
and Henry V1., who erect-
ed the townandlibertiesinto
a county of itself, under the
designation of ““The Town
and County of the Town of Kingston upon Hull," em-
powered the inkabitants to elect thirteen aldermen, one
of whom was to be mayor. Under this charter, which
has been confirmed and enlarged with additional privi-
leges in succeeding reigns, the government is vested in
a mayor, recorder, twelve aldermen, gheriff, cham-
berlain, &c. assisted by a town clerk, sword-bearer,
two mace-bearers, and svhordinate officers, The mayor
is chosen annuslly on the SOth of September, by the
burgesses generally, from two aldermen nominsted to
that office: ‘the recorder is appointed by the king, bn
the yomination of the mayor and aldermen, and holds
hiu:olfice for life : the sheriff is chosen annnally, by the
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burgesses at large, from two buigesses nowinated by
tht‘:.g mayor an?lrgae;ld.ermen ; and the chamberlaim and
water-hailiff in the same manner, from burgesses noti-
nated by the mayor: the town clerk is appointed by
the king, on the nomination of the mayor and alder-
men, and holds his office for life: there are other offi-
cers appointed by the mayor and aldermen, of which
the principal is the “ town's husband,” who keeps the
accounts of the corporation, and receives their rents.
There is also an annual officer of the corporation,
called the water-baililf, who collects the port dues
belonging to that body. The mayor, recorder, and al-
dermen are justices of the peace, and have exclusive
jurisdiction within the town and county of the town.
The corporation possess admiralty juriediction within
the limits of the port, and hold general quarter ses-
sions of the peace. They hold a court of record for
civil actions to any amount, under the charter of the
16th of Henry VI, at which the mayor and sheriff
preside, and of which the town clerk is prothonotary ;
and a court of requests is held every fortnight, by com-
mizsioners appointed under an act passed in the 48th of
George 111, for the recovery of debts not exceeding £5,
The jurisdiction of both these courts extends over
the whole of the town and county of the town. The
freedom of the borough is inheritedsby birth, acquired
by servitude, and obtained by purchase or gift of the
corporation : every son of a burgess, born ufter the
father has taken up his {rcedom, is entitled to be ad-
mitted at the age of twenty-one, whether he was born
within the borough or not; and an apprentice, having
served his time to a burgess, is entitled, though the
master resides without the limits of the borough., On
the gift of the freedom it is necessary there should be
present, in order to constitute a court, the mayor and
seven aldermen. The assizes for the town and county
of the town were formerly held here by the judpes
when on their circuits, but an arrangement has long
since been entered into, hy which the business is
transferred to the assizes at York. A new guol and
house of correction, situated on the Humber bank,
has lately heen erected, at an expense of £22,000, upon
the plan recommended by Mr. Howard, which thus
supersedes the old prison and former house of correc-
tion, both of which were exceedingly defective. In the
parish of Sculcoates is & neat hall for the admini.
stration of justice, and for other public purposes, where
the petty sessions for the Hunsley-Beacon divieion and
other parts of the East riding are held #very Tues-
day. This borough returned burgesses iament .in
the 33rd of Edward L, but from that. th#e it omijted
sending till the 12th of Edward II., since which it4
regularly returned two members : theright of elecs
is vested in the burgesses at large: the sheriff.is.

returning officer,  Andrew Marvel, #.man of stern™
compromieing integrity, this borough impers

repivesented P
lisment from 1658 to 1878;in which year he died, |
was interred in the mbf St.Gt:;s'- in the Fifids;
London, at the expense of the corporation, having How
the last member GW _ t who received payfiom
his constituents, - #.- SR

Hull, about. the’ yeter 1584, was made the. sos w28’
suffragan ‘bishop, who had a stately palace:jn thie ¥
gtreet, but it did nat long retain that di 2 Jin,; :
offive wity-abiolished on the ‘death .of

sy
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én thi"parigshes of St. Mary and the
Iy Bdhity,"Both in the archdeaconry of the East

, and diocese ‘of York, The living of St. Mary's is
@ perpétual curcy, endowed with £4200 royal bounty,
andin the putronage of 8. Thornton, Esq. : the church,

of which the greater part was demolished in the reign of

Henry VIIL., consists principally of the chancel of the
arigimal structure, which was enlarged in 1570, and to
which a steeple was added in 1696 : it contains some
windows in the later style of English architecture,

e living of the parish of the Holy Trinity is a vicar-

age not in charge, in the patronage of the Mayor and’

Corporation : the church is an ancient and spacious cru-
ciform structure, with a lofty and every beautiful tower
rising from the intersection, and supported on piers and
arches of clegant proportion : the cast end is in the
decorated style of English architecture, the transepts
being fine specimens of the earliest period of that style;
and the window in the scuth transept is filled with
tracery, and enriched with mouldings of curious cha-
racter : the nave is separated from the aisles by elender
piera and graceful arches, and, being only partly pewed,
affords a fine open view of the chancel, in which are
some beautiful niches and stalls, and a superb monu-
ment in the decorated style, with a rich canopy and but-
treeses. The church, dedicated to St. John, in this pa-
rish, was completed, in 1792, at the sole expense of the
Rev. Thomas Dikes, L.L.B.: it is a ncat edifice of brick,
to which a tower has been subsequently added. The
living is n perpetual curacy, the right of presentation
to which, on the demige of the founder, will belong to
the Vicar. The parliamentary commissioners for the
erection of churches have also granted a sum for build-
ing & church, or chapel, in Myton, within this parish,
which is now in progress. There arc places of worship
for General and Particular Baptists, the Socicty of
Friends, those in the late Countess of Huutingdon's
Connexion, Independents, Primitive, Wesleyan, and New
Connexion of Methodists, Swedenborgians, Unitarians,
& Roman Catholic chapel, and a synagogue: there is a
mariners' chapel, also a flonting chapel in the junction
dock, supported by the contributions of churchmen and
dissentcrs.

The grammar school was founded, in 1486, by Dr.
Alcock, a native of Beverley, and successively Bishop of
Rochester, Worcester, and Ely ; and the present school-
house was rebuilt in 1583 : the school is open to all the
sons of burgesses, on the payment of 40s. anmually, for
clupsical instruction only: writing and arithmetic have
been 3 ced, and are now tuught at a charge
of four guinégé per anvum for the sons of freemen, and

. for the sons of non-freemen. An exhibi-
oAk to: Oxford or Cambridge was founded jn its behalf,
B Thommas Ferres, alderman, in 1630 : and a scholarship

b of the culleges at Cambridge, by Thomas Bury,
097" which have been for a long time consolidated :
ikl yearly income of the property in trust for this
fposeia £83. 2. 2f. Among the distinguished mas-
of s sohoal may be enumerated John Clarke, M.A.,

wuthor of the Easay on Study, and translator of some

of the clussios ; 'and Joscph Milney, M.A., author of the
¥ v of.the Christien " Of the eminent men
ooty Tadme D.D., late Dean of Carlisle; W.

iree, Haq., the senator and philenthropist ; and
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Archdeacon Wrangham. The Vicar's chool, in which up-
wards of fifty hoys are educated, was founded about 1737,
by the Rev. William Mason, vicar of this parish, and fa-
thl.'l" of the poet: the sum of £400 was originally raised
for its endowment, and several legacies have since been
added. The Marine school, near the Trinity House, was
estublished in 1786, and is supported hy the funds of
thut fraternity ; thirty-six boys are completely clothed,
and instructed in writing, avithmetic, and navigation.
Cogan's charity school for girls wus founded, in 1753,
by un aldermen of that nwme, who endowed it with
about £2000 three per cent. consols., for clothing and
Instructing twenty poor girls, A further) sum of £300
in the same stoek was added by the founder, in 1760 :
the property produces annmally wpwards of £400. In
1622 the number was inereased to forty, and a mar-
riage portion is given to those girls who remain in re-
spectable service seven years.  National schools, open
to children of all denominations, were erected, in
1806, at an cxpense of £4000, and wiford instraction
to three hundred boys, and one hundred and seventy
girls, each of whom pays one shilling per quarter,  The
Church of England Sunday School Association, and the
Sunday Schoal Union, both founded in 1819, instruct
not fewer than seven thonsand children, who are su-
perintended by one thousand six hundred and thirty
teachers,  The Dissenters also support n considerable
number of schools, and their Sunday schools are upon
an extensive scale,

The * Guild of the Holy Trinity,” established by the
masters, pilots, and seamen of the Trinity House in Hull,
in 1369, for the relief of decayed scumen and their
widows, was incorporated by charter of the 20th of
Henry VI., which has been renewed and cornfirmed by
seven others. This corporate body consists of twelve
clder brethren, six assistants, and an indefinite number
of younger brethren, who are pilots of a superior class :
from the former two wardens, and from the latter two
stewards, are annually chosen,  The annual expenditure
exceeds £11,500; the revenue arises from property in
land and the funds, from tolls, imposts, and duties on
goods brought into or conveyed out of the port of Hull,
and various other sources ; of this amount, the primage
of threepence per ton on goods yields ahout £3400 an-
nually, on an average ; the property given by Alderman
Ferres, of which the brethren of the Trinity House arc
trustees, produces about £ 1660 annually ; a levy of six-
pence per month on the wages of all scamen employed
in vessels belonging to the port, produces an additional
£700 per annum, which last sum is appropriated to the
relief of distressed members of the Merchant Scamen's
hospital, and the remainder arises from the funded pro-
perty and other sources. The Trinity House was origi-
nally founded in 1457, and was rebuilt in 1753 : the
building forms a handsome quadrangle surrounding a
spucious area : the north, south, and east sides consist of
single opartments for thirty-four pensioners: the front
is ornamented with a freestone pediment of the Tuscan
order, in the tympanum of which are the king's arme,
with the figure of Neptune on one side, and that of Bri-
tannie on the other. On the side towarde the west are
the hall and housekeeper's rooms, with kitchens and
other offices, over which are two elegant council-cham-
bers, for transacting public business. Thewvarious apart-
ments of this building contain several curfosities brought
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from foreign countries, and are decorated with & number
of paintings. Adjoining the front of the Trinjty House
is & handsome chapel, built in 1772, and fitted up in an
elegant manner for the purpose of divine worship. Ro-
binson's hospital contains six rooms for younger brethren
and their wives: it was granted to the corporation in
1682, by the founder, William Robinson, Esq., then
sheriff of Hull, and in 1769 rebuilt and enlarged with
six additional rooms, for the reception of as many wi-
dows, The Marine hospital contains nine rooms, of
which eight are occupied by seumen and their wives, the
other by an unmarried seaman. Watson's hospital af-
fords accommodation for six widows, Ferrcs's hospital,
recently crected at an expense of £2000, has accommo-
dation for twenty or thirty inmates. The Merchant
Seamen's hospital supplies accommodation for twenty
geamen and their wives: there are also several out-pen-
sioners of various classes ; and temporary relief is af-
forded to poor shipwrecked mariners and their families.
A marine school is also supported by this society, inwhich
thirty-six boys are clothed and educated for the sea ser-
vice, The charter-house wis founded in the year 1384,
by Michael de la Pole, first Farl of Suffolk of that nume:
having been destroyed in the time of Charles I, it was
rebnilt at the end of the civil war ; this building was
taken down in 1780, and the present spacions and hand-
some structure was crected in its stead: it was enlarged
in 1803, and now furnishes accommodation for twenty-
cight men and twenty-nine women : the establishment
is under the direction of a master, who has a stipend of
£200 per annum, with a house und garden. The revenue
of this hospital, which in 1660 amomnted to no more
than £54, now amounts to more than £5000, arising
from the rental of land, and « share in the Hull Dock
Company's concerns. Gregg's hospital was founded
in 1416, for twelve poor women. ITarrison’s hospital,
founded in 1550, for ten poor women, was enlarged
in 1795, by Mrs. Mary Fox, who increased the num-
ber to fourteen, Gee's hospital, built about the year
1600, affords an asylum to ten poor aged women. Sir
John Lister, alderman, and M. P, for Hull, founded
an hospital, in 1641, for the reception of twelve aged
persons, with suitable apartments for a lecturer. In
1775, Mr. John Buttery assigned to the mayor and bur-
gesses three mortgages, amounting in value to £410,
in trust for the benefit of Weaver's hospital, which is
occupied by six poor women. Crowle's hospital was
established in 1661, for twelve poor women of the age
of fifty and upwards. Dr. Thomas Watson, Bishop of
St. David's, erected almshouses for fourteen aged per-
sons, about 1687, which were endowed with £300 by
his brother, William Watson, in 1721. The hospital in
Salthouse-lane contains rooms for four poor persons;
and the indigent receive extengive benefit from sums be-
queathed for the purpose of employing them, for putting
out apprentices, and for occasionsl distributions in
maoney #nd bread. The charity hall, or workhouse, estab-
lished by an act passed in the 9th and 10th of Wil-
liam I1I1., is under the direction of the mayor and slder-
men, with ‘twenty-four other persons chosen from the
six wards of the town, who are incorporated by the nete
of “The Governor, Deputy Governor, ‘Guardiaus, and
Assistants of the Poor :" the provisions of the original
act were confirmed and extended by the 8th of Queen
Amnel’and again by the 15th and 28th of George IL™
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The general infirmary, a snort -asgnes from the
town, on the Beverley road, was erected in 1762, af an
expense of £4126: it has accommodations for sefenty
in-patients; the average expenditure is £ 1400, annusily
raised by subscription : three physicians and three sur-
geons attend gratuitously. The digpensary for Hull'and
Sculcoates was instituted, Sept. 1st, 1814, at an annual
expense of £350 : and there are, an asylum for the in-
sane, established in the same year, and capable of cone
taining from eighty to ninety patients; alying-in charity;
Jnstituted in 1802 ; a dispensary for curing diseases of
the eye and ear, in 1922 ; the Poor and Strangers’ Friend
Society, established in 1795 ; an Educational Clothing
Society, in 1820; a Humane Society, in 1800; and other
associations of a similar kind, which confer important
benefits, There is an Annuitant Society; and a savings
bank was established in 1818. .

A few religious houses existed here previously to the
general suppression; but their remains have all been
swept away by the tide of modern improvement. In
1331, Gilfred de Hotham, a devout knight, founded a
priory for Black monks, in the street called Blackfriar-
gate, Of this religious house, a square tower, and a
pile of buildings used as an inn, remained about half
a century ago, behind the old guildhall, ut the top of the
market-place: these were removed when the house of egr-
rection was built ; and when, subsequently, the hall itzelf
was pulled down, and the present runge of buildings
erected for shambles, in 1806, some groined arches of
brick were discovered under the hall. Hull is the
hirthplace of several persons of distinction, umoug
whom are Dr. Thomas Johnson, an eminent physician
and botanist ; Sir John Lawson, a digtinguished vaval
officer in the reign of Charles 1L ; the Rev. W, Mason,
the poet, and the friend and biographer of Gray ; Wil-
liam Wilberforee, Esq.; Mr. Porden, the architedt's
Charles Frost, Esq., F.5.A., author of some tracts off
legal subjects ; John Crosse, Ieq., F.5.A., and Joh )
Broadley, Esq., F.8.A,, the patrons of literature an
science; A.H. Haworth, BEsq., F.R.S., author of "Lepi-f
doptera Britannica, &c.;" William Spence, Esq,, F.L.S.;
author of tracts on Political Economy, and an Introduey
tion to Entomology ; Thomas Thompson, Esq., author of
tracts on the Poor Laws, &c.; and P, W. Watson, Esq,,
the author of “Dendrologia Britannica:” all thess were
natives of the town or neighbourhood, and residents iy
Hull, Andrew Marvel, M.P. for this borough %&@
reign of Charles IL, is also commonly supposed to-lisve
been born here, but the place of his nativity was ‘Wine-:
stead, near Partington, in the East riding, of which plasg
his father was rector. The titles of Duke of Kingston,!
and Earl of Kingston upon Hull, formerly belonged to;
the Pierrcpoint family, but in 1773 they became extifig

KINGSTON ncar LEWES, a 'pstish in the
dred of Swanporoucs, rape of LEWES, count
Syssex, 2 mile (8. W.) from Lewed, containing 1727
babitants. The living is » vicarage, With which that sg
Iford isunited, in the archdenconry of Lewes, and di
of Chichester, ratel in Wie king's books at £8,
Mrs. Jackson was patroness in 1822, LS

KINGSTON by SEA, otherwise KIN
BOWSEY, a parish inéthe hundred of Je:
rape of BRAMBENR, €ounty of Svssex, 1 mflt
New Shoreham, containing 56 inhgbitants,’ The M
is ‘s pectory; id the archdeaconry of Lowek; sud il
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k. opted bghe king's books at £12. 19. 2.
p Krg. was ﬁhtmn.:'g: 1809. This place is
spposite to the entrince to Shoreham new
, Which bounds it on the south.

KENGSTON upon SOAR, a parish in the southern
division of the wapentake of RusscLivFr, county of
Norrincram, 14 mile (W.8. W.) from Kegworth, con-
taining 166 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, annexed to the vicarage of Ratcliffe upon Soar,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, endowed with
£100¢ ‘royal..bounty. William Strutt, and William
Harrison, Esqrs, were patron in 1827. The church is
dedicated to St. Wilfrid : the doorway of the western
porch is' Norman, and the east end is in the latter st.y]e
of. English architecture, built for the reception of u
mooument of uncommon splendour to one of the 3:1-
syagton family, the remains of whose ancient mansion
are. still visible in the neighbourhood.

i T KINGSTON upon
THAMES, a parish in the
first division of the hundred
of Kixesron, county of
Surrry, comprising the
market town of Kingston,
* which has a separate juris-
diction, and the hamlets of
* Hamwith Hatch,and Hook,
and contuming 6091 inha-
bitants, of which number,
4905 arec in the town of
Kingston, 174 miles (N.E.)
frg_ Guildford, and 121 (S.w.) from London, on the
J*E to Portsmouth. This town, which, according to
Judandl, was built in the time of the Saxons, appears
"t0 Hlive . derived its nume Kyningestun from its having
‘b8 -held in royal demesne, and the place in which
mprany of the Saxon kings were crowned, among whom
dwere Athelstan, Edwin, Ethelred, Edward the Elder,
*Edmund, Edward the Martyr, and Edred. Near the
‘town-hall is a large stone, on which, according to tra-
difion, the ceremony of coronation was performed, and
atatues of several of those monarchs were preserved in
the chapel of St. Mary near the spot, which, having
been undermined by the digging of a grave, fell down
o 1780. The present town appesars to have risen from
the ruins of a more ancient one, called Moreford, from
y ford across the Thames, and which Dr, Gale supposes
$iave been the Tamesa of the geographer of Ravenna,
pfecture resting chiefly on the frequent discovery
erous relics of Roman antiquity in the imme-
“yicinity.  Vestiges of the old town, a little
‘the east of the prescnt, were till very lately dis-
ils. in the foundations of houses and other build-
,@d the site of 2 Roman ccmetery seems to have
ascertaingf by the numerous scpuichral urns,
ning ashes and other relics, that have heen
sofl the spot. Recently, on digging the foun-
“for. a new hridge across the river, several Ro-
ary weapans, consist ng of spear-heads and
‘beautiful workmanship and jn a good state
tlom, were discovered, and are now in the
# gentleman resident in the neighbour-

v

bys, with Roman ornaments lying near
¢ 409 field near the spot, on the Surrey side of the
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river ; these discoveries have given rise, to an apinton
that Casar, on quitting his encampment on Wimbledon
common, crogsed the Thames at Kingston, and not at
Weybri_dgc_, as hag hitherto been imagined ; the skele-
tons being those of some of his troops that fell in endea-
vouring to force the passage of the river against the
opposing Britons, whose slain are supposed to be in-
terred in o tumulus (not yet opened) in a ficld called
the Barrow field, on the Middlesex side of the river, and
about half a mile from the spot where the weapons
were found.  In the latter part of the reign of Egbert,
an ccelesiastical council was held at Kingston, at which
that prince was present, together with most of the dig-
nitaries of the Anglo-Saxon church, and the nobility.
During the parliamentary war, the ihabitants embrac-
ed the causc of their sovercign, and suffered severely
{?r their loyalty und attachment to the interests of the
ing.

The town is pleasantly situated on the southern bank
of the Thames, over which was a very ancient wooden
bridge, noticed in a record of the 8th of Henry 111,
and, with the exception of Old London bridge, the
oldest of that river; it has been replaced by an ele
gant structure of Portland-stone, consisting of five
spacious elliptical arches, completed in 1828, at an
expense of £40,000, and surmounted by a handsome
corpice and bulustrade, with galleries projecting over
the piers.  The houses are in gencral indifferently built,
amd the appearance of the town, which is paved and
lighted under the provisions of a local act of parliament,
passed in the 12th of George 11, is by no meuns pre-
possessing : the inhabitants are gupplied with water by
pumps attached to their houses, and frora a conduit on
Combe hill, the water of which is conveyed also by pipes
under the river Thames, laid down by Carcinal Wolsey
for the supply of Hampton Court palace. The air is
very sulubrious, and the environs abound with heautiful
scencry.  The trade is priucipally in malt, u great quan-
tity of which is made: there are also an extensive
distillery and brewery, and several flour and oil mills.
The market days nre Wednesday and Saturday, but the
former has nearly fallen into disuse : the fairs are on
the Thursday, Fridey, and Saturday in Whitsun-week,
for horses, cattle, and toys; August 2nd and the follow-
ing day, for horses ; and November 13th and seven fol-
lowing days, which is a large fair for sheep, of which
generally about twenty thousand are exposed for sale ;
also for horses, of which there are seldom less than a
thousand ; and for cattle, of which frequently ten thou-
sand head are sold.

Kingston returned members to parliament from the
4th of Edward II. until the 47th of Edward IIL., since
which time it has made no return, The first charter of
privileges was granted by King John, in the 10th year
of his reign, which was confirmed and extended by
succeeding sovercigns; under that of the 14th of
Charles I, the government is vested in a corporation,
consisting of two bailiffs, high steward, recorder, and an
indefinite number of gownsmen and peers, and a council
of fifteen, assisted by a town clerk, two coroners, four
serjeants at mace, and other officers : James IL, in
1685, grauted o new charter for a mayor and twelve al-
dermen; but,in October 1688, this charter was annulled,
the preceding one of Charles 1. remaining in force. The
bailiffa, who are also clerks of tho market, are. chosen
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from four of the peers and gownsmen noniinated by
the council of ‘fifteen, the bailiffs aud recorder sclecting
one, and the peers the other : the fifteen also elect two
free tenants of the manor to the office of ale-conner,
which forms their introduction into the corporation, and
two of their own body become peers, and are eligible to
the office of bailif. The bailiffs, the late bailiffs, and
the recorder, are justices of the peace within the town
and liberties, and bhave power to hold sessions for the
trial of all offenders not accused of capital crimes. The
freedom of the town is inherited by the eldest son on
the death of his father, or acquired by servitude of se-
ven yeurs apprenticeship to a member of either of the
three companies of Mercers, Vintners, and Cordwainers.
Among the privileges which the freedom confers is ex-
emption trom tolls throughout the realm, from serving
on juries for the county, and, anciently, from contribut-
ing to the expenses of the knights of the shire. A
singular custom connected with the election of the
mewmbers of the corporation is observed, und is said to
be sanctioned by the charter. A match at foot-hall
takes place, in which the lower orders enguge with so
much zeal and activity, that (hc inhabitants of the
principal strects find it expedient to barricade all the
windows in front or their houscs.

The corporation hold general courts of session in
April and October, and a petty session every Saturday ;
at which time they also hold a court of record for the re-
covery of debts to any amount, at which the bailiffs and
recorder preside: the steward of this court is the attorney
general, for the time being, and its jurisdiction extends
over the hundreds of Kingston, Elmbridge, Copthorne,
and Effingham. A court for the hundred of ancient de-
mesne is held every third Saturday, before the bailiffs ;
end as lords of the manor, they hold courts leet and
baron on the Tuesday in Whitsun-week. The town-hall
is an ancient building erected in the reign of Elizaheth,
and partly rebuilt in that of James L, or more probably
of Queen Anne, whose statue is set up on the outside of
the building, and whose portrait is placed in the hall :
the lower part is appropriated to the use of the market,
and the upper part comprises rooms for the several
courts, and for the general business of the corporation ;
the windows are ornamented with stained glass, in whic h
are the arms of James I. surrounded by small shields,
containing the armorial hearings, or devices of the
Saxon and other kings. The town gaol is a small neat
building, erected in 1829, at an expense of £1100, for
the confinement of debtors. The Winter and the Lent
assizes for the county are held in this town, which is in-
cluded in the home circuit: the court-house in which
they are held was built by the corporation, in 1811, at
an expense of £10,000, and contains two spacious
courts for the crown and nisi prius causes: agrand jury
room and requsite offices, attached to which is a house
for the accommodation of the judges. The house of
correction for the county comprises seven warde, one
work-room, two day-rooms, and two airing-yards, for
the classification of prisoners.

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the srch-
deaconry of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, -rated
in the king's books at £20. 6. 3., endowed with £1000
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Provest snd
Fellows of  King's College, Cambridge. The chureh,
dodittted to All Saints, is an sncient cruciform steve-
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ture, in the decorated style of _ hite.
ntnowerming ﬁap '
mouiited by a spire, whi hnwng been g
by a storm in Noverhber 1768, 88 ukeu .

are places of worship for .B ,  thie mﬂ
Friends, and Independents. 'l"he ﬁ'ec grammar school
was founded by Queen Elizabeth, who endowed it with
lands and tenements producing about £100 per annum,
for a head master and an usher appainted. biﬂiﬁ,
with the approval of the bishop of ‘the .diotess : ‘there
are about fourteen scholars, who mimmﬁnewd jn the
clussirs and mathematics: the remains -of an ane:ent
chapel, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, are ‘..
ated to the use of the school, and are at present un

going a course of repair, in which due regard js ]

the preservation of the original architecture. _'B!ne
coat schoul for boys, of whom thirty-two are clothed,
and that for girls, of whom thirty-six are clothéd, are
supported by a share of the funds hequeathed for cha-
ritable uses by Messrs. Smith, Tiflin, Belitha, Mrs, Eliza-
beth Brown, and others. A National school, in which
two hundred and sixty hoys, and one hundred and fifty
girts, are instructed, and for which- school-rooms wese
built, in 1819, by N.Pallmer, Esq., at an cxpense of
£1200; and an infant school for one hundred and
fitty children, for which a building was “erected, in
1828, at an expense of £600, are supported b‘y sub-
scription.  Almshouses for six aged men apd six
women were founded, in 1665, hy William Clegwe, Esq,,
alderman of London, who cudowed them with'houses
and lands producing upwards of £400 per annum, to
which was added £1000 in the three per cent. reduced
annuities, by John Tilsley, Esq., the dividends- om
which are appropriated weekly in sums of four shillings
each, to the almspeople, in addition to £1. 16. ‘per
month from the original endowment : the buildings
comprise twelve neat tenements under one roof, with a
large common hall in the centre. A dispensary is sup-
ported by subscription : and there are nymerous charit-
uble bequests for the relief of the indigent poor! An
hospital, with a chapel dedicated to St. Mary Magﬂn
lene, was founded here, in 1309, by Edward Lovekin, .of
which the original endowment was considerably aug-
mented by his son, John Lovekin, four times;lerd
mayor of London between the years 1348 and 385&
Dr. George Bate, physician to Charles 1L ; DrsWil-
liam Battie, a physician of considerable repufe in
cases of insanity ; and Judge Hardinge, were inaﬂmzd
here.

KINGSTON-BAGPUZE, a parish in the hmdred
of Ock, county of Bxrks, 64 miles (W.) from Abing.
don, containing 327 inhabitants. The living is M'ecte;\y
in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Selisbu
rated in the king's [books at £10. 6. 6%, and 1
patronage of the President and Fellows: of St.
Coliege, Oxford. The church is dedicated to Bt. Jag
At New-Bridge, in this parish, are held two annua]
on March Slst and September 28th. A sharp 4
mish took place here between the army of the!
ment and the reyullntl.mlmﬂlnm wereyde

" cd




Aonfied of Lewxipr, county
B EJ from !huworth The’ populnﬁon

Mz, county of Wirs, 3{ miles (N.E. by N.). ﬁ'om
Meve, cor +828 inhabitants. - The [iving is &
mr'g,.imﬁw anchdeaconry and diocese of Sa;hsbuty
in the King's books at £19. 15, and in the pa-
qu MMWJ,B of Bath, The church is dedi-
cated to. 8ry.

m N-LIELE a joint chapelry with Farlow,
put of “the parish .of Sparsmort which is in
i of SmEIVENEAM, county of BERKS, 5 miles
ngngc containing 357 inhabitants, The
ch was dedicated to St.James, has been de-
There is & place of worship for Baptists,
: KINGS'DON RUSSELL, an extra-parochial liberty,
In the hundred of Ucescomsr, Dorchester division of
the-county of Dorsgr, 1§ mile (L. by N.) from Dorches-
per, containing 79 inhabitants, Here was formerly
n-free chapel, dedicated to St. James, of which a part
b the walls only ig now remaining. Since its demo-
lition;the inhabitants have been permitted, on pay-
ment of 5% per annum to the rector of Long Bredy,
l:obury in the church-yard there, In ancient records
thig place is stated to have been in the parish of Whit-
church-Canonicorum : it had formerly a weckly market,
ﬁnﬂ 8 fgjr annually on the eve, day, and morrow of St.
at

KTN(:QTON SEYMOUR, & parish in the hundred
of CrEWTON, though locally in that of Winterstoke,
ooty of SUMLRSL‘T, 84 miles (N. by W.) from Ax-
bridge, containing 320 inhabitants, The living is a rec-
tory, in the u.rchdeacomy of Bath, and diocese of Bath
snd Wells, rated in the king's books at £29. 3. 114., and
in: the patronage of John Hugh Smyth Pigott, Esq. The
church is dedicated to All Saints: the altar-picce is
adorned with a painting of the Transfiguration, by
Smirke. The parish is bounded on the south by the
river Yeo, and on the west by the Bristol channel, the
waters of which make frequent irruptions into the
adjoining lands, two of which, in 1606 and 1703, are
edinmemorated by inscriptions in the church. The
fmanor- house, erected in the reign of Edward 1V.,
though it has undergone mauy alterations, is still in-
terceting on account of its antiguity.

+ KINGSTON-WINTERBOURNE, county of Dor-
ser.~-See WINTERBOURNE (KINGSTON).

. MINGSTONE, a parish in the hundred of WepTREE,
eounty of Hirgrorp, 7 miles (W. 8. W.) from Hereford,
smmnmg 406 ighabitants. The living is a discharged
e, consolidated with the rectory of Thruxton,

' '_ the king's books at £86. 6. 8., ecndowed with
m _riypal -bounty, and in'the peculiar Junad.lctlon and

ehage of the Dean of Hereford. The church is de-
St; chhael

tha hr
(‘B)

-' , lathe of ST. AUGUSTINE, connty of Kx-:u-r,
o g (8. E.by#.) from Canterbury, containing 301
i M The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
W diogese of Canterbury, reted in the king's books at
.1a$,5“‘3-mm was patron ip 1816, The

}, W!o St. Giles, is principally in the de,

MSWEAR, & parish in the hundred of Haxros,
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county of Devow, 3§ miles (8. W. by 8,) from Brixham,
containing 328 inhabitants. The living is a

curacy, auuexed to the vicarage of Brixham, in the
archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter, ep-
dowed with £200 private bcncfactmn, £200 royal
bounty, and £300 parliamentary The church
is dedicated to St, Thowaes 2 Bec) ('t. Kingswear is
gituated on the eastern side of Dartmouth barbour,
near the mouth of which are vestiges of a castle, and
on the brow of a hill near the village are some remaing
of military carth-works. From Dartmouth castle op-
posite to the ruing of a fort here, a chain was formerly
stretched to prevent ships entcrmg the harbour: this
fort was taken from Sir Henry Carew by General Fair-
fax, in January 1646,

KINGSWINFORD, county of STaFroRb,
SWINFORD (KING'S).

KINGSWOOD, a hamlet in the parish of LunGers-
HALL, hundred of AsueNopon, county of BuckiNnGHAM,
0 miles (W. N. W.) from Ayleshury, containing 56 inha-
bitants.

KINGSWOOD, a township in the parish of Sunor-
wick, higher division of the hundred of Wirrawy,
county palatine of CugsTER, containing 44 inhabitants,

KINGSWOOD, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of LANGLEY and SwINESHEAD, county of GLou-
CESTER, 4 miles (E.by N.) from Bristol. The population
is returned with the parish of Bitton, in which the vil-
lage of Kingswood 11ill is partly situated. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and
diocese of Bristol, endowed with £2400 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of Trustees, The chapel
is dedicated to the Iloly Trinity. Ilere is a free school,
founded in 17485, by the Rev. John Wesley, for clothing
and educating in the classics one hundred boys, the
sons of Wesleyan ministers, under the direction of a
governor and six assistants, and sapported chiefly by
the voluntary contributions of the Methodist societies.
Here are some extensive collieries, from which the city of
Bristol and its vicinity are principally supplied with coal,

KINGSWOQOD, aliberty in that part of the parish
of EwkLL which is in the first division of the hundred
of RE1eaTE, county of Sunuky, 24 miles (N.N. W,)
from Gatton, containing 187 inhabitants. Here wus
formerly a chapel, which has been demolished.

KINGSWOOD, a hamlet partly in the parish of
Larworty, Warwick division of the hundred of Kineg.
Ton, and partly in the parish of Rowineron, Henley
division of the bundred of Bannicuway, county of
Warwick, 5 miles (N.E, by N.) from Henley in Arden,
The population is returned with the respective parishes,
Here is & place of worship for Unitarians.

KINGSWUOD, a parish in the hundred of Cuip-
PENHAM, county of Wirys, though locally in the hun-
dred of Grurpbald's Ash, county of Gloucester, 53 miles
(8. hy W.) from Dursley, containing 1391 inhabitants.
The living iz a perpetual curacy, in the archdeacoury
and diocese of Gloucester, endowed with £200 private
beuefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £ 1000 parliament-
ary grant, and in the patronage of the Inhabitants.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There are pluces
of warship for Independents. and Wesleyan Methodists.
The parish is watered by the Middle Avon, on the banks
of which river are several extensive cloth manuia.r.mneg

See

A free schopl for teaching children to read and write
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wag endowed with £50 per annum, in 1674, by, John
Mayo, Esq. An abbey of Cistercian monks from Tin-
tern was founded here, in 1139, by William de Berkeley,
in honour of the Blessed Virgin, but the society after-
wards removed to Tetbury. In 1170 they once more
removed, and settled at Mireford in Kingswood, near
the old site, and at the dissolution possessed a revenue
of £254. 11. 2. The only remains of the monastic
buildings are the foundations of the two churches and
a gate-house of the gable form, with a range of ruins on
cach side,

KINGTHORP, a township in the parish and lythe
of Prckering, North riding of the county of York, 2
miles (N. E. by E.) from Pickering, containing 52 in-
habitants.

KINGTON, a tything in the parish and lower divi-
sion of the hundred of THORNBURY, county of Grou-
CESTER, § of & mile (W,N.W.} from Thornbury, contain-
ing B31 inhabitants.

KINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Hunring-
TonN, county of HERE¥vornD, comprising the market
town of Kington, and the tuwnsﬂips of Barton and
Bradnor with Rustrock, Chickward and Pembers-Ouak
with Lilwall, and Both-Hergists, and containing 2813
inhabitants, of which number, 1980 are in the town
of Kington, 19 miles (W.N.W.) from Hereford, and 154
(W. by N.) from Loundon. The town, which is of con-
siderable antiquity, is situated on the banks of the river
Arrow, and consists of two spacious streets, Charles 11,
is said to have visited it prior to the futal battle of
‘Worcester, and to have slept at an inn then called the
Lion, but now the Talbot. In a harn still standing here,
the celebrated tragic actress, Mrs, Siddons, made her first
public appearance on the stage. The manufacture of
woollen cloth, which was formerly carried on very ex-
tensively, has entirely ceased; and glove-makjng, which,
until a very recent period, furnished employment to
a considerable number of the inhabitants, has much
declined : there is an iron-foundry and nail manufac-
tory, established in 1815, in which about one hun-
dred persons ore employed. A rail-road has been
constructed from the foundry to Brecon, joining the
canal at Newport. An act of parliament was obtamed,
in 1791, for making a canal from Kington, by Leomin-
ster, to join the Severn at Stourport; but it has been
left unfinished for want of capital. There is a good
market for provisions on Wednesday : fairs are held on
‘Whit-Monday, August 2nd, and September 19th, and
snnual cattle markets take place on the Wednesdaye
previously to February 2nd, Easter Sunday, Old Mi-
chaclmas-day, October 11th, and Christmas-day. Courts
leet and baron for the manor, at the former of which a
bailif is appointed, are held annually. The county
magistrates hold here petty sessions for the hundreds of
Huntington and Wigmore every Friday. A court for the
recovery of debts under 40s. is held once in three weeks.

The living is & vic , with the curacies of Brilley,
Huntington, and Mi church, in the srchdeaconry
- and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
€25, 2. 11,, and in the pa of the Bishop of He-

reford. The church, dedicated to St.Michael, is an an-
ciemt structure, Here are places of worship for Haptists

L)

i Wesleyan Methodists. A free mar school was
ot to the will of Lady Hawkins, who, in

181D, bequeathed money for the purchase of an estaté
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roducing £224. 10. per anuum, of Whish H %
geceivesntghree-fourtha as his salary, and &&w
fourth : the school is open to the children of
Brilley, Huntington, and Michaelchurch, and the j
sent number of free scholars is forty-two. On Bradne

hill, about a mile north of the town, are traces of an
ancient camp ; and there is & rocky eminence in the vi-
cinity, called Castle hill, though it does not appear that
any castle ever stood there, or that it was the site of an

encampiment, ;
KINGTON, or KINETON, a parish in the K.f%ton )
division of the hundred of Kinerow, county of -
wicK, comprising the market town of Kington, and
chapelry of Combrook, and containing 1071 inhabitants,
of which number, 782 ure in the town of Kington, 104
miles (8.8, 8.) from Warwick, and 82 (N. W.'by'W.)
from London. This place, which gives name to the
bundred, is so called from its having been a royal re-
gidence. Ahout a quarter of a mile to the south-west,
on a spot still called Castle hill, was a castle, in which
King John is said to have held his court, but there arg
no vestiges of the building, traces of the moat by whick
it was surronnded being the only discernible remains ;
the site is planted with trees, and at a short distan
from the spot is a well called King John's well, the w.
of which, though very pure, posscsses no remarksblé
qualities. The name Kineton, which is the more ancient;
is thought by some to have been obtained from its havi
been at a very early period & considerabie mart for cattle,
or kine: hy this namnce it was given by Henry 1., to the
monks of Kenilworth, and coming afterwards into the
possession of Milo de Kineton, it was taken from him
by Stephen, and restorved to the monks. The memorable
battle of Edgehill took place near this town, and willig
half a mile of it, a great quantity of bullets was dug up~
in 1800 : about a mile further, on the road to Edgehill,
is a place called Battle Farm, where several of the slain
were interred ; and in & ficld about a mile to the west of
the town ig a tumulus covering scveral hundred of
them: a gold ring was found in the neighbourhood,
and the skeletons of human bodies are frequently dige
covered. '
The town is irregularly built: the houses, in ge-
neral ancient, are of stone, with thatched roofs, \nnd
bear some resemblance to the rudest features g% -the
Elizabethan style; but in detached situatiogs™
are some handsome modern houses, built of . stone
and of brick : the inhabitants are amply supplied with
water from wells ; the air is salubrious, and.tEe environs
abound with pleasant walks, There is no. branch of
trade or manufacture carried on, the inhabitants being
principally cmployed in agriculture. The marjce
which has almost fallen into disuse, Is on Tuesday, S8
was forinerly very considersble for grein; thelds
are, February 5th, which formerly regulated ¢k
of heans for seed, but is now very thinly
and October 2nd, which isigm
the hiring of eervants. ‘The msrket-place
area in which is an old building, or rather
ported on arches of hyick, in one angle
is a small prison forthe texhporary con
fenders. A constable and heed-
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the king's books at £8. 6. 8., endowed with £200
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £1400
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of Lord
Willoughby de Broke. The church, dedicated to St.
Peter, is an ancient cruciform structure, in the early and
decarated styles of English architecture, with some re-
mains of the later Norman style, and having a square
embattled tower crowned with pinnacles, some of which
are wanting; in the tower are windows of clegant tracery,
and under the battlements is a band of antique heads
and hosses. The western entrance is through a richly-
moulded and deeply-receding urch, in the most finished
style of later Norman architecture: the chancel was
rebuilt in 1315, und the nave, aisles, und transepts in
1755 : under an arch at the western extremity of the
north aisle is the recumbent figure of a monk, removed
from the chancel on the rebuilding of the church. A
National school, in which forty boys and thirty girls are
instructed in reading, writing, and arithmetic, is sup-
-purted by subseription ; and there is & smull endowment
in land for apprenticing poor boys. At Combrook, a
chapelry in this parish, is a free school, with a house
for the master.

KINGTON, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of Havresuirg, though locally in the middie
division of the hundred of Oswaldslow, county of Wor-
crsTer, 93 miles (E.) from Worcester, containing 148
inhabitunts, The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdenconry and diocese of Woreester, rated in the
king's books at £8. Mr. and Mrs. Phillips were pa-
trons in 1804, The church is dedicated to St. Jumes,

KINGTON (MAGNA), a parish in the bundred of
RepLang, Sturminster division of the county of Don-

. 8T, 6% miles (W.) from Shaftesbury, containing 456 in-
-:Qfa&hitnnts. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the King's
books at £13. 4.7.,and in the patronage of the Duke of
Portlaud. The church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity.

KINGTON (ST. MICIIAEL), a parish in the north-
ern division of the hundred of Dameruam, county of
‘Wivts, comprising the tythings of Easton-Pereey, King-
ton, St. Michacl, and Langley, end containing 969 in-
habitants, of which aumber, 436 arc in the tything of
Kington, St. Michael, 3 miles (N.N.W.) from Chippen-
ha; The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Wiltt, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's
books at £8. 9. 44., and in the patronage of the Hon,
W.T. L. P, Wellesley. The church is dedicated to St.
Michael. An annual fair for horses and cattle is held
on October 6th. In this parish are considerable re-
mains of three religious houses, the principal of which,
Beunedictine nunnery, in honour of the Blessed Vir-

E , was founded before the time of Heory IL,
“.‘ to the abbey of Glastonbury, the revenue of
the disgolution, was £38. 3. 10.; the remains
ah converted into a farm-house. A free school
' with an annuity of £5, given by Mrs. 8.
in 1730. IsnadLyte, Esq., an alderman of
died in 1650, érected six almshouses, which
with £ 20 per annum.

(WEST), a parjéh in the hundred of
"county of WiLfs, 85 miles (W.N.W.)
xm, containing 285 inhabitants. The
ory, in the archdeaconry of Wilte, and
Giocsme Gl Salisbury, rated in the king’s books at
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£11. 9. 91, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Salishury. The church is dedicated to St.Mary. Near
Ebbedown are vestiges of a small Roman camp. In
the walk to the glebe-house is a small hollow oak, & fa-
vourite resort of Latimer, when that celebrated prelate
held the incumbeney,

KINGWATER, a township in the parish of LANER-

.cosT-ABeey, EsknaLe ward, county of CUMBERLAND,

9 miles (N.E.) from Brampton, containing 331 inhabit-
ants. It derives its name from a stream formed by
several rills jssuing from the mountains, which unite
to the northward of Gilsland.

KINGWESTON, a parish in the hundred of Cats-
asu, county of Somgrskr, 33 miles (N.E.) from So-
merton, containing 111 inhabitants, The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and dio-
cese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£10. 6. 3. W. Dickenson, Xsq. was patron in 1827.
The church is dedicated to All Saints.

KINLET, a parish in the handred of StorTesnen,
county of Saror, 55 miles (N, E. by N.) from Cleobury-
Mortimer, containing 552 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Salop,
andl diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
£8. 2. 4. William Child, Esq. was patron in 1814,
The church, dedicated to St. Peter, is an ancient cru-
ciform structure in the Norman style, and contains
several splendid monuments of the family of Blount,
whose ancestors came over with the Congueror.

KINNERLEY, & parish in the bundred of Oswgs-
TRY, county of Savor, 63 miles (S.E. by 8.) from
Oswestry, containing 1167 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of St. Asaph, rated in the king's hooks at £7. 6. 8.,
and in the patronage of the Crown., The church is de-
dicated to St, Mary.  The ancient castle was demolished
during the minority of Henry I1L, by Llewellyn, Prince
of Wales, who agreed to make reparation for the act,
though it was never habitable afterwards.

KINNERSLEY, a parish comprising the township
of Newchurch in the hundred of Worrny, but chiefly
in the hundred of STrETrorDp, county of Hererorp,
44 miles (W, by §.) from Weobly, containing 340 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's bhooks
at £13. 8. 4,, and in the patronage of J. A. G, Clarke,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. James,

KINNERSLEY, a parish in the Newport division of
the hundred of Braprorp (South), county of Savor,
4% miles (N, N. E.) from Wellington, containing 253 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's boaks at £6. 1, 8. Earl Gower was patron
in 1816. The church is dedicated to St. Chad.

KINNERTON (LOWER), a township in the parish
of DovprLestoN, lower division of the hundred of
firRox1UN, county palatine of CuEesTER, 5§ miles (8. W,
by W.) from Chester, containing 85 inhabitants.

KINNEYSIDE, a township in the parish of S7.
Bees, ArLLerpaLe ward shove Dsrwent, county of
CuMBERLAND, 3% miles (N.E. by N.) from Egremont,
containing 225 inhabitants, of whom many are em-
ployed in the extensive lead mines worked here, and
others at the smelting-mill belonging to the Londou
Lead Company.
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KINOULTON, a parish in the southern division of
the wapentake of BinguaM, county of NoTriNcaam,
9 miles (8.L.) fram Nottingham, containing, with the
extra-parochial liberty of Lodge on the Woulds, 370
inhabitants. The living is a disc d vicarage, in the
peculiar jurisdiction of the Vicar, rated in the king's
books at £7. 18. 11., and in the patronage of the Arch-
bishop of York. The church is dedicated to St. Wilfrid.
There was anciently a chapel at Newbold, in this parish,
but no vestiges of it are now visible. The Grantham
canal passes through the parish, and the old Fosse road
forms its western boundary. Kinoulton is in the ho-
nour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at Tutbury every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 40s. In
the neighbourhood is an excellent chalybeate spring,
called the Spa. Here was formerly a palace belonging
to the Archbishops of York, but there are now no ves-
tiges of it.

KINSHAM, a parish comprising Lower and Upper
Kinsham, in the hundred of WicMoRE, county of He-
REFORD, 34 miles (E.) from Presteipne, containing 167
inhabitants. The living is & perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, and in the pa-

of the Earl of Oxford.

KINSHAM, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
Brepon which is in the middle division of the hundred
of OswaLpsLow, county of Worcester. The popula-
tion is returned with the parish.

KINTBURY, a parish (formerly = market town)
in the hundred of Kintpurv-EAGLE, county of Benrks,
3% miles (E. 8. E.) from Hungerford, containing 1763
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdea-
conry of Berks, and diocese of Salishbury, rated in the
king's books at £20. Charles Dundas, Esq. was pa-
tron in 1798, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is
partly in the Norman style of architecture. There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The Kennet
and Avon canal passes through the purish; and on the
banks of the river Kennet there is a silk-throwing mill,
affording employment to about one hundred persons.
Kintbury had formerly a market on Friday, and two
annual fairs, one on the festival of the Nativity of the
Virgin Mary, the other on that of St. Simon and St. Jude,
granted, in 1268, to the nuns of Shaftesbury. In digging
a grave here, in 1762, a considerable number of Saxon
coins of Edred, Edwy, end Edmund, wes discovered
under a scull.

KINTON, a township in the parish of LEINTWAR-
ping, hundred of Wiemorg, county of Hererorp,
containing 197 inhabitants.

KINVASTON, a township in that part of the parish
of WoLverHAMPTON Which i8 in the eastern division
of the hundred of CurTLESTONE, county of StAavrorp,
containing 19 inhabitants. Dr. James, a distingnished
phyeician, was born here in 1703 ; he died in 1776.

KINVER, county of Starrorp,—See KINFARE.

KINWALSEY, a hamlet in the parish of Hamrron
in ArpeN, Solihull division of the hundred of Hem-
:imaronn, county of Wanwick, containing 20 inha-

tants.
. KINWARTON, = parish in the Alcester divigion of
the bundred of BanLioaway, county of Warwick, 14
wiile (N.R.) from Alcester, coptaining 41 inhsbitants, The
livine is 8 rectorv. with the miradea of Greak Alne amd
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Weethley, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Worces-
ter, rated in the king's books at £17. 11. 04, and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Worcester. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary,

KIPLIN, a township in that part of the parish of
Carrenrick which is in the eastern division of the wa-
pentake of Giruing, North riding of the county of
York, 24 miles (E. 8. E.) from Catterick, containing
100 inhabitants,

KIPPAX, a parish in the Jower division of the wa-
pentake of Sxyrack, West riding cf the county of
York, compriging the townships of Allerton-Bywater,
Kippax, and Great and Little Preston, and containing
1765 inhabitants, of which number, 958 are in the town-
ship of Kippax, 64 miles (N. W. by N.) from Pontefract.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeacon-
ry and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£5. 7. 1., endowed with £200 private henefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, This place is said
tu have derived its name from a mount raised by the
Saxons, called the Keep, whereon the village now stands,
and from a remarkable ash which grew near it, hence
Keep-Ash, since corrupted to Kippax. There are exten-
Rive coal mines in the parish, through which runs the
river Air, George Goldsmith, in the 36th of Henry VIIL,
founded a free school here, and endowed it with cottages
and land now producing £22 a year, for which eight
children are instructed.

KIRBY, u parish in the hundred of TENDRING, county
of Essex, 11} miles (8. E.) from Manningtree, contain-
ing 853 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
consolidated with those of Thorpe le Svken, and Walton
le Soken, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Sokens, the
wills and records heing deposited at the residence of
the Lord of the Manor, at Harwich ; 1t is rated in the
king's books at £10, and in the patronage of W. P, Ho-
neywood, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Michael.
There is & place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,
The parish is bounded on the north by a creek of the
North sea, which runs up to Landermere. Here isa
wharf for loading and unloading small craft, which
occasionally sail to London with corn. A fair is beld
an the festival of St. Ann, when the lord of the manor
holds his annual court.

KIRBY (COLD), & perish in the wapentake of
Birororth, North riding of the county of Yorx, 7}
miles (E. N. E.) from Thirsk, containing 185 inhabitants,
The living is & perpetual curacy, in the archdcaconry
af Cleveland, and diocese of York, endowed with £800
royal bounty, and in the patronage of Lord Feversham.

KIRBY (MONKS), @ parish in tho Kirby division
of the hundred of KN1eETLOW, cownty of Warwick,
¥ miles (N. N.W.) from Rugby, eontaining, with the
chapelry of Copston-Magna, and the hamicts of Eesen-
hall, Paitton, and Stretton under Foss with Newbold-
Revel, 1659 inhabitants. . The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeacoury of Coventry, and dioocase
of Lichfield and Coventry, vated in the king's boola at
£22. 9.7., and in the patronzage of the Muurud
Fellows of Trinity College, Cambridge. The church ‘is
dedicated to St, Edith. There is a place of worship for
by Ethelireda. Countess of Mercia ; but Gibson Hlaces



KIR

it at Chirbury in Shropshire, on the frontier of the
ancient kingdom of Mercia. A priory of Benedictine
monks, a cell to the abbey of Angiers in Normandy,
was founded here ahout 1077, by Gosfred de Wirchia, the
possessions of which, after its suppression, were annexed
to the Carthusian priory of Axholme, and valued at
£220. 3. 4. per annum,

KIRBY on the MOOR, a parish in the wapentake
of HarLikerp, North riding of the county of York,
comprising the townships of Kirby on the Moor, Lang-
thorp, and a portion of Humberton with Milby, and
containing 458 iuhabitants, of which number, 190 are
in the township of Kirby on the Moor, 1§ mile (N. by W.)
from Boroughbridge. The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of
Chester, rated in the king's hooks at £7. 13. 6., cn-
dowed with £206 private benefaction, and £200 royal
hounty and in the patronage of the Crown. The church
is dedicated to All Saints.

KIRBY (WEST), a parish in the lower division of
the hundred of WinraLy, county palatine of ChrsrEr,
comprising the townships of Great and Little Caldey,
Frankby, Grange, Greasby, Hoose, Great Meolse, Little
Menlse, Newton with Larton, and West Kirby, and con-
taining 1140 inhabitants, of which number, 172 are in
the township of West Kirby, 74 miles (N. W. by N.)
fromm Great Neston, The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's
hooks at £28, 143, 4., and in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Chester.  The church, dedicated to St.
Bridget, was rebuilt in 1786, A frec grammar school
was founded at Caldey-Grange, in 1636, by William
Clegg, Keq., who endowed it with premises now pro-
ducing from £30 to £40 a year, to which an amnuity
of £30 was added in 1677, by a Mr. Bennett, who also
left £24 per annum to buy gowns for twenty-four poor
persons, and an estate at Neston cum Larton, the annual
proceeds of which, amounting to £200, are distributed
among the poor on Good Friday. The parish lies at
the entrance to the river Dee, which bounds it on the
west, and on the north is the Irish sea. At Little
Meolse ure two hotels well frequented, and affording
good accommodation for visitors during the bathing
season,

KIRBY-BEDON, a parish in the hundred of
HensTEAD, county of NorroLk, 33 miles (8. E.) from
Norwich, comprising the consoliduted parishes of St.
Andrew and St. Mary, and containing 201 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £6. 4. 94. Mrs, Muskett was patroness in
1822, The church of St. Mary has been demolished.

KIRBY-BELLARS, a parish in the hundred of
Framrawp, county of LeicesTen, 3§ miles (W. by s.)
from Meltem.Mowbray, containing 203 inhabitants, The
living 48 a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, endowed with £600
royal bonnty, and £200 parliameutary grant. Sir F,
Burdett, Bart. was patron in 1813. The church is de-
dicated to St Peter. A college for & warden and twelve
priests was founded here, in the reign of Edward 11, by
Roger Beller, which, in 1359, was made conventual, for
a prior and canons of the order of St.Augus-
time, and 20 continued to the dissolution, when its re-
veaye was estimated at £178, 7. 10.
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KIRBY-CANE, & parish in the hundred of Cra-
VERING, county of Norrork, 4 miles (N, W.) from
Beccles, containing $40 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diowese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£10. R. Wilson, Exq, was patron in 1820, The church
is dedicated to All Sninte.

KIRBY-GRINDALYTH, a parish in the wapen-
take of Buckrose, East riding of the county of York,
comprising the townships of Duggleby, Kirby-Grin-
dalyth, und "Thirklcby, and containing 376 inhabitants, of
which number, 178 are in the township of Kirby-Grin-
dalyth, 9 miles (E. 8. E.) from New Multon. The living
is a discharged vicarnge, in the archdeaconry of the East
riding, und diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £4. 9. 7. Sir Tatton Sykes, Bart. was patron in
1789.  The charch is dedicated to St. Andrew.

KIRBY-KNOWLE, a parish in the wapentake of
Birpronrru, North riding of the county of York, com-
prising the chapelry of Bagby, uud the townships of
Balk and Kirby-Knowle, and containing 505 inhabit-
ants, of which number, 188 are in the township of
Kirby-Knowle, 4§ miles (N.E. by N.) from Thirsk. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland,
and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£8.2.1. SirT, Frankland, Bart. was patron in 1797.

KIRBY-UNDERDALE, a parish in the wapen-
take of Bucknrose, East riding of the county of Yorx,
63 miles (N.) from Pocklington, containing 335 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
the East riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
hooks at £6. 3. 4., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to All Saints,

KIRBY-WISK, a parish comprisitg the joint
township of Newsham with Breckenbrough in the wa-
pentake of BirpronrTts, and the townships of Kirby-
Wisk, Maunby, and Newby-Wisk, in the castern division
of the wapeutake of Giuuing, North riding of the
county of Yonk, and containing 8§41 inhabitants, of
which number, 197 are in the township of Kirby-Wisk,
4% miles (W. by N.) from Thirsk. The living is a rece-
tory, in the archdenconry of Richmond, and diocese of
Chester, rated in the king's books at £27. 16. 5. The
Duke of Northumberland was patron in 1808. The
church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. In this pa-
rish were born Roger Ascham, the learned and accom-
plished tutor of Queen Elizabeth ; Dr. George Hickes,
author of the Thesaurus Linguarum Septemptrionalium ;
and Dr. John Palliser, Archbishop of Tuam.

KIRDFORD, a parish in the hundred of RoTaER-
BRIDGE, rupe of ARUNDEL, county of Sussex, 4% miles
(N.E. by N.) from Petworth, containing 1602 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £11,
and in the patronage of the Earl of Egremont. The
church, dedicated to St.John the Baptist, is principally
in the early style of English architecture.

KIRK-ANDREWS upon EDEN, a parish in the
ward and county of CuMBERLAND, 34 miles (W, N.W.)
from Carlisle, containing 141 inhabitants. The living
is & discharged rectory, with that of Beaumont, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle. The church has
long been demolished, and the ruins, removed upwards
of sixty years since, were used in the erection of the
glebe house, The inhabitants attendxﬂivine service at
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Beaumont, but bury their dead in the church-yard here.
There was a still more ancient church at Kirksteads,
about one mile from the site of this, which was at-
tended by the inhabitants of Kirk-Andrews, Beaumont,
Grinsdale, and Orton, but at what period it was de-
stroyed is unknown ; the cemetery, in which stones cu-
riously carved, and human bones have been found, may
vet be traced. The river Eden and the Carlisle canal
run through this parish, which is parcel of the barony of
Burgh. There is a trifling ecndowment for the instruc-
tion of children. On the common is a triple intrench-
ment, near which several urns were discovered about
fnrtyhyean ago. The Roman wall passed through the
parish.

KIRK-ANDREWS upon ESK, a parish in Esk-
DALE ward, county of CUMBERLAND, comprising the
chapelry of Nichol-Forest, and the townships of Middle
Kirk-Andrews, Nether Kirk-Andrews, and Moat, and
containing 2235 inhabitants, of which number, 624 are
in the township of Middle Kirk-Andrews,3miles (N.byE.)
from Longtown. The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the
king's books at £3. 11. 5., endowed with £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of Sir James Graham,
Bart. The church, dedicated to St.Andrew, is a very
picturesque object, standing alone on the western bank
of the Esk : it was erected by Sir Richard Graham upon
the site of a more ancient structure, in 1637, at which
period Kirk-Andrews wus made a distinct parish, having
previously been only a chapelry in that of Arthuret, or
Easton. Here are four charity schools, with endowments
of £5 each begueathed by Lady Widdrington, in 1754.
This parish, which is separated from Scotland by the
rivers Liddel, Kershope, and Sark, and by the Scots’
dyke, forms a large portion of the English border, and
was the scene of almost constant warfare before the
union of the two crowns. Near the church is one of
the ancient tower fortresses erected for the defence of
the border ; and on the steep banks of the Liddel is a
moated place, called Liddel's Strength, believed to have
been the site of the castle of the ancient barons of Liddel.
William, King of Scotland, took this castle in 1174 ;
and David Bruce captured it by assault in 1346. About
a mile from the church is a quarry of good freestone :
over the Esk is a bridge, where many of the rebels, in
1745, were slaughtered by the army of the Duke of
Cumberland. There is a cast-iron bridge across the
same river at Garristown, also two of stone over the
Sark. In this parish is Solway Moss, celebrated for the
victory obtained there over the Scots in the reign of
Henry VIIIL., and for its extraordinary i in No-
vember 1771, when a tract of land was inun-
dated, though it was afterwards recovered and brought
again into cuitivation.

KIRK-ANDREWS (NETHER), a township in the
perish of Kinx-Axpaews upon Eex, Esxbarz ward,
county of CuMBERLAND, com 518 inhabitants.
E:pdn " and e ﬁvﬂofs"k - E:I::

way a portion of the once
o KIRK BRIDE, « parish n the |
5ol , & in the ward and cousmty
of Comnzavans, 5§ miles (N.N.W.) from Wigten, eon-

i the'Mino's hodka at £:5 - and 40 the natranmes oF Bha
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Rev. Francis Metcalfe. The church, dedicated to St.
Bride, or Brydoch, an Irish woman of great sanctity, was
built before the Conquest. The Society of Friends have
a meeting-house here. The parish is watered by the
Wampool, which bounds it on the east and north; the
village being situated on the south side of the astuary of
that river, in which the sand banks are so often shifted
by the violeut meeting of the tides and freshes, that
no bridge hitherto erected has heen found to withstand
their united force,

KIRK-BURN, a parish in the Bainton - Beacon
divigion of the wapentake of Harrriryr, East riding of
the county of York, comprising the townships of East
Burn, Kirk-Burn, South Burn, and Tibthorp, and con-
taining 455 inhabitants, of which number, 119 are in
the township of Kirk-Burn, 4 miles (5.W. by W.) from
Great Drifficld, The living is a discharged vicurage, in
the archdeacoury of the East riding, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's hooks ut £4. 10. 24., endowed with
£ 600 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

KIRK-BURTON, county of York.— See BUR-
TON (KIRK).

KIRKBY, a chapelry in the parish of WaLToN on
the Hivw, bundred of West Derny, county palatine of
Lancaster, 53 miles (N.W.) from Prescot, containing
1035 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Rector of Walton. The church
is dedicated to St. Chad. A school has been erected
here by Lord Sefton, the master recciving £5 a year,
the produce of an ancient bequest. There is also a
bequest from Thomas Aspe, in 1698, for apprenticing
poor children.

KIRKBY, a joint parish with Osgodby, in the north-
ern division of the wapentake of WaLsncrorr, parts
of Linpsky, county of LincoLn, 43 miles (N. W.) from
Market-Raisen, containing, with Osgodby, 214 inhabit-
ants, The living is a discharged vicarage with that
of Owersby, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £8. 14, 4., and endowed
with £200 royal bounty, The church, dedicated to St,
Andrew, though much modernised, appears to have been
originally of Norman architecture ; in the chancel are
gome ancient tombs, Thomas Goodrich, Bishop of Ely,
and Lord Chanmcellor in the reign of Edward V1, wes
born here.

KIRKBY, a joint township with Netherby, in the
parish of Kirksy-OvernLows, upper division of the
wapentake of Craro, West riding of -the county of
miles (W. by 8.) from Wetherby, contain-
etherby, 226 inhabitants. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

KIRKBY in ASHFIELD, & parish in the northern
division of the wapentake of Bmoxrow, county of

Norringman, 5} miles (8. W) from Mansfield; con-
taining 1420 inbabitants. “The kving is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of N : diocese of York]

rated in the Hw.m-ns. 1. 8, snd in-the
patronuge of the of Portland. The chuzeh, dedi-
‘to St. Wilfrid, s ‘& large stone structure, with -
“AhSonik it afiovds & medium of ‘convevance ¢
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the cral and lime which are obtained here in consider-
able quantities. Several of the inhabitants are em-
ployed in frame-work knitting. A free school, erccted
by subscription in 1826, is chiefly supported by the
Dauke of Portland and the rector.

KIRKBY upon BAIN, a parish in the southern
division of the wapentake of GarTrEE, parts of Linp-
sEy, county of LincoLn, 6 miles (S.8.W.) from Horn-
castle, containing, with the township of Tumby, 591
inhabitants. The living is & rectory, in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the manor court of Kirkstead, rated in
the king's books at £13. 13. 61., and in the patronage
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
A school for the instruction of poor children is endowed
with land bequeathed by Richard Brockleshy, in 1713,

KIRKBY in CLEVELAND, a parish in the
western division of the liberty of Lanceavrcs, North
riding of the county of York, comprising the townships
of Great and Little Broughton, and Kirkby in Cleveland,
and containing 685 inhabitants, of which number, 168 are
in the township of Kirkby in Cleveland, 2 miles (S. k.
by 8.) fromn Stokesley. The living comprises a dis-
charged vicarage and a sinecure rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York, the former
rated in the king's books at £5. 6. 3., and the latter
at £21. 8. 61. The Archbishop of York appoints to the
rectory, aud the Rector to the vicarage. The church,
dedicated to St. Augustine, was erected, in 1815, upon
the site of a smaller cruciform structure. A frec
grammar school was founded, in 1683, by Henry Ed-
munds, Esq., who endowed it with a school-house, garden,
and an estate at Broughton, producing £50) per annwmn,
for the benefit of all the poor children of the parish.
A Sunday school, established and supported by sub-
scription, is attended by about sixty of both sexes,
There is also a library for the use of the parishioners,
selected from books recommended by the Socicty for
propagating Christian Knowledge.

KIRKBY (EAST), a parish in the western division
of the soke of BoLINGBROKE, parts of LINDSEY, county
of Lincony, 5 miles (W. 8. W.) from Spilshy, containing
347 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £5. 12. 1., endowed with £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of William Thimbleby, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas. A charity
school is endowed with land bequeathed by Gregory
and Margaret Croft, in 1712.

KIRKBY on the HILL, a township in the parish of
Kirkpy-RavENswoRrTH, western division of the wapen-
take of GiLuiNg, North riding of the county of York,
4 mlles (N. N. w.) from Richmond, contalning 161 in-
*hebitants.
coo-KIRKBY in MALHAM-DALE, a parish com-
Pﬂlhx:he township of Calton in the eastern division,
and the sownships of Airton, Hanlith, Kirkby in Mal-
bam-Dale, Malham, Melham-Moor, Otterburn, and Scoe-
tharpe; in the western division, of the wapentake of
Starncizeex and Ewcross, West riding of the county
of Yorw, and containing 1005 inhabitants, of which
number, 04.iwe in the township of Kirkby in Malham-
Dale, 5%-vailes (& 8.B.) from Settle. The living is a
vicgrage, -in the wochdea and diocese of York,
‘rated in- thokhg‘g ‘hooks at £8. 13. 4, endowed with
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£200 private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and
£1200 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Duke of Devonshire. A free grammar achool was found-
ed here, in 1606, by John Topham, who endowed it with
certain lands which, with subsequent bequests, produce
an income of £21 a year, for which, and moderate
quarterages, from twenty to thirty children receive an
English education; but the classics arc taught free to
those who apply,

KIRKBY (SOUTH), a parish in the upper division
of the wapentake of Oscorpcross, West riding of the
county of York, comprising the townships of North
Elmsall, South Elmsall, South Kirkby, and Shelbrooke,
and containing 1314 inhabitunts, of which numher, 633
are in the township of South Kirkby, 8§ miles (8.) from
Pontefract,  The living is a discharged vicnrage, in the
archdeacoury and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £15. 10, 21, The Rev. James Allott was pa-
tron in 1813. The church is dedicated to All Saints,

KIRKBY le THORPE, a parish in the wapentake
of AsWARDHURN, parts of KesTevex, connty of Lixn-
coLN, 2 miles (E, by N.) from Sleaford, containing 166
inhabitants. The living is a rectory in medieties, united,
in 1737, to that of Asgarby, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Lincoln, rated jointly in the king's hooks at
£9. 12. 6. The church, dedicated to St. Denis, has a
Norman doeor, with some portiong in the early, and a
font and wooden porch in the later, style of English
architecture.

KIRKBY-FLEETHAM, a parish in the eastern
division of the wapentake of Hang, North riding of
the county of York, 4 miles (S.E, by E,) from Catterick,
containing 566 inhabitauts. The living is a discharged
vicurage, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese
of Chester, rated in the king's books at £0. 18, 2., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary.

KIRKBY-FRITH, a liberty in the parish of
GLENFIELD, hundred of SearkeNHOE, county of Ler-
CcESTER, 34 miles (W, by N.) from Leicester, containing
18 inhabitants.

KIRKBY-GREEN, a parish in the first division
of the wapentake of Lancok, parts of KesTevens,
county of Lincorn, 7% miles (N. by E.) from Sleaford,
containing 68 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £11. 7. 6., and in the pa-
trouage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to the
Holy Cross,

KIRKBY-HALL, a township in that part of the
parish of Lirrie Ousesurn which is in the lower di-
vision of the wapentake of CLaro, West riding of the
county of Yagx, 44 miles (8.E.) from Aldborough, con.
taining 55 inhabitants.

KIRKBY-IRELETH, a parish in the hundred of
LonspaLg, north of the sands, county palatine of Law.
LasTER, 44 miles (N. W, by w.) fram Ulverstone, com
prising the market town and chapelry of Broughton ir
Furness, the chapelries of Dunnerdale, Beathwaite
and Woodland with Heathwaite, and the townships o
Low Quarter, and Middle Quarter, and containing 294!
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, it
the archdeaconry of Richmoand, and diocese of Chester
rated in the king's books at £5. 6. 8., endowed witl
£200 private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, an
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£1200 perliamentary t, and in the peculisr juris-
diction and patro r;‘;.:ll:e Dean and Chapter of York.
The church, dedicated to St. Cutbbert, contains several
ancient monuments, and the windows exhibit some
beautiful specimens of stained glass, Here are exten-
siye quarries of a dark blue slate of excellent quelity,
with which vessels are laden at the mouth of the river.
Duddon, which, after separating this parish from that
of Millom in Cumberland, empties itself into the Irish
sea, There is a small bequest by Samuel Wilson, in
1769, towards the support of a schoolmaster.
KIRKBY-LONSDALE, a parish in LoNspALE ward,
county of WESTMORLAND, comprising the market town
of Kirkby-Lonsdale, with the chapelries of Barbon,
Firbank, Hutton-Roof, Killington, Mansergh, and Mid-
dleton, and the townships of Casterton and Lupton,
and containing 3769 inhabitants, of which number,
1643 are in the town of Kirkby-Lonsdale, 30 miles
(8. by w.) from Appleby, and 252 (N.W. by W.)
from London, on the great road from Kendal to
Leeds. The name of this place is derived from its
having been the chief town of the district which had
a church, and the adjunct from ils rituation in » dalc,
or valley, on the western bank of the river Lon, or
Lune. e town is one of the largest in the county,
.and consists of several handsome streets, which are
lighted, but not paved; the three principal ones meeting
nearly in the centre, where is the market-place: the
houses are well built of white hewn stone, and roofed with
bluc slate ; many of them have fine gardens attached :
the inhabitants are supplied with water from a spring
nt Totley wood, one mile distant, by means of pipes,
under the direction of a joint stock company. The
surrounding scenery is highly picturesque, to which the
distant mountains, particularly Ingleborough, the loftiest
of them, give a grandeur of effect rarely excelled : the
peculiar beauty of the valley of Lonsdale, and the eli-
gible society of the neighbourhood, have rendered the
town a favourite residence. A hook society, supported
by subsecription, was founded in 1794, to which & small
permanent library belongs. The manufacture of kit
stackings, for which this place was formerly famous,
has greatly declived; and the weaving of carpets, blan-
kets, coarse linen, calicoe, and gingham, is now carried
on to a small extent. Several mills, built on the steep
banks of the hills, are worked by the Lune, which here
turna machinery consisting of seven wheels placed
almost perpendicularly under each other, by which
two threshing and grinding-mills, a wool-carding mill,
and two tanneries, are kept in action. This river, which
winds round the town, is crossed by a lofty stone
bridge of exquisite workmanship and great antiquity:
it is” ded on a rock, and consists of three semicircu-
lar ribbed arches, the centre arch being much higher
than the others : the road-way is inconveniently narrow.
The market is on Thursday; and fairs are held on Holy
Thursday, and October 5th and 6th, for horned cattle
and horees, and on St.Thomas's day for woollen cloth.
The new market-place, formed in 1822, is a spacious

quadyangle : in the fish market is an ancient market.

i

crosk. - A court leet and view of Frnnkdpledge for the
manir are held annually in October; an
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books at £%0. 15. 2., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bomnty, snd in the patronage
of the Master and Fellows of Trinity College, Cmn-
bridge. The church, which is dedicated to St. Mary,
is & noble structure of great antiquity, with a square
tower nearly seventy feet in height, which was rebuilt
in 1705 : the interior is divided into four great sisles,
by three rows of pillars which support the roof : the
arched doorway under the tower is evidently of Norman
architecture, the bases of some of the pillars, and the
shafts of others, are also Norman, and the east win-
dow, with light detached pillars, is in the early style
of English architecture : the pulpit, which is curiously
carved, was erected, in 1619, at the expense of Mr.
Henry Wilson, who also founded a library attached to
the church, and bequeathed varions sums for charitable
uses. There are places of worship for Independents,
Wesleyan Methodists, and Glassites, or Sandemanians
The free grammar school was founded, in 1591, by let-
ters patent of Queen Elizabeth, and endowed by Mr.
Godshalfe and others: it is under the direction of
twenty-four governors, and, by means of several sub-
sequent benefactions, the endowment has heen aug-
mented, and produces about £50 per annum, which is
received by the master, who has a house for his resi-
dence, and instructs in Greck and Latin about forty
boys, who pay for being taught writing and arithmetic,
besides which he is allowed to take stipendiary pupils :
the school has the benefit of four exhibitions, of £5 per
apnum cach, to Queen's College, Oxford, founded by
Henry Wilson, in 1628; three, of about £20 cach, to
Christ's College, Cambridge, on the foundation of the
Rev. Thomas Wilson, in 1626 ; and three at the same
college, founded by Dr, Thomas Otway, Bishop of Ossory,
who died in 1692. At Sellet Bank, about a mile and a
half from the town, is a chalybeate spring ; and, accord-
ing to tradition, an artificial mount in the neighbour-
hood, called “ Cock Pit Hill," is the tumulus of one of
the British kings. Lonsdale gives the title of earl to
the family of Lowther. .

KIRKBY-MALLORY, a parish in the hundred of
SPARKENEOE, county of LEICESTER, 44 miles (N.N.E.)
from Hinckley, containing, with the chapelry of Earl-
Shilton, 2067 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincaln,
rated in the king's books at £15, and in the patron-
age of Lady Byron. The church is dedicated to All
Saints.

KIRKBY-MALZEARD, a parish in the lower di-
vision of the wapentake of Craro, West riding of the
county of York, comprising the market town of Kirk:
by-Malzeard, the chapelries of Hartwith with Winsley,
and Middlesmoor, and the townshipes of Cozenley, Foun-
tains Earth, Gravelthorpe, Laverton,” Down Stonebeck,

and U Stonebeck, and containing 4963 inhabitants
of which number, 682 are in-the sewasief: Kirkby-Mal-
zeerd, 6 iles (W. N, W.) from ‘Ripem. . The market is
on Wednesday ; and fairs sgh:digid on Whit-Monday

for the ‘Lonsdale ward are held every Thursday. 'I!; Huhlm,
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dedicated to St Afidrew. A ‘school, in which fifteen
children are instructed and five clothedhammmll_ y, is sup-
ported the proceeds of ‘a rent-ci of £5, t
bmdhct?gn of Gilbert Horseman, in 1640, su ntly
augmented with the interest of £100 given by Gregory
Elsley, in 1716.

KIRKBY-MISPERTON, a parish in PickEriNG
Iythe, North riding of the county of Yorx, compris-
ing the townships of Barugh-Ambe, Great Habton,
Little Habton, Kirkby-Miaperton, and Ryton, and con-
taining 809 inhabitants, of which number, 170 are in
the township of Kirkby-Misperton, 3§ miles (5.W.
by 8.) from Pickering. The living is a rectory, in the
srchdeaconry of Cleveland, end diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £25. 1. 104., and in the patron-
age of Lord Feversham, The charch is dedicated to
St. Lawrence, William Smithson, in 1637, bequeathed
a rént-charge of £€10 per annum towards the support,
of a school for all the poor children of the parish.

KIRKBY-MOORSIDE, a parish in the wapentake
of RyepaLe, North riding of the county of York,
comprising the market town of Kirkby-Moorside, and
the townships of Bransdale (East Side), Fadmore, Farn-
dale (Low Quarter), and Gillimoor, and containing 2903
nhabitants, of which number, 1878 are in the town of
Kirkby-Moorside, 29 miles (N. by E.) from York, and
224 (N.byW.) from London. This is & small and irre-
guiarly built town, situated on the banks of the river
Dove, and almost surrounded by steep hills. In the vi-
cinity are-several corn-mills; a considerable quantity
of malt is made here, and there is a small linen manu-
factory. Near the town are limestone and freestone
quarries, and coal mines. The market is on Wed-
nesday ; and fairs are held on the Wednesday in Whit-
sun-week, and September 18th for cattle, sheep, &c.
The living is & discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Cleveland and diocese of York, rated in the king's
hooks at £14. 0. 10.,and in the patronage of the Crown.,
The church, which contains gome ancient portions, with
later insertions, is dedicated to All Saints. There are
places of worship for the Society of Friends, Indepen-
dents, and Wesleyan Methodists. Here is a Sunday
school, with an endowment of £4 per annum, the gift
of the Rev. W, Comber, in 1800, but principally sup-
ported by subscription. The manor of Kirkby-Moor;
gide was given by James 1. to his favourite, the Duke
Buckingham, whose son, the second Duke, having re-
tired hither, died at the manor-house, in 1687.

KIRKBY-MUXLOE, a chapelry in the parish of
GyuexrinLp, hundred of SparkENHOE, county of Le:-
, 44 miles (W.) from Leicester, containing 256
= . Here are the ruins of an ancient moated

icastellated mansjon, formerly belonging to the fa-

Wd“ﬁl
s RIRKSY-OVERBLOWS, & parish in the upper
ivisien of the wapentake of CLaro, West riding of the
B i o Kintoy widh Netherby, Kirkby-
Ywh of Kirkby wi > -
ws&klmghﬂl, and a portion of Swin-
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sowiabip of Kirkby- , 6 miles
Veasluety. . The living is a rectory, in the
York, rated in the king's
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made collegiate previously to 1364, for a provost and
four chaplains, A school was erected by subscription in
1782, and £10 a yeur is paid for teaching six hoys.
KIRKBY -RAVENSWORTH, & parish in the

western division of the wapentake of CiLLing, North
riding of the county of York, 43 miles (N. N. w.) from
Richmond, comprising the townships of Gayles, Kirkby
on the Hill, New-Forest, Newsham, Ravensworth,
Whashton, and a portion of Dalton, and containing
1685 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, £400 royal
bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Bishop of Chester, as impropriator of the
rectory, which is rated in the king's books at £25. 5. 23.
The church, dedicated to St. Peter and St. Felix, is a
handsome edifice, built, in 1397, on the supposed site of
a more ancient one erected by the Saxons,  Near it are
the grammar school, und hospital of St.John the Bap-
tist, founded, in 1556, by Dr. Dakyn, then rector, who
endowed them with lands, &c., ut East Coulton, now pro-
Aucing about £ 1300 per sunum. The school is free for
all who apply for instruction in the classics; the master
receives a salary of £200, and the usher about £70 per
annum. The hospital is for the reception and main-
tenance ofstwenty-four aged persons of both scxes, who
must either be natives of the parish, or resident for ten
years within it. The government of the whole is vested
in two wardens, elected biennially by ballot, who, with
the master of the school, and the inmates of the hospital,
form a body corporate, and have a common scal. Here
are extensive remains of a castle built by Bodin, ancestor
of the Fitz-Hughs.

KIRKBY-STEPHEN, a parish in East ward, coun-
ty of WesTMORLAND, comprising the market town of
Kirkby- Stephen, the chapelrics of Mallerstang and
Soulby, and the townships of Hartley, Kuber, Nateby,
Smardale, Waitby, Wharton, and Winton, and contain-
ing 2712 inhabitants, of which number, 1312 are in the
town of Kirkby-Stephen, 11 miles (8. E. by 8 ) from Ap-
pleby, and 264 (N.N.W.) from London. This town, which
derives the adjunct to its name from the saint to whom
its church is dedicated, is pleasantly situated in a fertile
plain, on the western bank of the river Eden, opposite
the hills which separate this county from Yorkshire on
the north and south: it consists of one good street,
the houses in which are well built, and the inhabitants
abundantly supplied with water; but the town is neither
paved nor lighted. Races are held annually, on Hartley
Ings, about the middle of April. The inhabitants are
partly employed in the woollen manufacture, and in knit-
ting stockings, of which a great quantity was formerly
exposed for sale at the market, but the trade in this ar-
ticle is on the decline: a silk manufactory has lately
been established on a limited scale, and there is a manu-
factory for spinning and carding wool. In the parish
are mines of lead, copper, and coal, which are all worked,
though the coal mines are not very productive ; a kind
of spotted stone i# also found here, which is polished to
make watch-seals and other ornaments. The market is
on Monday, for corn, flour, oatmeal, and provisions.
Fairs are held on the first Monday in Lent, the Mon-
day before March 20th, April 25th, and October 2nd,
for horned cattle, horses, woollen cloth, blankets,
cotton goods, &c.; on the 20th of September chiefly
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for horses, and on the 20th of Odtober for cagtle and
sheep :* there ave statute fairs for hining servents on
the last Monday in June and the first Monday in
July. On the north side of the market-place, which is
spacious and convenient, is a market-house, with a
piazza, called the cloister: the upper part of the edifice is
supported on eight stone pillars, the whole having been
erected in 1810, in pursuance of the will of Mr, John
Waller, who left a sum of money for the dxpress pur-
pose. The county magistrates formerly held petty ses-
sions here, which, although of late discontinued, it is in
contemplation to revive.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's books at
£48. 19. 2,, and in the patronage of the Rev. T. P.
Williamson. The church, which is dedicated to St.
Stephen, is an ancient and spacious building, sur-
mounted by a lofty square tower; the interior is di-
vided into three principal aisles, by two rows of plain
round-shafted colurans which support the roof : there
are sepulchral chapels helonging to Smardale hall.
Wharton hall, and Hartley castle; in the second of
these is g fine alabaster monument, with the effigies of
Thomas, Lord Wharton, and his first and second wives;
and in the last a monumental figure of 2 man in armour,
supposed to have heen erected to the memory of Sir
Andrew Harcla, Earl of Carlisle, and governor of
Hartley castle, who was behended for treason in the
reign of Edward II. Here are places of worship for
Independents and Wesleyan Methodists. The free gram-
mar school, which stauds eastward from the church, was
founded, in the 8th of Elizabeth, by Thomas, Lord
Wharton, and endowed with property producing £52. 3.
per aonum: there are two exhibitions, of £83. 6. 8. each,
to either of the Universities, and one especially to St.
John's College, Cambridge, for & scholar from this
school, or that at Appleby, but these have not been
claimed for several years, The school is held in an an-
cient edifice, formerly the rectory house, and is under
the direction of eight governors, who appoint the mas-
ter : it is open to the boys of Kirkby-Stephen and the
¥icinity, at & small quarterage. Several poor children
are instructed in the Sunday school, which is held at
the poor-house, and is supported by voluntary contri-
butions. There are divers small bequests for the poor
of this parish.

KIRKBY-THORE, a parish in East ward, county
of WesTMORLAND, comprising the chapelries of Mil-
burn with Milburn-Grange, and Temple-Sowerby, and
the township of Kirkby-Thore, and containing 1051 in-
habitants, of which number, 377 are in the township
of Kirkby-Thore, 54 miles (N.W. by N.) from Appleby.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Carlisle, rated in the king's books at £37. 17. 11.,
afitl in the patronage of the Earl of Thanet. The church
is dedicated to St. Michael. There is a place of wor-
ship for Wesleyan Methodists ; alse & school with a
trifling endowment bequeathed by Mr. John Horn, in
1823. This place received its adjunct designation from
Thor, the chief of the  Saxon idols, to whose hanonr
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1687, werediscovered, on turning up ite wite for cultiva-
tion, a four-fold wall, arched vaults, leaden  pipes, an

* gltar inscribed “FomrvNar ServaTric:,” with mpeny

other antiquities, the supposed relics of a Rotnan sta-
tion called.Brovonace, as fixed by Horsley. An ancient
well, several wrng, curious earthen vessels, und other
relics, are recorded as having been discovered in 1684,
near the bridge ; and, about 1770, the horn of a moose
deer was dug up near the confluence of the two rivers,
Not far from the village is a spring slightly sulphu-
reous, termed Potts Well, which rises from an alabaster
rock lying at a considerable depth below the surface.

KIRKBY-UNDERWOOD, a parish in the wapen-
take of AvELAND, parts of KxsTeEvEN, county of Lan-
coLN, 5 miles (N, N.W.) from Bourne, containing 167
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's bouvks at
£6.3. 4., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Linculn,
The church is dedicated to St. Mary and All Saints.

KIRKBY-WHARTE, a parish comprising the town-
ship of Ulleskelf within the liberty of St. PeTER of
Yorx, East riding, and the townships of Grimston and
Kirkby-Wharfe with Milford (a portion of which latter
is also within the liberty of S1. Perer of Yonk), upper
division of the wapentake of Bamrkstone-AsH, West
riding, of the county of Yorx, and containing 574 inha-
bitants, of which number, 86 are in the township of
Kirkby-Wharf with Milford, 24 miles (5.E. by 8.) from
Tadcaster. The living is a discharged vicarage, rated
in the king's hooks at £3. 16. 8., endowed with £500
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in
the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Pre-
bendary of Wetwang in the Cathedral Church of York.
The church, dedicated to St. John the Baptist, has late-
ly received en addition of eighty-six sittings, of which
forty-three are free, the Incorporated Socicty for the
enlargement of churches and chapels having granted
£20 towards defraying the expense. The river Wharfe
runs through the parish,

KIRKDALE, a township in the parish of WarLToN
on the Hiry, hundred of West Dersy, county palatine
of LaNCAsTER, 14 mile (N. by E.) from Liverpool, con-
taining 1278 inhabitants. The petty sessious for. the
Kirkdale division of the hundred of West Derby atc

d here.

KIRKDALE, = parish comprising the townskip of
Norton, with & portion of Wombleton, within the Bberty.
of St. Perer of York, East riding, and the town-
ships of Beadlam, Bransdale (West Side), Muscoates,
Nawtan, North Holme, Skiplam, Welbwsm, and a. per-
tion of Wombleton, in the wapentake of BvepaLE, North
riding, of the county of York, 4} miles (E. B§:N.)
from Helmaley, and containing 1616 inbabitants, - The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Cleveland, snd diocese of -xmwowwm;:fo

; grant, and - in
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that the stone has been removed from its original situa-
tion, and inserted: in the wall for its preservation: the
church has lately received an addition of eighty free
sittings, ‘the Incorporated Society for the enlargement
of churches and chapels having granted £30 towards
defraying the expense. In a cavé near this place, three
hundred feet in extent, and from two to five feet in
height and breadth, various fossil remains of an hyena,
elephant, rhinoceros, hippopotamus, and other animals,
were found in 1820.

KIRK-ELLA, county of Yomrk. —— See ELLA
(KIRK).

KIRKHAM, a parish in the hundred of AMOUNDER-
NESs, county palatine of LancasTeRr, comprising the
market town of Kirkham, the chapelries of Goosnargh,
Hambleton, Ribby with Wrea, Singleton, and Warton,
and the townships of Bryning with Kellasnergh, Clifton
with Salwick, Little Eccleston with Larbrick, Freckle-
ton, Greenhalgh with Thistleton, Medlar with Wesham,
Newsham, Newton with Scales Treales, with Roseacre
and Wharles, Weeton, Westby with Plumptons, and
Whittingham, and containing 11,925 inhabitants, of
which number, 2735 are in the town of Kirkham, 2%
miles (8. by W.) from Lancaster, and 226 (N.W, by N.)
from London. This place, which is of Saxon origin, de-
rived its name from its church, which, soon after the
Conquest, was given by Roger de Poictou to the abbey
of St. Peter and St. Paul in Shrewsbury, from which it
was, by Edward 1., transferred to the monks of Vale
Royal in Cheshire, in whose patronage it remained till
the dissolution. The town,which may be considered as
the capital of a surrounding district called the Fylde
country, though small, is neatly built, and the houses
in general respectable. The manufacture of sail-cloth,
sacking, and cordage, originally formed the principal
source of employment, and is still carried on to a
limited extent; the manufacture of cotton has been re-
cently introduced, and a considerable number of hand-
looms is employed in the town and neighbourhood. At
Wardless, within eight miles of the town, a small port
on the north-east bank of the river Wyre, which is
accessible to vessela of three hundred tons, several of
the principal manufacturers have warehouses for sup-
plying the town with the produce of the countrics
bordering on the Baltic. The Lancester canal passes
at the distance of about three miles from the town,
which suffers from the want of a more varied and
extensive course of inland navigation. Within three
miles is the mstuary of the Ribble, near the mouth of
which, a guide is stationed to conduct travellers across
the gands at low water to Hesketh bank, the passage of

is dangerous to persoms attempting it without
such asgistance. The market is on Thursday : the fairs
are, Febroary 4th and the following day, April 29th, and
Oetober 36th. The town is within the jurisdiction of
the county mamgistrates, who hold a petty session for
the hundred of Amounderness every alternate Thursday ;
and a constable and other officers are appointed annually
at-the comrt leet of the lord of the manor: a court of

roguests ie held monthly, under an act passed in the
§0th year of the zeign of George IIL., for the recovery
of debts under €8s, .the jurisdiction of which extends
over the parishes:, Khmm , Bispham, Lytham, and
i the parish of Laacastr.
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The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Rich-
mond, and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books
at £21. 1. 04, and in the patronage of the Dean and
Canons of Christ Church, Oxford. The church, deds-
cated to St. Michael, was, with the exception of the
tower, which is in thc Norman style of architecture,
rebuilt in 1822, at an expense of £5000, defrayed by
a rate on the parishioners: it contains several ancient
portions of its original character, and some interesting
monuments, There are places of worship for Inde-
pendents and Swedenborgians, and 2 Roman Catholie
chapel. The free grammar school, originally founded
by Isabel Wildinge, was, in 1655, sndowed with a por-
tion of the proceeds of the rectory of Kirkham, pur-
chased by the Drapers’ Comzpuny, with funds hequeathed
in trust to them by Henry Colborne, Esq. ; the endow-
ment was further angmented by the Rev. James Burker
in 1670, by Dr. Grimbaldson, and other benefactors,
the aggregate income now being about £ 550 per unnum :
it is conducted by a head master and two under masters,
appointed by the Drapers” Company, and is under the
management of trustees appointed pursuant to the will of
the Rev, James Barker; it is open to all boys of the parish,
and has an cxhibition of about £100 per annum to
either of the Universities, founded by Mr, Barker, who
also left £50 per annum for apprenticing boys, tn
which purpose the endowment of the exhibition is also
applied when there is no exhibitioner from the school.
There are similar schools at Newton with Scales, and at
Treales, townships in this parish; and in the chapelry
of Goosnargh is an hospital for decayed gentlemen and
gentlewomen, with & considerable endowment. A pa-
rochial school for girls, established in 1760, has an en-
dowment in houses and land producing about £80
per annum, which is appropriated to the clothing and
instruction of forty girls. A National school is sup-
ported by subseription; and there are Sunday schools
connected with the established church and the dissenting
congregations,

KIRKHAM, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
wapentake of Buckrosk, LEast riding of the county
of Yonk, 54 miles (S.w. ly &) fromm New Malton,
containing 7 inhabitants. A priory of Augustine
canons was founded, in 1121, by Sir Walter L'Espec,
Knt., and Adelina his wife, and dedicated to the Holy
Trinity, the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was
estimated at £300. 15. 6.: the ruins of this splendid
establishment stand in a delightful vale watered by the
Derwent ; the fine Gothic tower, covered with ivy, was
blown down in 1784 ; the remaining vestiges are the
northern part of the gate, with fragments of the walls.

KIRKHAMMERTON, county of Yorg., — See
HAMMERTON (KIRK).

KIRKHARLE, county of NORTHUMBERLAND.—-See
HARLE (KIRK).

KIKKHAUGH, a parish in the western division of
TinparLe ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 24 miles
(N.W. by N.) from Alston-Moor, containing 286 iu-
habitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Dur-
ham, rated in the king's books at £4. 7. 84, endowed
with €200 private benefaction, and £ 300 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of Miss Wilkinson. Here
is & emall sum for the instruction of children. Castle
Nook, in this parish, is the site of a Roman station
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which occupies an area of nearly nine acres, being de- KIRKLAND, a township adjoining the town, and in
fended on the west by ten breastworks and trenchés. At the parish and ward, of KenpaL, county of WasTtMoR-

the north-east corner a sudatory was discovered, in
1818, from which flows a copious spring of clear
water : near to the eastern wall is the Maiden-way, and
in the vicinity, a Roman altar. with fragments of a co-
lossal statue, was found some few years since; here,
according to Camden, an inscription was erected, and
a palace built, in honour of the Emperor Antoninus,
about 213, by the third cohort of the Nervii. Over the
stable door of a public house in the vicinity is an altar,
on which are carved a patera and urceolus. An altar,
dedicated to Minerva and Hercules, was also found in
the church-yard, hut has been lost,

KIRKHEATON, a chapelry in the parish of Kirx-
HARLE, north-eastern division of TINDALE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 11§ miles (N, E. by N.) from
Hexham, containing 140 inhabitants. The chapel was
rebuilt in 1755. The school was endowed by William
Lyley, in 1685, with a rent-charge of £5 per annum,
which was augmented by a bequest of £100 from Mrs,
Frances Beaumont, in 1713 (cn children are inrtencted
gratuitously, and the rest pay u quarterage. In 1708,
Richard Beaumont, Esg. devised £10 per annum to
trustees, for apprenticing poor children of this chapelry.
Here are some lime-kilns and a colliery.

KIRKLAND, a joint township with Blennerhasset,
in the parish of TorpENHOW, ALLERDALE ward below
Darweunt, county of CumBeRLAND, 7§ miles (N.E. by E.)
from Cockermouth. The population is returned with
Blennerhasset.

KIRKLAND, a parish in Leatn ward, county of

JUMBERLAND, comprising the chapelry of Culgaith, and
the townships of Kirkland with Blencarn, and Skirwith,
and containing 712 inhabitants, of which number, 217
are in the township of Kirklund with Blencarn, 104
miles (E. by N.) from Penrith, The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeaconry and diocesc of Carlisle, rated in the
king's books at £8. 10., and in the patronage of the
Deun and Chapter of Carlisle. The church is dedicated
to St. Lawrence. A school was established in 1775, and
endowed with land by the commissioners under the en-
closure act; the income is about £60 per annum: from
forty to fifty children are educated. Coal was wrought
at Ardale Head by the late Sir Michael le Fleming ; and
on Cross fell a lead mine, called Bullman Hills Vein, is
in operation, which also yields copper and silver : there
is also a smelting-mill. The circamference of the moun-
tain is twenty miles at the base, and its height two thou-
sand nine hundred and one feet sbove the level of the
sea: on its summit and declivities are various kinds
of moss, herbs, and minerals, During a great part of
the year this mountain is covered with snow, and enve-
loped inclouds : a little below the apex is Gentleman's
well ; and from the swumit is a fine view over a great
part of Bix counties,

KIRKLAND, a township in the parish of GAnsTANG,
hundred of AMounDERNESS, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, 2 miles (8.W.) from Garstang, containing 511
iphabitants, In 1778, Margaret Butler gave £200 for
the erection of & school-house, and endowed it with
€100 ; asugmentations were made, in 1788, by Jane

Buatler's bequest of £240, and in 1818, by Mrs. Elizabeth

Cromwholme's gift of £200: the annual income is €36,
snd eleven childeen are instructed grataitovsly, -

LAND, containing 1378 inhabitants,

KIRK-LEATHAM, a parish in the eastern divi-
sion of the liberty of LangBAuraH, North riding of
the county of Yorxk, comprising the townships of Kirk-
Leatham and Wilton, and containing 1091 inhabitunta,
of which number, 686 are in the township of Kirk-
Leatham, 4} miles (N, N, W.) from Guilshorough. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Cleveland, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £13. 6. B., endowed with £200 royal bounty,
and £ 1200 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
Henry Vansittart, Esq. The church is dedicated to St.
Cuthbert. A free grammar school was founded by means
of a bequest of £5000 from Sir W. Turner, lord mayor
of Loundon in 1669, and erected, in 1709, by his nephew,
Cholmeley Turner, Esq.; the income is about £350 per
annum, of which a master receives a stipend of £100,
and an usher one of £50 per annum, but for a very
considerable length of time no scholars have heen ad-
mitted, the building being occupied in separate teng-
ments, rent-free, by poor families.  Sir W. Turner like-
wise erccted and endowed a splendid hospital, for the
maintenance of forty poor people, viz., ten men and ten
women, and an equal number of boys and girls. John
Turner, Esq., serjeant at law, bequeathed a sum of muoney
for clothing each child on leaving. the institution, which
is under the sole direction of Henry Vansittart, lsq,, in
right of his wife : there are a chaplain, a master and a
mistress, a surgeon, aud a nurse, who have handsome
salaries, and apartments in the hospital, the annual in-
come of which is about £1600. An elegant chapel
adorns the centre of the building, the roof being sup-
ported by four light Ionic pillars; and from the centre
is suspended a chandelier of burnished gold : over the
altar is one of the finest paintings on glass in the
world, representing the offerings of the Magi. A com-
modious library is furnished with valuable works, and
in a handsume case is a likeness of Sir W, Turner in
wax, with the wig and band he used to wear: he was
buried in the chancel of the church among the poor
of the hospital, and a monument has been erected to
his memory at Lazenby in this parish. A chapel in
honour of the Vmgm Mary, with a chantry or hospital,
vhas founded, in the reign of Edward 1., by John e
Lythegraynes, and Alice his wife, for a master and six
chaplaing; the revenue, at the dissolution, was valued
at £9. 6. 8.

KIRK - LEAVINGTON, counnty of YoBk. — See
LEAVINGTON (KIRK).

KIRK-LEES, e hamlet in that partof the parish
of DEwssury which is in the wapentake of Morrxy,
West riding of the county of Yoax, 5 miles (N.N.E.)
from Huddersfield. The popalation is returned with the
parish. Here was a Cistercian numnery, erected in.the

.of Henry II., by Reynerus Flandrensis, and. dedi-
cated to the Virgin ‘and St. James, the revenue of which,
at the was.valned &t £20, 7. 8.: the.oele-
lmtedﬁnhmﬁoodwhmodhm where. his. 4qmb
in yet to he seep.

KIRKLEY,a: w!wihiptn the parish e&!’mtmnn,
western -dixisibn. of Qasrie ward, pounty.of NonTEUM-
BERLAND, 104 rofles (N. W.by N.) .from Neweastle upon
Tyme, pontaiving, with Beoridge and Cartermect, 146
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inhabitants,
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KIRKLEY, a pearish in the hundred of MurrorD
and LoTRINGLAND, county of Surrork, 14 mile (8, W.)
from Lowestoft, containing 337 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£5.6. 104, and endowed with £400 royal bounty.
Robert Reeve, Esq. was patron in 1812. The church
ia dedicated to All Saints, This parish is bounded on
the east by the North sea, and on the north by Lake
Lothing. Kirkley is a small fishing village, in which
are three schools supported by the rector.

KIRKLINGTON, a parish in that part of the li-
berty of SouTEWELL and Scroosy which scparates the
northern from the southern division of the wapentake
of THURGARTON, county of NoTTINGHAM, 34 miles (N.
W. by N.) from Southwell, containing 240 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar juris-
iction and patronage of the Chapter of the Collegiate
Church of Southwell, rated in the king's hooks at
£3. 13. 4., endowed with £600 royal bounty, and £200
parliamentary grant. The church is dedicated to St.
Swithin.

KIRKLINGTON, a parish in the wapentake of
HavrrikeLp, North riding of the county of York, com-
prising the townships of Kirklington with Upsland, Sut-
ton with Howgrave, and East Tanfield, and containing
491 inhabitants, of which number, 437 arc in the
township of Kirklington with Upsland, 63 miles (8. E.
by 8.) from Bedale. Theliving is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, rated
in the king’s books at £25. 7. 84., and in the patron-
age of the Countess of Ormond. The church is de-
dicated to St, Mary. Here is a small endowment for
a school, the bequest of Lady Ormond. In the neigh-
bourhood are vestiges of a Roman or Danish encampment.

KIRK-LINTON, or KIRK-LEVINGTON, a parish
in EskpALe ward, county of CUMBERLAND, 4§ miles
(E. by 8.) from Longtown, comprising the townships of
Hethersgill, Middle Quarter, and West Linton, or Le-
vington, and containing 1931 inhabitants. The living is
& rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle,
rated in the king's books at £1. 1. 0}., endowed with
£1000 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
Mrs. Dacre. The church, dedicated to St.'Cuthbert, is a
Em.l and uniform specimen of the Norman style. Here
8 a place of worship for the Society of Friends. This
parish is bounded on the north by the river Line. Near
Kirk-Linton hall are the remains of an ancient fortress.
The celebrated watchmaker, George Graham, esteemed
the best mechanic of his time, was & native of this

Here is a place of worship for Pres-

_ KIRK-OSWALD, a’parish in Learr ward, county
of CummxguanD, comprising the market town of Kirk-
Oswald, and the township of Staffield, or Staffol, and con-
tainitg 1069 inhabitants, of which number, 760 are in
thetown of Kirk-Oswald, 155 miles (8. E.) from Carlisle,
and 292 (N.N.w.) from London. This place, which de-
rived its name from St. Oswald, the canonized King of

Northumberland, d, in the reign of John, to
m&: Morville, one of the murderers of Thomas
it D not ‘been distinguiched by any events of

it wais burnt by the Scots in 1314, since which
. jimportance. The town is pleasantly situated
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on the enstern bank of the river Eden, in a beautiful
and fertile vale, which gradually widens towards the
south, and expands into a large tract of open country.
The houses, which are in general well built, are irregu-
larly scattercd aulong the declivitics of the hills which
enclose the vale. The castle, of which only one square
tower and some dark vaults are remaining, occupies a
bold eminence to the cast of the town, and is said to
have been a very noble structure, of which the great
hall was more than three hundred feet in length, and
embellished with a scries of portraits of ancient British
kings: it was built by Ranulph d’Engaine, enclosed
with & quadrangular rampart by Hugh de Morville, en-
larged and fortified by Thomas de Multon, and beauti-
fied by Thomas Dacre ; the acclivities are richly wooded,
and defended by a deep ditch on all sides, except that
which overlooks the river: the castle was demolished
by the Howards, and the furniture and antiquities re-
moved to Naworth castle. The Raven beek, ovir which
is a bridge of one urch, intersects the town ; and the in-
habitants are supplied with water from a reservoir at
the market-cross, into which it is conveyed by pipes
from an eminence at a short distance. Within half a
mile westward of the town is a bridge of six arches over
the river Eden, built in 1762. There are flour-mills, a
paper-mill, and a mill for carding wool. The parish
contains several quarries of freestone, and one of mar-
ble, of a blue colour spotted with white. The market,
granted in the 2nd year of the reign of King John, is
on Thursday, and a market for corn wag estublished a
few years since on Monday ; the corn is pitched in the
market-place : the fairs are on the Thursday before
Whitsuntide, and August 5th for cattle.

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's books
at £8, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
£400 royal hounty, and in the patronage of the Crown,
The church, dedicated to St. Oswald, was, about the
year 1523, made collegiate for twelve secular priests ;
but this society did not subsist for more than ten or
twelve years ; at the dissolution, the revenue was
£78. 17.: the building, situated at a little distance
from the town, is very irregular and ill proportioned,
and was probably enlarged by the Dacres and the Clit-
fords, whose arme appear in the windows; it has no
teeple, but on the summit of an adjoining eminence
a tower has been erected, which is used us a belfry,
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists
in the town, and one for Independents at Park-head,
near the eastern extremity of the parish. The free
school is endowed with a house and some land produ-
cing £10 per annum, to which John Lowthian be-
queathed £100: fifteen boys are instructed at a tri-
fling expense. A benefit society, said to huve oeen the
first established in the country, has existed here for a
consideruble time. On the side of a hill, in a field ahout
one mile from the town, are two cairng of moderate
size.
KIRKSTEAD, a parish in the southern division of
the wapentake of GARTREE, parts of Linpsky, county
of LincoLn, 8 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Horncastle,
containing 132 inhabitants. The living is a donative, in
the peculiar jurisdiction of the manor court of Kirk-
stead, and in the patronage of the Trustees of R. Elli-
son, Esq. There is a place of worship: for Unitarians.
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Daniel Disney, about the year 1736, bequeathed a rent-
charge of £6 for the instruction of children. A Cigter-
cian abbey was founded here, in 1139, by Hiigo Beito;
and dedicated to the Virgin Mary : at the di tion it
was valued at £338, 13, 11, per annum, 7

KIRKTON, a parish in the South-clay division of the
wapentake of BasseTLaw, county of NorrTincHaM, 2§
miles (N.E. hy E.) from Ollerton, containing 200 inha*
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the peculiar juris-
diction of the Sub-Detn of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £7. 14, 94., and in the patronage of the Duke
of Newcastle. The church is dedicated to the Holy
Trinity.

KIRMINGTON, a parish in the eastern division
of the wapentake of YarnoroueH, parts of Linpsey,
county of LincoLx, 8§ miles (N.) from Caistor, contain-
ing 243 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in’
the king's hooks at £4. 18. 4., and endowed with £600
royal bounty. Lord Yarhorough was patron in 181<.
The church is dedicated to St. Helen.

KIRMOND le MIRE, a parish in the eastern di-
vision of the wapentuke of WraGGoE, parts of Linp-
seY, connty of LincoLn, 6] miles (E. N. E.) from Mar-
ket-Raisen, containing 71 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £5, endowed with
£400 royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant.
Edmuud Turnor, Esq. was patron in 1825. The church
is dedicated to St. Martin.

KIRSTEAD, a porish in the hundred of Loopon,
county of NorroLk, 74 miles (N. N. W.} from Bungay,
containing 230 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, with
that of Langhale, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £ 10,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of
Caius College, Cambridge. The church ix dedicated to
St. Margaret.

KIRTLING, a parish in the hundred of CHRVELEY,
county of Camnringe, 4} miles (S, E.) from Newmar-
ket, containing 627 inhabitants. The living ig a vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10, and in the
patronage of Lord Guildford. The church, which is de-
dicated to All Saints, is principally in the Norman style,
and contains various monuments of the noble family of
North : the only relic of antiquity is the gateway of an
ancient mansion which belonged to that family.

KIRTLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of
ProuGHLEY, county of OxrorD, 5 miles (E.N. E.) frora
Woodstock, containing 697 inhabitants. The living isa
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Oxford, rated in the king's books at £11. 9. 4., endowed
with 200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the President and Fellows of
St. John's College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. . About twenty children are clothed and edu-
cated at the expense of Sir Henry Dashwood, aided by
a rent-charge of £4. 4. per annum from an unkoown
benefactor. '

KIRTON, a parish in the wapentake of KirTon, parts
of Horianp, county of LincoLn, 4} miles (8. B.W.)
from Boston, containing, with the chapelry of Bro-
thertoft, 1803 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in thé archdeaconry snd diocese of Lincoln,
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rated in the king's hooks at £21. 10. 10,, endowed with
£ 200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Master and Wardens of the
Mercers’ Company, London.. The church, dedicated to
St. Peter and St. Paul, is a noble cruciform structure in
the decorated style, with a square tower at the intersec-
tion, and ornamented with battlements and pinnacles :
the western entrance seems to have formed part of an
earlier edifice, which was probably erected in the thir-
teenth century. Here were & market and an annual
fair, but both disused.

KIRTON, a parish in the hundred of Counzis,
county of SurroLk, 7% miles (E.S.E.) from Ipswich,
containing 578 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10, 13. 4., and
in the ‘patronage of the Crown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary. The navigable river Deben runs
on the north-cast of this parish.

KIRTON in LINDSEY, a market town and parish,
in the wapentake of CorrINGHAM, parts of Linpsey,
eounty of LincoLn, 18 miles (N. by w.) from Lin.
coln, and 147 (N. by W.) from London, containing
1450 inhabitants. The manor was granted by the
Conqueror to his half-brother, Robert of Mortaigne,
the first Earl of Cornwall, subgequently bestowed by
Edward II. on the widow of his favourite, Piers Gave-
stone, and, having again veverted to the crown, was
given by LEdward IIL to William, Earl of Huntingdon,
at whose death it became the property of Kdward the
Black Prince, who gave a third part to Elizabeth, the
widow of the lute earl, and the remainder to the Earl
of Chandos. It again became attached to the duchy of
Corawall, to which it now belongs. The town is situ-
ated on the western declivity of an eminence command-
ing an extensive view of the surrounding country, On
Kirton Green stands the duchy court-house, where the
manorial courts are held, and where the records are kept.
The quarter sessions for the parts of Lindsey are held
in the second whale week after Epiphany and Easter, on
the first Friday after July 7th, and on the Friday in the
first week after the 11th of October. The house of cor-
rection is a large stone huilding, consisting of a ceatre
and two wings; in the centre is the court-room, also
used as & chapel, and over it the grand jury-room ; the
gnoler's apartments are in the western division; the
male prisoners occupy the south, and the females'the

north, wing. This place is within the jurisdiction of a .

court of requests for the recovery of debts not exceed-
ing £5, the jurisdiction of which' extends over the
borough and parish of Boston, and the wapentake of
Skirbeck and Kirton, excepting the parishes of Gosbur-
ton and Surfleet. The market is on Saturday; and fafrs
are held on the 18th of July'and the 11th of December,
for cattle and pedlary. . FL g P i Bar
The living is a discharged yicarage, in the peculi
juri.dictionhfnd patronage of the'Sub-Dean of Lisodin,
rated in the king's books 8¢'£6.13. 4. The chrareh, dedi-
cated to St.Peter and St.Paul, has a considersble pok.

tion in the early style' of Efighsh architecture, with lstér
insertions; it ink some circular-hesded windots,
and in the interlor ‘are Some curious oak'seats,'screeii-
work; snd piscines, ' “Ihere is a chapel of. eass™ut

i, in this partéh
for Baptists anil Wesleyan Methodists,
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and Old Connexion. The free grammar school, endowed
with about £70 per annum, is now conducted on the Na-
tional system, and contains about eighty scholars. About
one hundred children are instructed in a8 Sunday school.

KISLINGBURY, a parigh in the hundred of No-
BoTTLE - GROVE, county of NomrtHameron, 34 miles
(W. by 8.) from Northampton, containing 643 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterhorough, rated in the
king's hooks at £18. 9. 7., and in the patronage of Mrs,
Hughes. The church, dedicated fo St. Luke, has some
portions in the decorated style, an embattled tower sur-
mounted by a spire, and a fine octagonal font. There is
a place of worship for Baptists. A considerable annual
income, the produce of divers henefactions, is applied in
instructing and apprenticing children.

KITTISFORD, a parish in the hundred of MiLvEr-
ToN, county of Somemrskt, 4] miles (W. by N.) from
Wellington, containing 175 mmhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeacoury of Taunton, and diovese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £11. 10. 5.
The Rev. T. Sweet Escott was patron in 1824, The
church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.

KNAITH, a parish in the wapentake of WELL, parts
of Linpsey, county of LincoLw, 33 miles (S. by k.)
from Gainshorough, containing 59 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, endowed with £400 royal
bounty. The church, formerly belonging to the Cister-
cian monastery of Heyninges, has two windows, richly
arnamented with tracery, in the decorated style of
English architecture. The monastery was fonnded about
1180, and valued at the dissolution at £58. 13. 4, per
ennum. The river Trent bounds this parish on the
west, Thomas Sutton, founder of the Charter-house
in London, was a native of this place.

KNAPP, a tything in the purish of NorTu Curry,
northern division of the hundred of Curry, county of
SoMERSET, 5% miles (E. by N.) from Taunton. The po-
pulation js returned with the parish. Here was for.
merly & chapel.

KNAPTOFT, a parish comprising the chapelry of
Mowsley in the hundred of GArTRER, the chapelry of
Shearsby, and the hamlet of Walton, in the hundred of
GUTHLAXTON, county of LEICESTER, 7 miles (N.E. by E.)
from Lutterworth, and containing 864 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
hooks at £32. 12. 6. The Duke of Rutland was pa-
tron in 1817. The church is dilapidated. There are
traces of an ancignt encampment in the parish. Dr.
Richard Watson, late Bishop of Llandaff, was one of
the incumbents.

ENAPTON, a parish in the northern division of the
hundred of Enpixanam, county of Norrork, 3§ miles
(N. & by X.) from North Walsham, containing S12 in-

_ nts, The living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Nayfoll; and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
bookpat £13.7. 1., and in the patronage of Lord Suf-
field and the Master of Peter House, Cambridge, alter-
nately. The ehurch is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul.
D "TON, a township in the parish of Acoms,
ainsty §f the city, and East riding of the county, of
Xoax, %m {W.byN.) from York, containing 137
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KNAPTON, a chapelry in the parish of WiNTRING-
HAM, wapentake of Buckrosg, East riding of the county
of’_ 1."0“, 6% miles (N.E. by E.) from New Maiton, con-
taining 206 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese
of Yprk, endowed with £600 royal huuniy, and £200
parliomentary grant.  John Tindale, Exq. was patron in
1804.  The navigable river Derwent runs within a short
distance of the village.

KNAPWELL, a parish in the hundred of Pap-
WORTH, county of CamBRIDGE, 44 miles (N.E. by N.)
from Caxton, containing 136 inhabitants. The living
18 a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely,
rated in the king's books at £6. 17, 11. The Rev. F.
Gunniss was patron in 17586, The church is dedicated
to All Saints,

KNARESBOROUGII, a
parish comprising the ma-
nor of Beach Hill within
the liberty of St. Peter of
Yonrk, East riding, and the
borough and market town of
Knaresborough, a portion of
which is also within the
above liberty, the chapelry
of Arkendale, and the town-
ships of Bilton with Harro-
gate, Brearton, and Scriven

Corporate Beal.

with Tentergate, in the lower division of the wapentake
of CrLaro, West riding, of the county of York, and
containing 9101 inhabitants, of which pumber, 5283
are in the borough of Knaresborough, 18 miles (W. by N.)

from York, and 197 (N.N.W.) from London. This
place is supposed to derive its name from the German
word Knares, a rocky mountain, thus indicating the
situation of its ancient castle, crected by Serlo de Burgh,
who uccompanied William the Conqueror to England,
and became lord of this manor. During the civil war in
the reign of Charles 1., the castle way garrisoned for
the king, but was eventually tuken by Lord Fairfax,
after the battle of Marston Moor, A priory was founded
in the thirteenth century, by Robert Flower, whose father
was mayor of York, who was afterwards canonized: it
was endowed by Richard, Earl of Cornwall, the brother
of Henory I11., for friars of the order of the Holy Trinity,
the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was £35. 10,11,
The town is situatéd on the north-eastern bank of the
river Midd, and is surrounded by picturesque and bean-
tiful scenery ; the streets are well paved, and lighted with
gax; the houses, many of which are handsome buildings,
are in general constructed of stone found in the imme-
diate vicinity. Therc are a subscription library and a
news-room. Knareshorough was formerly a favourite
watering-place, but has been of late years superseded by
Harrogate. The linen and cotton manufactures. which
were formerly very extensive, yet employ & considerable
number of the inhabitants, though they have somewhat
declined, in consequence of the inland situation of the
town and the want of facilities for the carriage of 4,
and for obtaining coal. The market, held Ungf\:gd-
nesday, is one of the principal corn markets in the
county : fairs, chiefly for horses, cattle, and sheep, are
on the first Wednesdays after January 18th, March 12th,
May 5th, August 12th, October 11th, and December 10th,
for cattle, horses, and sheep. A statute fair for hiring
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servants is held on the Wednesday before November 23rd.
The county magistrates hold petty sessions weekly for
the wapentike of Claro. Courts of record, for the re-
covery of debts to any amount within the honour of
Knaresborough, comprising the borough, the Forest,
and the Forest liberty, are held once a fortnight,
before the steward (u barrister), and the under stew-
ard, who are appointed by the Duke of Devonshire,
lessee of the honour under the duchy of Lancaster.
Attached to this court is a gaol for debtors, consisting
of a single room, part of the remeaine of Knaresborough
castle, which will afford accommodation for two prisoners
only. Sessions for the West riding are held here an-
nually at Michaelmas. Borough courts are held after
Michaelmas and Easter, by the Duke of Devonshire.
The elective franchise was granted in the first year of
the reign of Mary ; two representatives are sent to par-
liament : the right of election is in the proprietors of hur-
gage tenements, eighty-eight in number, who are chiefly
non-resident : the bailiff, in whom the government of
the borough is vested, is the returning officer; and the
influence of the Duke of Devonshire is preduminant,

The Hging is a vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction
of the copiit.of the honour of Knaresborough, rated in
the king's books at £9. 9. 4}, and in the patronage of
the Dean and Chapter of York. The church, which is
dedicated to St John the Baptist, has been erccted at
various periods : it is an extensive edifice, with a tower
between the nave and the chancel, and a decorated east
window. There are places of worship for the Society of
Friends, Independents, and Weslcyan Methodists, and
& Roman Catholic chapel. A free grammar school was
founded and endowed by Dr. Robert Chaloner, in 1616,
with a rent-charge of £20 per annum, for the education
of boys, but there are none on the foundation. A school
for boys and girls was endowed by Thomas Richardson,
in 1765, with £400 and a dwelling-house, which dona-
tion, with subsequent legacies and benefactions, produces
an annual income of £101. 16.: thirty boys and girls
arc educated. A National school for children of both
sexes was erected in 1814 ; and, in 1823, Charles Marshall
left £500 to trustees, to apply the interest in provid-
ing four suits of clothes every Easter for four scholars
who have made the greatest proficiency; the surplus
to be used at their discretion in support of the school,
Various Sunday schools are well supported and nume-
rously attended. There is a charitable fund of £200
per annum for apprenticing poor children; and ano-
ther of £150 per annum, distributed in gratuitics of
£5 each to indigent persons, arising from the joint be-
nefactions of Mrs, Alice Shepherd, in 1806, and Dr.
William Craven, in 1812,

The ruine of the castle extend over a circular area
about three hundred feet in diameter, and consist of
part of the keep and some round towers of excellent
masonry, with arches and windows displaying the deco-
rated English sfyle of building. Southward of the
castle is an excavation in the rock, called St. Robert's
Chapel, fonnded, in the reign of Richard I., by a native
of York ; and above it is a hermitage, which contains a
figure of the hermit in monastic attire, surrounded hy
hus books. A little higher up is Fort Montagu, an or-
namental structure consisting of exoavations in the rock,
sud 60 called in bonour of the Duchess of Buccleuch,
‘with appropriate arbours, green-house, and tea:rooms :
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in the vicinity is St. Robert's cave, remarkable in mo-
dern times as the scene of & horrible murder committed
on the body of Daniel Clarke, by Eugene Aram, a school-
master in this town, About a mile from the town are
the remains of an ancient encampment, on the point of
a hill two hundred feet above the surface of the river,
whence there is a fine view of the town and castle. In
thig parish there are four mineral springs : the sweet, or
vitriolic spa, in Knareshorough Forest, discovered in
1620; the sulphurcous spa, which is very feetid, and
cha silver to the colour of copper; St. Mungo's
cold bath’; and a dropping well, the water of which is
the most noted petrifying spring in England.

KNARESDALE, a parish in the western division
of TinpaLe ward, county of NORTRUMBERLAND, 6
roiles (N. W, by N.) from Alston Moor, containing 564
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of
Durham, rated in the king's hocks at £4. 18. 9., en-
dowed with £ 600 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is an ancient strue-
ture, surrounded by vestiges of other buildings. It is
believed that the Romans had a lead mine in this parish:
on the side of a fell is a medicinal spring called Snope's
well. The South Tyne runs through the parish, Knares-
dale gives the title of baron to the family of Wallace.

KNAYTON, & joint township with Brawith, in that
part of the parish of Leak which is in the wapentake
of AvLLeErTONBHIRE, North riding of the county of
York, 4 miles (N.) from Thirsk, containing, with Bra-
with, 377 inhabitants. The Wesleyan Methodists have
here a place of worship, Therce is a small endowment
for the instruction of children,

KNEBWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Broan-
WATER, county of HERTFORD, 4 miles (N.) from Wel-
wyn, containing 266 inhabitants. The living is a ree-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £13,1.104.
R. W. Lytton, Esq. was patron in 1788. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary.

KNEDLINGTON, a township in the parish of
Howpen, wapentake of HowpEeNsHIRE, East riding of
the county of York, 1 mile (W. by 8.) from Howden,
containing 118 inhabitants.

KNEESALL, a parish comprising the township.of
Ompton in the South-clay division of the wapentake &
BasserrLaw, and the hamlet of Kersall in the northern
division of the wapentake of THURGARTON, county of
NorrincnaM, 4 miles (8.E. by E.) from Ollerton, and
containing 602 inhabitants, The living is a:dis
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Nottingham, %ad dig.
cese of York, rated in the king's bookg:sik:#10, and :
the patronage of the Chaptey of the Géf: _
of Southwell. The church s dodmﬁﬂ 1o St, !
lomew. There is also a chapel of ##s¢ in the parish.
Here is a place of worship for Weslé¥in ista,
KNEESWORTH, a hamlet
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in the king's books at £4. 9. 4}., endowed with £800
royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant. Sir. F.
Molyneux, Bart. was patron in 1804. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter. The river Trent is here crossed
by a ferry to Hoveringham, and the Fosse road passes
elong the south-eastern boundary of the parish.

KNEIGHTON, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of MuckLeeroN which is in the northern division
of the hundred of PIREHILL, county of StaFFoRD, 5%
railes (N. E. by N.) from Drayton in Hales, containing
148 inhabitants.

KNETTISHALL, a parish in the hundred of Brack-
BOURN, county of SurroLk, 5 miles (S. by W.) from
East Harling, containing 70 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocege of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£6. 7. 11. Thomas Thornhill, Esq. was patron in 1826.
‘The church is dedicated to All Saints,

KNIGHTLEY, a township iu the parish of GNosarLL,
western division of the hundred of CuTTLESTONE, county
of Starrorp, 3L miles (8.8. W.) from Eccleshall, con-
tuining 322 inhabitants.

KNIGHTON, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of St. MarGareT, LE1CESTER, Which is in the hundred
of GurHLAXTON, county of LeicestTer, 21 miles (8. s,
B.) from Leicester, containing 383 inhabitants. There is
& place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

KNIGHTON upon TEAME, a chapelry in the pa-
rish of Linpripck, lower division of the hundred of
OswaLpsrLow, but locully in the upper division of the
hundred of Doddingtree, county of Worcester, 33
miles (E.N.E.) from Tenbury, containing, with Newn-
ham, 526 inhabitants.

., JKNIGHTON (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
Ctrrivorp-Tree, Dorchester division of the county of
Dorsrkr, 34 miles (S.E.) from Dorchester, containing
220 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, annexed to
that of Broadmayne, in the archdeaconry of Dorsct,
and diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's books at
£8. 15. 5. The church is dedicated to St, Peter. Here
is & smull sum for the instruction of children.

KNIGHTSBRIDGE, a chapelry partly in the parish
of St. MArRGARET, WESTMINSTER, but chiefly in the
perishes .of Kewsingron and Cmrrsea, Kensington
division of the hundred of OssursTonk, county of
MipopLesEx, 1 mile (W.) from London. The populution
is returned with the respective parishes, This place
comsists principally of a long street on the line of the
great western road from the metropolis: it is partially

ed, lighted with gas, and supplied with water from
.thre Chelsea Water Works. There are many good houses,
pd & few large and handsome mansions, with gardens
: unds “atts Great improvement
D nneug; effected My the removal of a large por-
. 9F the wall which lemtu Hyde Park from the

Wl and the erection of palisades, thus affording

e pegppect over the park from the houses on the op-
UL, © On the horth side, adjoining Hyde Park,
: ( »dious barracks for cavalry.
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Jjurisdiction of the court of requests for the recovery
of debts under 40s., held in Kingsgate-street, Holborn.
The chapel, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, be.lon%l::
originally to un ancient hospital, or lazar-house, un
the patronage of the abbot and convent of Westminster
it wus rebuilt, in 1629, at the cost of the inhabitants, by a
license from Dr. Laud, then Bishap of London, as a chapel
of case to St, Martin's in the Fields, within the precinets
of which parish it was situated, but the site was subse-
quently assigned to the parish of St. George, Hanover-
square, and at present forms a part of that of Keusing-
ton : the present ‘building was erected in 1789, Ad-
joining the chapel is a charity school, which was founded
in 1783, and is supported by voluntary contributions.
Here is a place of worship for Baptists,

KNIGHT-THORPE, a township in the parish of
LouGunonouGH, western division of the hundred of
Goscote, county of Lrickstek, coutaining 52 inha-
hitants,

KNIGHTWICK, a parish in the lower division of
the hundred of Oswainsrow, though locally in the
upper division of the bundred of Doddingtree, county
of WorcesteRr, 53 miles (E.) from Bromyard, con-
taining, with the chapelry of Kenswick, 170 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Worcester, rated in- the king's books at £13. 13. 4.,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Wor-
cester. The church is dedicated to St. Mary : the two
daughters of Colonel Lane, who were supposed to have
been instrumental in scereting Charles I1., on his flight
from Worcester, are interred init. There is a curious
kuife, for cutting the sacramental bread, with an agate
handle, given about one hundred and fifty years since
for the use of the church, by Mr. Clent. There is a
chapel of case at Doddenham, in thiz parish.

KNILL, a parish in the hundred of WicmMoRrE,
county of Hererorp, 23 miles (N.N. W.) from King-
ton, containing 79 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £4. 10., and
in the patronage of Mrs, A. M, Garbett Walsham. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael.

KNIPLON, a parish in the hundred of FramLanD
county of LeicesTewr, 7 miles (8. W. by W.) from
Grantham, containing 310 inhabitants. The living is
4 rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £16. 12. 34,
and in the patronage of the Duke of Rutland. The
church is dedicated to All Saints. In this parish is a
very extensive reservoir for the Grantham canal.

ENITSLEY, a joint township with Conside, in that
part of the parish of Lancuesten which is in the
western division of CaesTER ward, county palatine of
Duraam, 11 miles (W.N.W.) from Durham. The po-
pulation is returned with Conside,

KNIVETON, a parish in the hundred of Winks-
worTH, county of Dersy, 34 miles (N. E.) from Ash-
bourn, containing 394 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, endowed with £600 royal bounty, and
£ 200 parliamentary grant, and in the peculiar jurisdiction
and patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Lichfleld and
Coventry. The church is dedicated to St. John the
Baptist. A school was endowed by John Hurd, in
1715, with a small reut-charge for the instruction of
poor children, twelve of whom are educated gratuitounsly.
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Kniveton is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lan-
caster, and within the jurisdiction of a' court of pleas
held at Tutbury every third Tyesday, for the vecovery of
debts under 40s.

KNOCKIN, & parish in the hundred of OswzsTry,
county of Saror, 5§ miles (8.8.E.) from Oswestry, con-
taining 225 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rec-
tory, in the archdenconry and diocese of St. Asaph, and
in the patronage of the Earl of Bradford. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. This parish derives its name
from a castle founded here by the family of L'Estrange,
who possessed the manor in the reigns of Henry I, and
Henry 111, the latter of whom directed a precept to the
sheriff of this county, commanding the aid thereof, to
cnable John L'Estrange to erect part of the * Castle of
Cnukyn,” and to repair the rest for the defence of the
borders : his son received from the same monarch the
grant of a weekly murket, and a fair on the cve and
morrow of the festival of St. John the Baptist, both of
which are disused. In the reign of Edward 111,, Madoc,
a Welch nobleman, headed an insurrection, and defeated
Lord Strange at Cnukyn. Thomas Staveley, firat earl of
Derby of that name, was, in hic fother's lifetime, «nm
moned to parliament by the name of Lord Strange of
Knokyn. Few vestiges of the old castle remain, except
the keep, which may still be seen.

- KNODISHALL, = parieh in the hundred of Bryrn-
iNG, county of SurrorLk, 3 miles (E. by 8.) from Sax-
mundham, containing 316 johabitants. The living is
& discharged rectory with Buxlow, in the archdea-
conry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £11, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty. Jobhn Vermon, Esq.
was patron in 1801. The church is dedicated to St,
Lawrence.

KNOOK, = parish in the hundred of HeyTrssuny,
county of WiLts, 1 mile (E. 8. E.) from Heytesbury,
containing 268 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, with that of Heytesbury, in the peculiar juris-
diction of the Dean of Salisbury, endowed with £400
private benefaction, and £1000 royal bounty. The
chufeh is dedicated to St. Margaret.

KNOSSINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Gar-
TREE, though locally in that of Guthlaxton, county of
LxicesTER, 44 miles (W. by 8.) from Oakham, contain-
ing 193 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £6. 11. 8., and in the pa-
tronage of the Rev. Thomas Wartnaby. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter. An hospital for four widows of
heneficed clergymen, who have each a stipend of £30
per annum, was founded by William Scott of Croxton,
iu this county, but the date of its foundation is un-
known.

KNOTTING, a parish in the hundred of StoppEN,
county of Beororp, 44 miles (8. E.) from Higham-
Ferrers, containing 135 inhsbitants. The living is a
rectory, united, in 1735, to that of Souldrop, in the arch-
deaconry of Bedford, end diocese of Lincoln, rated in
the king's books at £10. 6. 8. The Rev.J. W. Hawks-
ley woe patron in 1792. The church is dedicated to

Margaret,

ENOTTINGLY, a chapelry in the parish of PonTe-
IRACT; upper division of the wapentake of Oscoump-
onoss, West riding of the county of  Yorx, 1} mile
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(E. 8. E.) from Ferry-Bridge, containing 8753 inhabit
ants, The livingis & perpetunl caracy, in the archdea-
conry and dibcese of ¥erk, endowed with £600 private
benefaction, € 600 royal bounty, and £ 200 parliamentar
grant, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Pongefeact.
The chapel is dedicated to St. Botelph. Thegg g
places of worship for Independents amnd Wesleyan,
Mcthodists, A school, in which thirty poor girls aie
instructed, is supported by bequests of £200. each,
from Mrs. Banks in 1792, and Mrs. Eliz. Brown in 1811,
The village is situated on the banks of the river Aire,
and has long been noted for ite great production of
limestone. A canal hence to Goole is in progress of
formation.

KNOTT-LANES, a district in the parish of AsaTox
under Ling, hundred of SaLrorp, county palatine of
L.ANCASTER, b% miles (N. E. by E.) from Manchester,
containing 3927 inhabitants.

KNOWLE, a tything in that part of the parish of
Crepiton which ix in the hundred of CrepiToN, coun-
ty of Devon, 3 miles (W. N. W.) from Crediton, with
which the population is returned.

KNOWLL, a joint tything with Brockhampton, in
the parish of Buckranp-Newron, Cerne subdivision
of the county of Dorser. The population is returned
with Brockhampton. .

KNOWLE, a chapelry in the parish of Hamrron in
Anprn, Solibull division of the bhundred of Hemring-
¥ORrD, conuty of Wakwick, 24 miles (5. E. by E.) from.,
Solihull, containing 1082 inhabitants, The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
munor court of Knowle, endowed with £400 private
beuefaction, £400 royal bounty, und £800 parliamen-
tary grant, and in the patronage of H. Greswold Lewis,
Esq. The chapel, dedicated to St.Ann, is in the hﬁ
style of English architecture, and contains some anciep
stalls and frugments of stained glass : it was built and
a chantry established here by Walter Cook, canon of Lia-
coln, in the reign of Richard 11, and wus valued, at the
dissolution, at £18. 5. 6. per annum. The name is a
corruption of Cnolle, or Knoll, the summit of a hill:
this is supposed to have been the site of a Roman sts-
tien; an urn, containing coins of the Lower Empire,
and weighing 15lb., was discovered in an. adjoini
field. The petty sessions for the division are held here
during the winter months, in conjunction with Solihull,
From twenty to twenty-five children of this chapelry
are clothed and educyged, conjointly with others in the
parishes of St. Mary sad 8¢, Nicholas, in Warwick, on
the foundation of the Hon. Sarah Greville, by a bequest
in 1718; at the same time the Hon. Algernon Greville
bequeathed £500 for the edncation of boys and girls,
the income arising from which is £25 per annumg
There are various benefactions for the relief of the poox,
the principal of which is by Fulk Glevﬂ:;, Ea_ql.éj::
1742, a small portion of the ineome -also ap|
towards the i]:;n-ucﬁm of chil_dm.% for cattle
and sheep is held on the first Monday after St. Ann's
day. The Warwick and Birminghem -canal passes
tl . ﬂ th-i' wish- & ’ ..::. . . ,_' ’

ENOWLE (CHURCH), » porish | :
Hasiror, Blandford (! 2 “of tha
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ionry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the
@ne's books 8t £17. 17. 6. W, Richards, Esq. was
patron in 1783, The church is dedicated to. St. Peter.

KENOWLE (ST. GILES), a parish.-sin the southern
diviggen of the humdred of Per oN, county of
Seprerare, 24 miles (8. by W.) from Iiminster, contain-
irig 91 inhabitants, The living is & perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£900 royal bounty, and in the peculiar jurisdiction
-and of the Prebendary of Cudworth in the
Cathedral Church of Wells,

KNOWL-END, a township in the parish of Aup-

LEY, northern division of the hundred of Prrenivr,
county of STArrorp, containing 208 inhabitants.
s KNOWLTON. a parish in the hundred of EasTry,
lathe of St.AvcusminNg, county of Ken, 44 miles
(8. E.) from Wingham, containing 34 inhabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £6. 5. 24,
and in the patro of G.W.H.D'Acth, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Clemeat.

KNOWSLEY, a township in the parish of Huvrow,
hundred of West DERBY, county palatine of LANCASTER,
8% miles (N.W.) from Prescot, containing 1174 inha-
bitants. There is a place of worship for Unitarinns,

KNOWSTONE, e parish in the sonthern division of
the hundeed of MovrToN, county of Devon, R4 miles
(w.) from Bampton, comprising East and West Know-
;Q_!‘;ﬁ},‘;aa'd containing 444 inhabitants. The living is
& ¥icarage with Molland, in the archdeaconry of Barn-
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books
4#0: 10., and in the patronage of Mr. Courtenay.
k, dedicated to St. Peter, has a plain Norman

© - KNOYLE (EAST), a parish in the hundred of Down-
ToN; though locally in that of Mere, county of WivLts,
24 miles (8. W.) from Hindon, containing 954 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of ‘Salisbury, rated in the king’s books at £30,
apd in the ge of the Bishop of Winchester. The
chureh is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place of
worship ‘for Baptists. The sum of ubout £10 per
annum, arising from bequests by Charles Trippet, in
‘1307, end Mary Shaw, is applied towards the instruc-
tion of children. The celehrafed architect, Sir Chris-
topher Wren, was a native jRilis. perish, of which his
. father, Christopher Wren, as rector.
.. KNOYLE (WEST),  in the hundred of
‘MERE, county of Wirrs, 3 #illes (E.) from Mere, con-
aining 208 inhabitants. The'living is a perpetual cu-
key, aunexed to the vicarage of Newenton, in the arch-
Wwonry-and diocese of Salisbury: the, prebend of
.Knoyle, which ie an appendage to thiat of Newen-
wated in the king's hooks at £8, 12, 1.
SFORD, a parish in the hundred of Buvcxk-

20%, By palatine of CuesTER, comprising the mar-
ket tovky o8, Knutsford, and the townships of Bexton,
Qhver ford, Ollerton, and Toft, and comtsining
85861 nte, of which number, 2753 are in the
town of ‘Netha: K nutsford, 243 miles (N.E.by E.) from
%ﬂﬁ;" and :i' 8§ (N.w.byN.) from Londo:lz. be
SEEENCR, W, } great antiquity, is situnted on t|

*m“ﬂ a mﬂm, and near a ford, over which
“Gemute -the Dane is said. to have .passed with his-army
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for the conquest of the northern parts of the kingdom,
in the reign of Ethelred II., or that of Edmund Iron-
side, and thence called Canute's Ford, from which the
town derives its name. At the Conquest, Knutsford
formed part of the barony of Halton, but in the reign
of KEdward 1. it came into the possession of William: de
Tableigh, who obtained for it a charter of incorporation
and various privileges, all which are become obeolete,
The town consists principally of twa long streets,
and is well paved and supplicd with water. The houses
are in general indifferently built, and of mean appear-
ance ; but in the immediate neighbourhood are several
handsome villas : the environs are pleasant; and near
the town is a good race-course, the races being held on
the lust Tuesday in July. Assemblies take place in
the town, in November and December. The manufae-
ture of thread, which formerly flourished here to a con-
siderable extent, has, since the introduction of machi-
nery, given place to the weaving of cotton, in which the
principal part of the population is employed, working
with hand-looms, for the manufacturers at Manchester
and the adjacent towas, The Trent and Mersey canal
pusses within five miles of the town, affording o com-
munication with Liverpool, and thence with various
other parts of the kingdom. The market is on Saturday
the fairs, to which a small number of cattle are bronght
from the neighbouring villages, are, April 23rd, July 10th,
and November 8th; a cattle fair is also held at Over
Knutsford, on the Tuesday in Whitsun-weck. Consta-
bles and other officers are uppointed at the court leet of
the lord of the manor, who also holds a court baron :
the hundred court, and the Midsummer and Michaelmas
guarter sessions for the county, are held in the town.
The sessions-house and house of correction {or the county
were erected in 1817 : the former is an elegant edifice,
comprising spacious court-rooms, with the requisite ac-
commodation for the business of the sessions; thelatter,
a spacious and commodious huilding, contains a gover-
nor's house, infirmary, and schools, eight day-rooms,
seven airing-yards, in some of which are tread-mills, and
one hundred and fifty separate cclls, for the classifica-
tion, employment, and instruction of the prisoners,
Knutsford, with its scveral townships, was formerly
included in the parish of Rostherne, from which it was
severed by act of parliament,in 1714, and formed into a
gcparate parish. Theliving is a vicarage, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £16 per
annum private benefaction, end £400 royal bounty, and
in the alternate patronage, according to the following
order, of the Lords of the Manors of Over Knutsford,
Nether Knutsford, Ollerton, Toft,and Bexton. The church,
erected in 1744, and dedicated to St. John the Baptist,
is a neat edifice of hrick, with a stone tower. There are
places of worship for Independents, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, and Unitarians. The free grammar school was
founded and endowed with sixteen marks per anoom, in
the reign of Edward VI,, by an ancestorsof the family
of Peter Leigh, Esq., of Over Knutsford, who appoints
the master and nominates the scholars, with the excep-
tion of three, who, under a special endowment, are ap-
pointed by the vicar, A parochial school haslately been
established, in which seventy boys are taught reading,
writing, and arithmetic ; and a schogl, in which one hun-
dred girls are instructed in reading and needlewerk, ix
supported by Mrs, Egerton of Tatton. ZThere are also
$Z "
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iofls charitable bequests for distribution among the
pgr, the proceeds of which, about £100 per annum,
are divided by the vicar, churchwardens and overseers
of the parish.

“ KNUTSFORD (OVER), a township in the parish
of Kn~ursrorD, hundred of Buckrow, county palatine
of CuxsTer, § of a mile (8, E. by 8.) from' Nether
Knutsford, containing 231 inhabitants.

KNUTTON, a township in the parish of Wovrsran-
roN, northern division of the hundred of PirEmivny,
county of STAFFORD, containing 809 inhabitants, Xnut-
ton is in the honour of Tuthury, duchy of Lancaster,
and within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at
Tuthury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s.

KYLOE, a parish in IsLanpsHIRE, county palatine
of DurnawM, though locally northward of the county of
Northumberland, adjoining Berwick upon Tweed, and
containing 990 inhabitants. The living is 8 perpstuul
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Northumberland, and
diocese of Durham, endowed with £200 private benefac-
tion, £400 royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Dean und Chapter of Dur-,
ham, The church was rebuilt in 1792. Coual and lime
are found in this parish.

KYME (NORTH), a township in that part of the
parish of Soure Kxme which is in the first division of
the wapentake of LaNGOE, parts of KesTEVEN, county
of LincoLnw, 74 miles (N. E. by E.) from Sleaford, con-
taining 283 inbhabitants.

KYME (SOUTH), a parish comprising ‘the town-
ship of North Kyme in the first division of the wapen-
take of LangoE, but chiefly in the wapentake of
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ASWARDHURN, [N : of Kmhnn county of Lin-
couN, 84 .milég: (KW, By S.)’ ifrom Tattershall, and
containing . m;nhnb:tants The living is a perpetual
curacy, .in Mhdeacou_ry and diocese of Lincoln.
cndowed with .« i royal bounty, and £200 parlia-
mentary grai's * ur A. Hume, Bart. was patron in 1806.
The church 1§ dedicated to All Saints. A priory of
Black canons was founded, in honour of the Virgin
Mury, in the reign of Heury II., which was valued at the
dissolution st £1I38, 4. 0. bsr Gilbert Talbois, created
Baron of Kyme in the reign of Henry VIIL., is interred
in the church.

KYNNERSLEY, county of Savor. — See KIN-
NERSLEY,

KYO, s tnwnshnp in that part of the parish of Lan-
cHEsTER Which is in the western division of CHesTER
ward, county palatine of Duruam, 104 miles (N.W.)
from Durham, containing 448 mhabltams

KYRE (GREAT), a parish in the upper division of
the hundred of DoppiNeTREE, county of WoRCESTER,
4 miles (8. E. by 8.) fror Tenbury, mntammg 162 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the
king's books at £6. 17, Si ., and in the patronage of
Mrs. Pitts.  The church is dedicated to St. Mary. An
almshouse for cight poor widows, who are partly
clothed and receive 2s. 6d. per week, was founded by
Mr. Fettiplace.

KYRE (LITTLE), a chapelry in that purt of the
purish of SToxE-Briss which is in the upper division of
the hundred of DoppincTREE, county of Woncnmlg

44 miles (8. E.by 5.) from Tenbury, containing. 121 i
habitants.

THE END OF VOLUME I
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